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NEEF
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®E

Market conditions and the business environments in which Sustainable
Forest Holdings Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”)
operate remained difficult during the financial year ended 31 March 2018.
The Group recorded a consolidated net loss of approximately HK$326.7
million for the year. Demand for the Group’s timber products continued to
be affected by the poor market sentiment and a sluggish real estate market
in the Group’s overwhelmingly most important market, China. The Group’s
Zhongshan Operations continued to be disappointing, generating a net loss
of approximately HK$50.8 million during the year under review. The Group
has carried out aggressive cost cutting measures and will continue to tightly
manage all expenses in the period ahead.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our staff, shareholders and other
stakeholders for their continued support to the Group during this difficult time.
It is anticipated that the Group will continue to experience challenging times
ahead. However, the Group will work to identify new business opportunities
to restore and enhance shareholders’ value.
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Financial Highlights

MBRE

2013 2012 Changes
—B-—=fF =T = BIiEE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Operating results reEE
Continuing operations BESEER
Revenue A 76,550 115,616 (33.8%)
Gross profit/(loss) EH,(E8) 9,248 (2,807) (429.5%)
Discontinued operations BRIEETR
Revenue WA = L _
Gross loss ES.] - - -
Loss attributable to the owners RNTEE AERN
of the Company B8 (326,601) (2,327,909) (86.0%)
Financial position at year end RERE B 2B BARR
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MERE 190,274 213,306 (10.8%)
Biological assets EYEE 344,172 913,049 (62.3%)
Goodwiill [FEES 302,118 302,118 -
Cash and cash equivalents HERBELZEEY 216,540 7,760 2,690.5%
Net current assets mEEEFE 59,024 6,175 855.9%
Total assets BB E 1,068,024 1,727,833 (38.2%)
Total interest bearing borrowings from BN E=FETR
independent third parties BEHEE 36,132 25,639 40.9%
Total interest bearing borrowings from A% K,k RAE A A
shareholders and/or related companies TEEEA 241,933 219,439 10.3%
Total liabilities BEE 551,017 852,438 (35.4%)
Equity attributable to the owners ZIN/NETEZ SN
of the Company FEAE 2 A 517,007 875,309 (40.9%)
Per share information FRER
Basic loss per share BRREANEE
(Hong Kong cents) (P&
Continuing operations BEREER (4.85) cents fili (41.27) cents 1l (88.2%)
Continuing and discontinued FELEEG R
operations BERIEFE (4.85) cents fill (41.19) cents 1l (88.2%)
Net asset value per share SREEFE 7.3cents il  13.1 cents 1l (44.3%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWR DN

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 March 2013, revenue and net loss after tax decreased
to HK$76.6 million and HK$326.7 million from HK$115.6 million and
HK$2,327.9 million, respectively from the year before. The total revenue
consisted primarily of sales of forestry and timber products. No contributions
were recorded from tree felling services segment.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business environment continued to be difficult for the Group in Brazil. On
27 March 2012, the board decided to suspend harvesting operations in
Acre, Brazil for one year and until the operating environment for its Brazilian
subsidiary improves. For the year ended 31 March 2013, Acre’s operations
remained suspended.

The PRC is the world’s largest consumer and importer of timber and logs and
it continues to be the primary market for our forestry and timber products.
During the year ended 31 March 2013, all revenue was derived from sales to
customers in the PRC.

Demand for the Group’s timber products remains sluggish as the slow down
of the economy and real estate sector continued during the financial year
ended 31 March 2013.

OUTLOOK

Uncertain market conditions and poor demand for timber products continued
to affect the Group’s near term outlook. The Group will continue to control
its expenses and look for new business opportunities restore shareholders’
value.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had cash and cash equivalents that
amounted to HK$216.5 million (2012: HK$7.8 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio expressed as a percentage of total interest bearing
borrowings (including all interest bearing borrowings from shareholders and/
or related companies), over equity attributable to the owners of the Company,
increased from 28% as at 31 March 2012 to 53.8% as at 31 March 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had HK$36.1 million in interest bearing
borrowings from an independent third party of which were repayable
within one year. As at 31 March 2012, the Group had HK$25.6 million in
interest bearing borrowing from independent third parties of which HK$25.4
million were repayable within one year and the remaining HK$0.2 million
were repayable after one year. As at 31 March 2013, the interest bearing
borrowings of HK$36.1 million from the independent third party were other
borrowings. As at 31 March 2012, the interest bearing borrowings of HK$25.6
million from the independent third parties consisted of HK$25.2 million in
bank and other borrowings and HK$0.4 million in finance leases payable. As
at 31 March 2013, the Group’s working capital was approximately HK$59.0
million (2012: HK$6.2 million). In addition, interest bearing borrowings from
shareholders and related companies totaled HK$241.9 million and HK$219.4
million for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, respectively.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, no property, plant and equipment (2012: with a
carrying value of HK$0.7 million) of the Group was pledged to secure general
banking facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities at 31 March 2013 are disclosed in Note 45
to the consolidated financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s continuing operation mainly operates in Brazil, China and Hong
Kong.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, revenue from continuing operations
was denominated mainly in Renminbi while its costs and expenses were
primarily in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and Brazilian Reais where the
Group’s continuing operations are based. The Group is exposed to potential
foreign exchange risk as a result of fluctuations between those currencies that
are not pegged.

In addition, the main operational assets of the Group are located and
denominated in local currencies in Brazil and China while the Group’s
reporting currency is in Hong Kong dollars. This also exposes the Group
to potential foreign exchange risk upon translation of those assets on each
reporting date.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWR DN

The Group did not enter into any arrangements or financial instruments for
the purpose of hedging against the potential foreign exchange risks during
the year under review. Management believes that the Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risks are minimal since Renminbi has been in strength
while Reais have been weakening somewhat against US dollars during the
current period. In the event that Reais were to rise substantially against US
dollars, the risk can be mitigated by increasing local sales denominated in
Reais. As for the operational assets of the Group, any foreign exchange gain
or losses due to translation of the carrying value of the assets to the Group’s
reporting currency on reporting dates are unrealised and non-cash in nature.
As such, active hedging activities are not considered warranted. Nonetheless,
management will monitor closely its foreign currency exposure to ensure
appropriate measures are taken promptly against any significant potential
adverse impact.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had approximately 305 employees (2012:
450) mainly in Hong Kong, China, Brazil and USA (2012: Hong Kong, China,
Brazil, Russia and USA). The total remuneration paid by the Group to its
employees (including directors) for the year was approximately HK$39.0
million (2012: HK$50.3 million).

The Group rewards its employees according to prevailing market practices,
individual experience, performance and requirements under applicable
labor laws in the Group’s operational locations. In addition to the provision
of annual bonus, provident fund scheme and medical insurance coverage,
discretionary bonuses and share options are also available to employees.
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Report of Directors

The board of directors (“Board”) of Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited
(“Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) its annual report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company comprise tree felling service (for
the year ended 31 March 2012 only and no tree felling service was provided
during the year ended 31 March 2013), sustainable forest management
and manufacturing and sales of timber products including but not limited to
wooden door, furniture and wooden floor panels (“Zhongshan operation”).
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March 2013 by
geographical and business segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 40.

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2013 (2012: HKS$NIl per ordinary share and HK$Nil per convertible
preferred share).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the results and the financial position of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 180.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS AND PROPERTY, PLANTS
AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the biological assets and property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 21 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-laws”) or laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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Report of Directors

ESEWRE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2013.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statement and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

On 31 March 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves available for the
distribution to owner of the Company calculated in accordance with the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended) was HK$147,130,000 (2012:
HK$492,601,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors (“Executive Director(s)”)
Ms. ZHOU Jing (Chairman)
(appointed on 4 January 2013)
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming
(appointed on 4 January 2013)
Ms. LOH Jiah Yee, Katherine
(resigned on 15 February 2013)
Ms. FLETCHER Yurk Nam, Sandy
(resigned on 1 March 2013)
Mr. LI Zhixiong
(resigned on 5 February 2013)
Mr. LEUNG Siu Hung, Joel
(resigned on 8 February 2013)
Mr. SHIH Chiu, David
(resigned on 30 September 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(“Independent Non-Executive Director(s)”)
Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN
(appointed on 4 January 2013)
Mr. WU Wang Li
(appointed on 17 January 2013)
Mr. NG Wai Hung
(appointed on 8 February 2013)
Mr. John Tewksbury BANIGAN
(resigned on 17 January 2013)
Mr. KEUNG Paul Hinsum
(resigned on 8 February 2013)
Mr. Donald Smith WORTHLEY
(resigned on 17 January 2013)
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Report of Directors

In accordance with Bye-law 87(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. William Keith
JACOBSEN and Mr. WU Wang Li shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. NG Wai Hung, who
has been appointed as Director after the last AGM, shall hold office until the
forthcoming AGM. Mr. NG Wai Hung, being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company
considered all of them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Other than statutory compensation, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 22 to 25.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the year.
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Report of Directors

ESEWRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong, “SFQO”)) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO;
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code (“Model
Code”) for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2013, the following persons, other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would be required to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

RZE—=F=A=+—8 EERARAHEE
TRABBMENRANR TSR EEMEEEE(EE
REEBEDIE 571 EFH L EBEEG ([E5 &
BB EXVED) 2D - HERG kEHS -
EERBEESRHAEEFET7RSDBAMES A
DA KRR AT BB SRR AR AR IR & 5 & 8
BIEFIE 2R EMFE 2 & siiRiE £
TR AIKIER10FTE LB ITAZESETESR S
FIZXESTRI ([TZ257 81 ) BME AR R MR FT
ZEARERBAE ©

BITHRAESN

=R
rE

Number and
class of Shares
and underlying

REM ARG KRR
m

T—=F=A=1+—H' ' BREFHAQAR
AT AR R G s iE R A%
T?Eﬁ@%ug%*&ﬁﬁfﬂﬂﬁﬂ%XV‘B%Z&%
3P W2 IEX AR R HE B LREARR

RARE 5 K HE 15512 336 1
REESSORBUT

TEZZ%.:EHHZ

Approximate
percentage of
issued Shares

Shares held HERITRG
FisRo R BMAOBD
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest MERARG Z (Note 1)
BRERES LB EEME HE REH (Krat1)
Ms. LOH Jiah Yee, Katherine (“Ms. Loh”)  Interest of Controlled Corporation 1,946,574,062 27.47%
(Note 2) SPEGAE 2
SRERL (%L ])(Het2)
Mr. LAU Jack (“Mr. Lau”) (Note 3) Interest of spouse 1,946,574,062 27.47%
BRE(BELEE]D (K:73) B e
Assure Gain International Limited Beneficial owner/ 1,884,406,420 26.59%
(“Assure Gain”) (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation
Assure Gain International Limited BEmla A/ ZEGER 2 s
([Assure Gain ) (#/zt4)
NWS Financial Management Services Beneficial owner 404,102,500 5.70%
Limited (“NWS Financial”) (Note 5) EmEAA
NWS Financial Management Services
Limited ([ NWS Financial |) (f/£5)
Expert Plan Limited (Note 6) Beneficial owner 2,455,475,006 34.65%
Expert Plan Limited (#/7£6) EnEAA
Mr. HO Ka Kui, Boniface (“Mr. Ho”) Interest of Controlled Corporation 2,455,475,006 34.65%

(Note 7) SEPE AR 2 i
fAIRESEE ([AEE]D) (HaF7)
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Report of Directors

ESEWRE

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS TERRREMATARG RIEE
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND Rz R
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes: K

. The percentage figures were calculated based on 7,085,632,310 Shares in issue as of . ZEADHBEIRER-_E—=4=A=+—H
31 March 2013. B %477,085,632,310 IR A a1 & °

28 Ms. Loh was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Assure 2. L4+ B 25 A Assure GainE TR A 2 & &
Gain, which held 100% of the issued share capital of Winner Global Holdings Limited f# 25 MMmAssure Gain®d Bl # A Winner Global
(“Winner Global”) and Splendid Asset Holdings Limited (“Splendid Asset”) respectively. Holdings Limited ([Winner Global l) X Splendid
Ms. Loh was also beneficially interested in 50% of the issued share capital of Corp Asset Holdings Limited ([Splendid Asset]) B
Insights Holdings Inc. (“Corp Insights”) held through Corporate Insights Limited. BT A 2 2 2B & o % 22 £ JF i@ 3B Corporate
Assure Gain was the registered holder of 1,116,762,347 Shares and 621,346,723 Insights Limited#f 7 Corp Insights Holdings Inc.
convertible preferred shares (“CPS”) of the Company convertible into 116,502,510 (I'Corp Insights]) B 2 17 B 78 2 50% & 25 # 25 °
underlying Shares; Winner Global was the registered holder of 320,041,100 Shares; Assure Gain & 70 45 8 1,116,762,347 i% % 10 & 7] 5,
Splendid Asset was the registered holder of 331,100,463 Shares; and Corp Insights 5 116,502,510 I #E A AR 19 2 621,346,723 IR AN A
was the registered holder of 308,627,424 CPS convertible into 57,867,642 underlying a) a] A% 1B e A% ([ AT #a AR B S A% 1) + Winner Global
Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Loh was therefore deemed to have interests & i ¥ A820,041,1008% A% 19 : Splendid Asset
in 1,767,903,910 Shares and 174,370,152 underlying Shares upon conversion of the & &0 #F B331,100,463 % % 17 : i Corp Insights
CPS in which Assure Gain, Winner Global, Splendid Asset and Corp Insights were B & =24 A Al X # 557,867,642 1B B AR 1D 2
interested. Ms. Loh was also entitled to share options to subscribe for a maximum of 308,627,424 fX A[ AR B S IR o BIEFE S K HE (551
4,300,000 Shares upon exercise of the options in full. FEXVED » L4z + FH I AR AT Assure Gain ~ Winner

Global * Splendid Asset & Corp Insights ff # & <
1,767,903,910 AR AR 1 J PTHR PR 48 5 AR K 4 i = A
2174,370,152 IRABBER (D h E A i zs - U LT =
B AR BB T B SR B8 5 % 4,300,000 AR AR 7 2 BE AR
o

3. Mr. Lau, being the spouse of Ms. Loh, was deemed to have an interest in the same 3. BRERRELT ZIME  BIEESFRBARKIEXV

parcel of the Shares and underlying Shares in which Ms. Loh was interested under AR AN+ PR A RS 2 R — HE AR () K AR R
Part XV of the SFO. PR R A RS o
4. Assure Gain held 100% of the issued share capital of Winner Global and Splendid 4, Assure Gain% 7| # & Winner Global & Splendid

Asset respectively. Assure Gain was the registered holder of 1,116,762,347 Shares Asset BB TR AN 2 & #B#E % o Assure Gain & &t ¥

and 621,346,723 CPS convertible into 116,502,510 underlying Shares; Winner F1,116,762,347 B A% 1 K& A %, /116,502,510 A%

Global was the registered holder of 320,041,100 Shares and Splendid Asset was the 1B B IR 19 2 621,346,723 A% A] #4 f% & % A% : Winner

registered holder of 331,100,463 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Assure Gain Global & &2 #§ A 320,041,100A% ik 3 & Splendid

was therefore interested and deemed to have interests in 1,767,903,910 Shares and Asset & 52 #5 5 331,100,463 I B 17 » RIRE % & 4

116,502,510 underlying Shares in which itself, Winner Global and Splendid Asset were B & B EXVEL » Assure Gain B Itk B & # B R 5

interested. 7 A Winner Global 52 Splendid Asset £7 # A # L it

1,767,903,910 A& A% 15 & 116,502,510 % 48 8 A 15
BHRER
5. (0] NWS Service Management Limited (incorporated in British Virgin Islands) B, (0] NWS Service Management Limited ([NWS
(“NWS Service (BVI)’) owned 100% interest in the issued share capital of NWS Service (BVI)) * REE R LB S ML)
Financial, and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which A NWS Financial B TR AN 2 2 B i as -
NWS Financial was interested. It 3% 4R A HANWS Financial # A 25 2 B
B -

(ii) NWS Service Management Limited (incorporated in Cayman Islands) (‘NWS (ii) NWS Service Management Limited ([ NWS
Service (Cayman)”) owned 100% interest in the issued share capital of NWS Service (Cayman)| » AH S B S ML) #
Senvice (BVI), and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in BNWS Service (BVI)E B 1TARA 2 2 5hfEn -
which NWS Service (BVI) was interested. AR A FANWS Service BVI) B #2252

MR PG A o

(iil NWS Holdings Limited (“NWS Holdings”) owned 100% interest in the issued (iii HEAEEEARAR(FAZEERDES
share capital of NWS Service (Cayman), and was therefore deemed to have an NWS Service (Cayman) B 21T 28 2 & Zh 48
interest in the Shares in which NWS Service (Cayman) was interested. 2 0 A 348 B NWS Service (Cayman) #k

BREm RO PHEBER °

vy  New World Development Company Limited (“New World”) owned 60.95% vy HFtABERARAIF(HER)EEHAIZE
interest in the issued share capital of NWS Holdings, and was therefore EBE D EITIRA 2 60.95% s © EILIER A
deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which NWS Holdings was REEEEB R RO P AR ©
interested.
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Report of Directors

ESEWRE

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

5.

(continued)

(V) Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (“Chow Tai Fook”) owned 42.49% interest
in the issued share capital of New World, and was therefore deemed to have
an interest in the Shares in which New World was interested.

(Vi) Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTF Holding”) owned 100% interest in the
issued share capital of Chow Tai Fook, and was therefore deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which Chow Tai Fook was interested.

(vii) Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (“CTF Capital”’) owned 74.07% interest in the
issued share capital of CTF Holding, and was therefore deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which CTF Holding was interested.

(vii)  Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited (“CYTF”) and Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings II) Limited (“CYTF 1I”) owned 48.98% and 46.65% interest in the
issued share capital of CTF Capital respectively, and CYTF and CYTF Il were
therefore deemed to have interests in the Shares in which CTF Capital was
interested.

Expert Plan Limited (as underwriter) and the Company entered into an underwriting
agreement dated 18 March 2013 in relation to underwriting of share open offer and
CPS open offer.

Under the share open offer and CPS open offer, not less than 1,180,938,718 offer
shares and not more than 1,227,737,5083 offer shares and not more than 215,525,161
offer CPS together with the same number of bonus share warrants and bonus CPS
warrants were expected to be allotted and issued by the Company.

Under Part XV of the SFO, the underwriter of a public offer of shares will have interests
in the shares which are to be offered even though they are unissued. Upon completion
assuming full exercise of the share options and the full conversion of the CPS before
the record date for the share open offer and CPS open offer, Expert Plan Limited
was therefore deemed to have interests in 1,227,737,503 Shares and 1,227,737,503
underlying Shares upon exercise of bonus share warrants.

Mr. Ho was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Expert Plan
Limited. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Ho was therefore deemed to have interests
in 1,227,737,603 Shares and 1,227,737,503 underlying Shares upon exercise of the
bonus share warrants in which Expert Plan Limited was interested.

All interests stated above as at 31 March 2013 represented long positions of Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Company had not been
notified of any other persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

014
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5.

B EXHEESN R

mxim&ﬁ&m@
%)

v) BABEEARAR ([AAR])#EAEHER
EBITIRANZ 42.49% fE a5 - FLLHAR BN
R A S R P AR o

(v  Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited ([ CTF
HoIdingJ)Tﬁﬁﬂﬁ?&a?ﬁ‘ﬁﬂi$2%*ﬁg
RS T N E PN R eyl
Tﬁﬁﬁ%/\ °

(vil  Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited ([CTF
Capital]) # & CTF HoldingE # 17 ix 4~ 2
74.07% 0 B I AR AR CTF Holding #
BREm 2 ROPHEEER °

(vi) ~ Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited
([CYTF]) ¥ Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings
1) Limited ([CYTF I1]) % Bl # & CTF Capital
B 1TIRAN 2 48.98% K 46.65% #Ezs + H It
CYTF K CYTF 14245 231X CTF Capital % 5 ##
w2 R PHEEHER ©

Expert Plan Limited ({E& 8 8578) B R B BLAR D A
FHEERCPSRAREEZEHIVARA-T—=
F=RA+NBZ B -

BRIERD AFEE RCPSAREE  HMHAAR R
e 3% K B 1T 71,180,938, 718 IR B & I {5 ~ 1%
71,227,737,503 % 3 & Ik 15 & 1~ % 72 215,525,161
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Report of Directors

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, none of the Director nor the chief
executive of the Company had been granted any right to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporation and none of the Directors, their respective spouses
nor their respective children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Shareholders on
27 November 2009 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant
share options to the directors, employees, executive or officers, managers,
consultants, any customers, suppliers of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interests (“Invested Entity”) who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and development of the Group so
as to provide incentives or rewards for their contribution to the success of the
Group’s operation.

ESEWRE

EEREEFZEA
REBE-F-=F=A=1+—HILFEE XK

AR BT B 3 IR T (o] 4 ) 7] #5 UL
AR B ST E AR 2 B B
BEZHEESR QZM%&&: BARM188KZ
FTRHEREEARBARBESZEN - TE
TTREAEMZFRER -

Bt E
REBRRR-_ZZAF+ A+ LARAZE
PrrEst a8l ([ Rt El)) - ARRATREZEE R
BRNSERXBGHAREZEERERELE
B AEBEEAIK B ARBEERNKEFEEK
rEDZcER((REERDZES  EE T
ABHBE - K2 ERH - EHAUREF - RHES
HIRG 2 HEEH R L BAE - AR O ERSE
HAREEKINVEBEL ZER/E -

During the year, the movements in the share options under the Share Option ~ RER - RIEERET 2 2 BIRESSH MO T -
Scheme were as follows:
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1 April at 31 March
2012 2013 Exercise
Nature of R-E--% R-B-=% price
Name interest A—H Lapsed =A=1—H Date of grant Exercise period per share
i% BHtE e R AT BE3: HATE RLAH T6Ed @ﬁﬁﬁ%
(HKS)
(&%)
Directors
g%
Mr. LEUNG Siu Hung, Joel Personal 680,723 (680,723) - 7May2010 7 May 2011 to HK$0.710
(“Mr. Leung’) A “2-ZERALA 6 May 2020 BE0.7107T
PR E “T——5RAtAZE
(TR%E]) ZZTFRARA
Personal 680,724 (680,724) - 7May2010 7 May 2012 to HK$0.710
HA “Z-2ERALH 6 May 2020 BE0.7107T
“E--“41AtRE
:T\,A\Eﬁﬂ ~NH
Personal 680,724 (680,724) - 7May2010 7 May 2013 to HK$0.710
HA “Z-TFRALA 6 May 2020 BE0.7107T
“T-=FRAtEZE
:T: ZERAAA
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ESEWRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

B E ()

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1 April at 31 March
2012 2013 Exercise
Nature of R-E-Z& R-E-=f price
Name interest A—H Lapsed =A=1—H Date of grant Exercise period per share
i BEitE i AT EX¥ HATE RHEAH Ciid ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%
(HKS)
(%)
Directors (continued)
55(8)
Mr. SHIH Chiu, David Personal 333,333 (333,333 - 13 January 2010 13 January 2011 to HK$0.940
(“Mrr. Shih’) (Note 1) A —E-2F—-f+=H 12 January 2020 50940 7T
kS E “2——%-A+=HE
(THesE 4 (Fiat 1) ZZ-ZF-A+ZH
Personal 333,333 (333,333) - 13 January 2010 13 January 2012 to HK$0.940
EIN —T-TF-f+=H 12 January 2020 #0940 7T
—Z-—-%-fA1+=HZ%
ZZ-ZF-A+=H
Personal 333,334 (333,334) - 13 January 2010 13 January 2013 to HK$0.940
EA “2-2&£—-f1=H 12 January 2020 BH0.9407T
—ET—=4-fA1+=HE
ZZ-ZF-A+ZH
Personal 333,333 (333,333) - 7May2010 13 January 2011 to HK$0.710
BA “2-ZERALA 6 May 2020 BE0.7107T
“T—%-fAt+=HE
ZZZERARAE
Personal 333,333 (333,333) - 7May2010 13 January 2012 to HK$0.710
HA “2-TERALA 6 May 2020 BE0.7107T
“2——F—f§=RZ
ZZZERARAE
Personal 333,334 (333,334) - 7 May 2010 13 January 2013 to HK$0.710
fAA “Z-Z5AAR+A 6 May 2020 A 0.7107T
=z =5 H=H=
—Z-ZFERARA
Personal 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - 14 September 2010 14 September 2010 to HK$0.375
A “E-ZFN[TIA 27 November 2019 %0375
ZZ-ZENAATHEZE
‘ﬁ—ﬂ¢+ HEaraE
Mr. John Tewksbury BANIGAN ~ Personal 680,723 (680,723) - 13 January 2010 13 January 2011 to HK$0.940
John Tewksbury BANIGAN 64 fHLA “Z-Z5-f1=H 12 January 2020 BH0.9407C
—Z——F-—fA+=R%
—E-F5-ATZH
Personal 680,724 (680,724) - 18 January 2010 13 January 2012 to HK$0.940
A “Z-ZT5-A+=H 12 January 2020 BE0.9407T
“T--f-fAt=RZ
ZZ-TF-A+ZH
Personal 680,724 (680,724) - 13 January 2010 13 January 2013 to HK$0.940
HA —Z-ZF-A+=H 12 January 2020 BH0.9407T
“Z-=f-A+=R%
ZZ-ZF-A+ZH
Sub-total 7,084,342 (7,084,342) -
/N

016 KRMEZRBR A
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ESEWRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRESE e

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1 April at 31 March
2012 2013 Exercise
Nature of R-B-% R-B-=% price
Name interest A—-H Lapsed =A=1—H Date of grant Exercise period per share
pe EEtE I8 RATE P34 HARTE RHAH i d BRITHEE
(HKS)
(%)
Employees and other 5,105,428 = 5,106,428 13 January 2010 15 July 2010 to HK$0.940
participants (Note) —T-TF-f+=A 12 January 2020 B#0.9407T
BB REMBEE (f:F) “Z-Z5tATRAZE
“Z-%5-A+ZH
5,105,427 - 5,105,427 18 January 2010 15 July 2011 to HK$0.940
—E-FF-f+=H 12 January 2020 BE09407T
ZZ——%tATHAZE
“Z-ZF-ATZH
895,630 (374,765) 520,865 13 January 2010 13 January 2011 to HK$0.940
“2-T5-A+=H 12 January 2020 #0940 7T
—2——%-fA+=HE
“E-Z4-ATZH
895,631 (374,766) 520,865 13 January 2010 13 January 2012 to HK$0.940
“Z-T5-A+=H 12 January 2020 BH0.9407T
“E—§-ft=HE
ZZ-TF-A+ZH
895,633 (374,766) 520,867 13 January 2010 13 January 2013 to HK$0.940
“F-TF-f+=A 12 January 2020 B 0.9407T
—F-—=%-f+=HZ
:T_TE Flar=E
5,105,427 - 5,105,427 7 May 2010 15 July 2010 to HK$0.710
“2-FERALA 6 May 2020 BE0.7107T
“Z-Z4tATRAZ
—E-FERARHA
5,105,428 - 5,105,428 7 May 2010 15 July 2011 to HK$0.710
“2-ZFRALA 6 May 2020 BE0.10T
“E——&+A+HEAR
“E-ZTFRANA
832,938 (652,073) 280,865 7 May 2010 13 January 2011 to HK$0.710
“Z-2ERAtA 6 May 2020 B%0.7107T
- Tf*i H ﬂ“ =[5z
“Z-ZFRARA
144,935 (144,935) - 7May2010 7 May 2011 to HK$0.710
“T-TFRALH 6 May 2020 &0
“Z——5RAtAZE
ZZZERARA
832,938 (552,073) 280,865 7 May 2010 13 January 2012 to HK$0.710
—T-TFRALA 6 May 2020 BE0.7107T
E S e A = HE
ZZTERARA
144,935 (144,935) - 7 May 2010 7 May 2012 to HK$0.710
“Z-T5RAtA 6 May 2020 BE0.7107T
“E-Z¥7AtHEE
“E-ZSFRANA
832,942 (652,075) 280,867 7 May 2010 13 January 2013 to HK$0.710
“Z-2ERAtHA 6May 2020 BE0.7107T
144,935 (144,935) - 7May2010 Tt May 2013 to HK$0.710
—2-ZFRA+A 6May 2020 BE0.7107T
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ESEWRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

B ESTE e

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1 April at 31 March
2012 2013 Exercise
Nature of R-E--% RZB-=% price
Name interest MA—H Lapsed =HA=1—H Dateof grant Exercise period per share
i3 BEtE i RATE BAK HATE RiEH ke BRTEE
(HKS)
(%)
Employees and other 1,433,333 - 1,433,333 18 February 2011 16 December 2011 to HK$0.420
participants (Not) (continued) “2——%ZA+NH 17 February 2021 75042070
BB REMBEE (H7)(E) —T——%+ZA+rBE
=E ==
1,433,333 = 1,433,333 18 February 2011 16 December 2012 to HK$0.420
“E——%ZAtNH 17 February 2021 750,420 7T
“Z--FtZAtARAZE
“Z--f”A++H
1,433,334 = 1,433,334 18 February 2011 16 December 2013 to HK$0.420
—2——%_fA+N\H 17 February 2021 B 0.4207T
“E-=£+-A+KREE
B AttH
62,552,500 (51,352,500) 11,200,000 14 September 2010 14 September 2010 to HK$0.375
ZE-TENATER 27 November 2019 03757
“E-TENATHEAE
“Z-NE+-AZTtH
Sub-total 92,894,727 (54,567,823) 38,326,904
/N
Total 99,979,069 (61,652,165) 38,326,904
a5t
Notes: K

1.

018

Ms. Loh and Ms. FLETCHER Yurk Nam, Sandy resigned as Directors of the Company
on 15 February 2013 and 1 March 2013 respectively. The details of the outstanding
options held by them during the year ended 31 March 2013 were accounted for and
described under the heading “Employees and other participants”.

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were
granted on 13 January 2010 was HK$0.950.

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were
granted on 7 May 2010 was HK$0.700.

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were
granted on 14 September 2010 was HK$0.385.

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were
granted on 18 February 2011 was HK$0.415.

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH

Slzok Nt B e Rl i s - = o= = S
R-F—=F=ZA—HEEARREZEY - KF
RBE_Z—=F=A=+—HLFEMFEZH
ATEBREFBFER [EEREMB2EE | JIRR

BORERBERER_Z-—TF-A+=ARHEE
HATZ WM ERE0.950 7T

BPRBEEBREA_Z—ZSFRALERLEER
Al 2 W {E R 7E¥0.700 7T °

BONREXBERER_Z-—TFALATHAREE
HATZ ¥ HERE0.385TT -

BRPRBEEBREA-_S—F A+ \BRLEE
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Report of Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Purposes

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any Invested Entity and to provide incentives or rewards to Eligible
Participants (as defined below) for their contribution to the Group.

Eligible Participants

Any employees (whether full time or part time), directors (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors)
of any members of the Group or any Invested Entity, any customer,
supplier of goods and services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity and such other persons or entities (“Eligible
Participants”) who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed
or will contribute to the growth and development of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares (i.e. 670,236,433 Shares) which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme represented 10% of the total number of
issued Shares as at the date of passing the ordinary resolution on 11
April 2012 (being the date on which the mandate limit of the Share
Option Scheme was refreshed) and represented approximately 8.1%
of the total number of issued Shares of the Company as at the date of
this report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted in any 12-month
period to:

(i) each Eligible Participant must not exceed 1% of the total number
of Shares in issue; and

(ii) a substantial shareholder of the Company or an independent
non-executive director must not exceed 0.1% of the total number
of Shares in issue and not exceed HK$5 million in aggregate
value.

Period within which the Shares must be taken up under
an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on which it
is granted or such shorter period as the Board may specify at the time
of grant.
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ESEWRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

() Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held
No minimum period for which the option has to be held before it can be
exercised is specified in the Share Option Scheme.

(g) Period open for acceptable of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance
An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant
within 28 days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptable of the offer of grant
of an option.

(h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an option
The exercise price must be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant; (i) the average closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal value
of a Share.

() Validity of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 27
November 2019 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 90.8% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 84.2%. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 78.2% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier amounted to
30.5%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates or any
Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers.

020 KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH

BREE )
H MESEBEREZHREHE(WE)

BRI EEEITEA AR B ER
W2 R o

(0 BRETHEANBRNEZEARE
f$25E
RERZEETABRERLZZANRE
“tNABARMERERLER BZAB
B i R A ST (B 1.007T

(h) EEEREIBEEZEE
TEERIABATEEZESE ()R
AR B BB X T B RERFHIK
HE: (\EHREERH AR REL %
AR T8 B RERAH THURTE
R (i) BRI EIE ©

() BRESEZENEN

B R SR AR AT B B BT AR LD - AR
BB ABTE  BRZF-NE+— A
—+tAEE-

BEEEH

RER - HER R F 2 BRAEATR AN EH
ZEBRITHREBRILHRTBEAEL

TREFRHEER
RER  AEERAREF 2 HEBEENBEE
BH0.8% - Kb BAES 2 HEREENBH
E584.0% - AARE T A G MR 2 KBRS
PUBIRAB 40 78.2% - AP BA (B 2 RIHE
{54 OB BRI 30.5% ©

BEEENREZSENEMBEALLRESH
RAFEBARREBITRAEIBE% < EAIARR
RASBREREF KR/ REAHEETHEE E0]

T -



Report of Directors

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The subsequent events are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
were audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe Horwath”) who
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for reappointment at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

ZHOU JING
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2013
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAEEE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. ZHOU Jing

Ms. ZHOU Jing, aged 38, joined the Group in January 2013 as an Executive
Director and a member of the executive committee (“Executive Committee”)
of the Board of the Company and subsequently she was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board of the Company and acted as the chairman of the
Executive Committee. Ms. Zhou graduated from a university in the PRC with
a bachelor’s degree majoring in accounting and was awarded with Certified
Public Accountant qualification in the PRC in 2002. She worked in an imports
and exports company responsible for foreign trade accounting and has also
joined an accountant firm as a shareholder and carries out her duties in
auditing and asset valuation. Ms. Zhou has more than 10 years’ experience in
international trade accounting and corporate financial management. Ms. Zhou
is also an independent non-executive director of Perception Digital Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1822). Ms. Zhou was an executive director of Yun Sky
Chemical (International) Holdings Limited (currently known as King Stone
Energy Group Limited) (stock code: 663), and resigned in February 2010.
Save as disclosed above, Ms. Zhou did not hold any other directorships in
any other publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not have
any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company. Ms. Zhou is not a director or
employee of a company which has an interest in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, “SFO”).

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming, aged 49, joined the Group in January 2013 as an
Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee. Mr. Mung
has more than 20 years’ experience in property and car park management.
He has accumulated extensive concept in the operation management from
his operation in different industries. Mr. Mung worked in various industries
including property trading, financing, wedding witnesses, club management,
car park operation and foot massage etc. Mr. Mung is the chairman of Eli Car
Park Ltd. and director of Pure Massage Group Ltd and is also an executive
director of Perception Digital Holdings Limited (stock code: 1822). He devotes
himself in charity and was elected as the member of the sixth standing
committee of the Overseas Congress of Yue Xiu District of Guangzhou,
member of the forth standing committee of the Overseas Congress of Qingxin
District of Qingyuan, member of Friends of Qing Yuan Association (H.K.)
Ltd. and founding chairman of International Industry and Commerce Experts
Association Ltd. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Mung did not hold any other
directorships in any other publicly listed companies in the last three years and
does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management
or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Mung is not a
director or employee of a company which has an interest in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAEBE

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN, aged 46, joined the Group in January 2013
as an Independent Non-Executive Director. He is also the chairman and a
member of each of the audit committee (“Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) of the Board of the Company. Mr. Jacobsen is the
managing director of a licensed corporation to advise on corporate finance
matters. He has more than 20 years of experience in corporate finance
and business development. Mr. Jacobsen is an executive director of Auto
ltalia Holdings Limited (formerly known as Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited,
stock code: 720) and is also an independent non-executive director of
HyComm Wireless Limited (stock code: 499), abc Multiactive Limited (stock
code: 8131), China Financial Leasing Group Limited (stock code: 2312)
and Perception Digital Holdings Limited (stock code: 1822). He was also an
independent non-executive director of King Stone Energy Group Limited (stock
code: 663) for the period from 26 September 2008 to 30 September 2011.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Jacobsen did not hold any other directorships
in any other publicly listed companies in the last three years and does
not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Jacobsen is not
a director or employee of a company which has an interest in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAEEE

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. WU Wang Li, aged 38, joined the Group in January 2013 as an
Independent Non-Executive Director. He is also a member of each of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He obtained his bachelor of commerce degree from Deakin
University, and has over 14 years of experience in auditing and accounting
profession and consulting services. Mr. Wu is a director of Skywise
Consultants Limited and is admitted to the status of Certified Practicing
Accountant of CPA Australia. Currently, Mr. Wu is the director of Skywise
Consultants Limited and an independent non-executive director of HyComm
Wireless Ltd (stock code: 499) since December 2007. He was appointed
as an independent non-executive director on several listed companies in
main board and growth enterprise market in Hong Kong. He has appropriate
accounting and related financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules by virtue of his experience in accounting
and financial consulting services. Mr. Wu was the independent non-
executive director of Hao Wen Holdings Limited (formerly known as Everpride
Biopharmaceutical Company Limited) (stock code: 8019), King Stone Energy
Group Limited (formerly known as Yun Sky Chemical (International) Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 663) and Talent Property Group Limited (formerly known
as Tomorrow International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 760) and resigned
in July 2009, January 2010 and January 2011 respectively. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Wu did not hold any other directorships in any other publicly listed
companies in the last three years and does not have any relationship with any
other Directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company. Mr. Wu is not a director or employee of a company which
has an interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. NG Wai Hung

Mr. NG Wai Hung, aged 49, joined the Group in February 2013 as an
Independent Non-Executive Director. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
He is a practising solicitor and a partner in lu, Lai & Li, a Hong Kong firm of
solicitors. Mr. Ng practises in the areas of securities law, corporate law and
commercial law in Hong Kong. Mr. Ng is also an independent non-executive
director of six companies listed on Stock Exchange, namely Fortune Sun
(China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 352), Gome Electrical Appliances
Holding Limited (stock code: 493), HyComm Wireless Limited (stock code:
499), Trigiant Group Limited (stock code: 1300), Perception Digital Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1822) and Tech Pro Technology Development Limited
(stock code: 3823). Mr. Ng was also an independent non-executive director
of Yun Sky Chemical (International) Holdings Limited (currently known as
King Stone Energy Group Limited, stock code: 663), KTP Holdings Limited
(currently known as Ares Asia Limited, stock code: 645) and Tomorrow
International Holdings Limited (currently known as Talent Property Group
Limited, stock code: 760) and resigned in February 2010, February 2011 and
January 2012, respectively. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ng did not hold
any other directorships in any other publicly listed companies in the last three
years and does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.
Mr. Ng is not a director or employee of a company which has an interest in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jairo Alfonso RAMOS SUAREZ

(Vice President of Field Operations)

Mr. Jairo Alfonso RAMOS SUAREZ, aged 41, is the vice president of field
operations of the Group. He joined the Group in November 2009. Mr.
Ramos Suarez is a trained mechanical engineer, has more than 16 years
of experience in production, maintenance programming, quality control,
mechanical design, marketing and procurement in tropical timber products
and other materials. Mr. Ramos Suarez was in charge of trading of forest
products for a private Columbian company in Shanghai, China from 2006 to
2008. Mr. Ramos Suarez is responsible for the field operations in Acre. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Ramos Suarez did not hold any other directorships in
any other publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not have
any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Ramos Suarez is not a director
or employee of a company which has an interest in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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CREARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company has applied the
principles of, and complied with, the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“the CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, except for the deviations mentioned below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The roles of the chairman (“Chairman”) and the chief executive (“CE”)
of the Company are segregated and are clearly defined to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibilities. The Chairman is
responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall business development
policies while the CE is responsible for the implementation of major decisions
of the Board and overall management of the Group’s businesses.

On 6 April 2011, Mr. LEUNG Chau Ping, Paul was re-designated from the
position as an executive director of the Company to a non-executive director
and resigned as the CE. Since then and to up the date of this report, the
position of the CE has not been appointed. Since the beginning of the current
financial year, Mr. John Tewksbury BANIGAN acted as the Chairman. On
17 January 2013, Mr. John Tewksbury BANIGAN resigned as the Chairman
and Ms. ZHOU Jing was appointed as the Chairman. During the current
financial year when no CE was appointed, the functions of the CE have been
performed by the Executive Directors with the assistance of the management
of the Company. The Board considers that such structure does not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Company. The Board will however regularly review the effectiveness
of this structure to ensure that such structure is appropriate in view of the
Group’s prevailing circumstances.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and non-
executive directors should attend general meetings. However, Mr. John
Tewksbury BANIGAN, Mr. KEUNG Paul Hinsum and Mr. Donald Smith
WORTHLEY were unable to attend the special general meeting held in Hong
Kong on 11 April 2012 and Mr. KEUNG Paul Hinsum and Mr. William Keith
JACOBSEN were unable to attend the annual general meeting held in Hong
Kong on 5 February 2013 as they were absent from Hong Kong or had
another business engagement.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure that it continues to meet the requirements under the Code Provisions.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2013, the Board comprised five Directors in total, with two
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Executive Directors:
Ms. ZHOU Jing (Chairman)
(appointed on 4 January 2013)
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming
(appointed on 4 January 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN
(appointed on 4 January 2013)
Mr. WU Wang Li
(appointed on 17 January 2013)
Mr. NG Wai Hung
(appointed on 8 February 2013)

Ms. LOH Jiah Yee, Katherine and Ms. FLETCHER Yurk Nam, Sandy resigned
as Executive Directors on 15 February 2013 and 1 March 2013 respectively.
Mr. John Tewksbury BANIGAN, Mr. KEUNG Paul Hinsum and Donald Smith
WORTHLEY resigned as Independent Non-Executive Directors on 17 January
2013, 8 February 2013 and 17 January 2013 respectively.

There is no family or other material relationship (including financial and
business) among members of the Board. Composition of the Board
including the names and categories of Directors, is set out on page 2. The
brief biographical details of each Director are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to
25. Each Director possesses the necessary expertise and experience and
provides checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the Group
and the Shareholders as a whole. The Company has during the year ended
31 March 2013 maintained a balanced board composition.

During the year, the Independent Non-Executive Directors provided the Group
with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their active participation in
the Board and committee meetings brought independent judgment on issues
relating to the Group’s strategy, performance and management process,
taking into account the interests of all Shareholders.

During the year under review, the Company has three Independent Non-
Executive Directors representing not less than one-third of the Board. One
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, being Mr. WU Wang Li, has
the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors a written confirmation of his independence and has satisfied itself of
such independence up to the approval date of this report in accordance with
the independent guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis
of at least four times a year to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and approve
the Group’s annual and interim results. Board members are provided with
all agendas and adequate information for their review at least 3 days before
the meetings. After the meeting, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes of board meetings
and meetings of board committees are kept by the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) and are available for inspection by any
Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice. Each Director is entitled
to seek independent professional advice under appropriate circumstances at
the expense of the Company. During the year, 22 physical Board meetings
were held by way of telephone conference and 2 written resolutions for
separate matters signed by all Directors were passed. Attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings is set out in the paragraph headed “Board
Committees” below.

Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation of Work

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the development of the
Group with the goal of maximizing Shareholders’ value in the long run. The
Board also takes the responsibility for the overall strategies and policies of the
Group, approves and monitors the strategic plans, investment and funding
decisions, and reviews the Group’s financial and operational performance.
The Group’s day-to-day operations and administration are overseen by the
Executive Directors and the management.

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and policies of
the Group and supervising our management. Some functions including the
monitoring and approval of material transactions, matters involving a conflict
of interest for a substantial Shareholder or Director of the Company, the
approval of the interim and annual results and other disclosures to the public
or regulators are reserved by the Board for consideration and approval.
Matters not specially reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily
management and operation of the Company are delegated to the Executive
Committee and management of the Company.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Directors are fully insured under the directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance policy for indemnification against costs, charges, losses, expenses
and liabilities that may be incurred by them in the execution and discharge of
their duties.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All members of the Board have participated in continuous professional
development through internal training provided by the Company on various
areas including, but not limited to, the connected transaction, the Model
Code and the duties and responsibilities of Directors, so as to ensure that
they have appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Group as well as fully aware of the responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from the
Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her appointment, including
materials briefly describing the operations and business of the Company
and the latest published financial reports of the Company. Directors will be
continuously updated on any major developments of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

All Non-Executive Directors of the Company were appointed for a specific
term of 2 years but subject to the relevant provisions of the Bye-laws or any
other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office but eligible for re-election.

According to the Bye-laws, each Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall be subject to re-election at the next following general meeting or until
the next following AGM in case of an addition to the Board and shall then be
eligible for re-election at such meeting. Moreover, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not greater than one-third), shall retire from office
by rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term but excluding those holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Every Director holding the office of Chairman or Managing Director
shall be subject to re-election once every three years. The rotating Directors
who are subject to retirement and re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set
out on page 11.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director are available and accessible on the Company’s website at
http://www.susfor.com

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established four board committees, namely the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs and to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All board
committees have clear and specific written terms of reference and they report
their work to the Board after each meeting. Copies of minutes of all meetings
and resolutions passed at the board committees are kept by the Company
Secretary.

Executive Committee

As at 31 March 2013 and the date of this report, the Executive Committee
comprised Ms. ZHOU Jing (chairman of the Executive Committee) and Mr.
MUNG Wai Ming. The Executive Committee was established with specific
written terms of reference to, among other duties, implement, review and give
recommendations to the Board on the daily operation of the Group from the
time to time. The Executive Committee held 22 meetings during the year. The
attendance records of each member are set out on page 32.
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Audit Committee

As at 31 March 2013 and the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprised three members, namely Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN (chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. WU Wang Li and Mr. NG Wai Hung and all of
them are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee was
established with specific written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. On 27 March 2012, the Board has resolved that the
responsibility to perform the corporate governance functions as set out in
the CG Code be delegated to the Audit Committee. The principle role and
functions of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the Company’s
financial reporting and internal control systems. The Audit Committee also
provides an important link between the Board and the Company’s external
auditors in matters within the scope of the financial audit of the Group.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 3 physical meetings by way of
telephone conference together with management and the external auditors.
The attendance records of each member are set out on page 32. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, reviewed the financial statements for the interim and final
results for the year ended 31 March 2013 and discussed the internal controls
together with the management.

The Audit Committee and the Board have not taken a different view regarding
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors of
the Company.

To comply with the new requirements under the CG Code in respect of
responsibilities for performing the corporate governance duties, the Board
has delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee to develop and
review the Company’s policy and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
to review and monitor the Company’s policy and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 March 2013 and the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprised Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. WU Wang Li and Mr. NG Wai Hung. The
Remuneration Committee was established with specific written terms of
reference to, among other duties, review and give recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration policy of the Directors and senior management.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The remuneration of all
the Directors and senior management is monitored by the Remuneration
Committee. To determine the emoluments of Directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries of directors
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no Director is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 physical meetings by way of telephone conference. The
attendance records of each member are set out on page 32. During the
year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the existing
remuneration policy and packages of all existing Directors. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration for the year under review are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 March 2013 and the date of this report, the member of Nomination
Committee comprised Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. WU Wang Li and Mr. NG Wai Hung. The
Nomination Committee was established with specific written terms of
reference to, among other duties, give recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment, re-appointment and
succession planning for the Board members. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Nomination Committee has the responsibility to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board. It is also responsible
for assessing the independence of independent non-executive directors
and making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors. During the year, the Nomination Committee held 2 physical
meetings by way of telephone conference. The attendance records of
each member are set out on page 32. During the year under review, the
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board.
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The individual attendance records of each Director at the physical meetings of
the Board, Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee and at the general meeting of the Company

during the year ended 31 March 2013 are set out below: HE sk AT ¢

BE-T- =F=H=+—HIFE
REFE WITZEE BRZEE FHZE
SRRAZEEEBUARERRBRAE 2 @5

Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure

 BEE

RERBALRE/ BTz e88A
Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
£33 Ese #fzBE®  $#RZEE  §MZEE  REZEE EIN-1
Ms. ZHOU Jing FEres 57 11 N/A N/A N/A 11
(Appointed on 4 January 2013) (RZZ-=5—AMBEZH) TEH TEA TEA
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming SEHRELE i 11 N/A N/A N/A 11
(Appointed on 4 January 2013) (R=2-=5-PERAEZ{) @A @A @A
Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN William Keith JACOBSEN %4 1 N/A 00 1/ 11 0
(Appointed on 4 January 2013) (RZZ-=4—ANBEZF) TER
Mr. WU Wang Li RELESLA 4/5 N/A 0/0 1/1 11 11
(Appointed on 17 January 2013) (R=EB-=5-A+LREZM) @A
Mr. NG Wai Hung REHEE 2/3 N/A 0/0 11 11 0/0
(Appointed on 8 February 2013) (R=Z-=%-_A/\BEZf) TEH
Ms. LOH Jiah Yee, Katherine SRETT 18/19 21/21 N/A N/A N/A 12
(Resigned on 15 February 2013) (R-Z-=5_A+RAFML) TR TR TR
Ms. FLETCHER Yurk Nam, Sandy ZERNL 19/22 21/21 N/A N/A N/A 1/2
(Resigned on 1 March 2013) (R=Z—=2=R—HE{) TR TR TR
Mr. LI Zhixiong FEMRE 9/18 N/A N/A N/A N/A 02
(Resigned on 5 February 2013) (R=E-=FE-FRRE{E) @A @A @A TR
Mr. LEUNG Siu Hung, Joel RIEHEEE N/A N/A N/A N/A 072
(Resigned on 8 February 2013) (R=Z-=%-F\BEH) 1/18 TER TEA TEA TEA
Mr. SHIH Chiu, David G 6/10 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0
(Resigned on 30 September 2012) (R=Z--FNA=THEE) TR TR TER TR
Mr. John Tewksbury BANIGAN John Tewksbury BANIGAN /&4 13/16 N/A 2/3 11 il 0/
(Resigned on 17 January 2013) (R=F-=%-A++BEfE) @A
Mr. KEUNG Paul Hinsum ZEREE 918 N/A 2/3 11 11 072
(Resigned on 8 February 2013) (R=E—=5£-A\BEE) NER
Mr. Donald Smith WORTHLEY Donald Smith WORTHLEY % & 16/16 N/A 33 11 11 0N
(Resigned on 17 January 2013) (RZF—=F—-RTtHEH) @A
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
March 2013.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2013, in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Listing Rules. In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors have adopted IFRSs and suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistency, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
No material uncertainties relating to any events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
were identified by the Directors during the course of preparing and reviewing
the financial statements for the year under review.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 36 to 38.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the fees in respect of audit and non-
audit services provided to the Group by the external auditors amounted to
approximately HK$1,088,000 (2012: HK$1,326,000) and HK$718,000 (2012:
HK$600,000), respectively. The non-audit service fee mainly consisted of fees
in relation to reviewing the interim report and results of the Group for the six-
months ended 30 September 2012.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system
of internal control. The internal control system helps to ensure effective
measures are in place to protect the Group’s assets and maintain the
accounting records and the compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations.

During the financial year under review, the Board has reviewed operational
and financial reports in order to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the
internal control system through the Audit Committee.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to provide its Shareholders accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group via the publication
of annual reports, announcements and circulars as well as through the
Company’s website. On 27 March 2012, the Board resolved to adopt a
Shareholders’ communication policy. The policy aims to set out the provisions
with the objective of ensuring that the company’s Shareholders, both
individual and institutional Shareholders, and, in appropriate circumstances,
the investment community at large, are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the Company
and its subsidiaries (including its financial performance, strategic goals and
plans and governance, etc.), in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise
their rights in an informed manner, and to allow the Shareholders and the
investment community to engage actively with the Company.

The AGM is a useful forum for the Board to communicate directly with the
Shareholders. The Directors, senior executives and external auditors make
their best effort to attend the AGM of the Company to answer any questions
from the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Shareholders can submit a requisition to convene a special general meeting
pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Act”).
The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall be representing
not less than one-tenth of the Company’s paid-up capital as at the date of
requisition having the right to vote at the general meeting.

The written requisition must:
—  state the purposes of the special general meeting;

— be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one or several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists); and

— be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a special general meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, any themselves convene a special general
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the said date.
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Corporate Governance Report

Procedure for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Shareholders can submit a requisition to move a resolution at an annual
general meeting pursuant to Section 79 of the Act. The number of
Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall be:

= representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all Shareholders having at the date of requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates; or

— not less than 100 Shareholders.
The written requisition must:

= state the resolution, with a statement not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the meeting;

— be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one or several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists);

— be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the meeting
in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition; and

—  be deposited with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the resolution and circulating the
statements of the proposed resolution to all Shareholders in
accordance with the requirements under the applicable laws and rules.

Enquires to the Board

The Company’s website provides email address and telephone to enable the
Shareholders to make any enquiries and concerns to the Board. Shareholders
may send their enquiries by post or by email to the attention of the Company
Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the Board for handling.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 March 2013.

On behalf of the Board

Ms. ZHOU Jing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2013

TERERBE

BRRRBRRASRHBBZEF

RIBEPIFE 7915 - BIRATR I E @B KRBIRE
FRAELRERER - FRAFBIBRBAE :

- ARZBERERLBEMEREZEHELRR
MABRROBRRETIR -tz —:
%

ALR100HALR -

—  FEREER  ER—MTER1,000F - B
HEBRARRZEEIBN S LEEZSE
T2 R E

— RABEFLALREZ(B—RBHZHFRA
ITERER DB RAEBAXMAR)

- WMBZERBRBINER  TLIRKE
A6 A2z - mEEMER - AIADR
1 A2 HRRER AR BRI ER - Wl
ABRBEWE &

— GFHaERHSE UENAARIREE
REREREERAMAERRELRER
BRI EHBRA LRI ERFH
Fsz o

HESSRLEN
ARRBUEHAEB U R BFAARKRRAES
SREEMEALEE - RRANBTRERT
ARARBRWERZXEH  RAWESBERANES
ERE A IAMERIEE

BEXH
BE-T-=F=A=+—HILEE ARAZ
BE XL RETRS -

RREZE

*E
Azt

BB —E—=F~A=tN\H

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012/2013 035



Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZEARE

A\ Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sustainable Forest
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 39 to 179, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

(a) Limitation of scope on prior year’s scope limitation

affecting corresponding figures

As explained in our report dated 20 December 2012 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2012, included in inventories of approximately HK$65,628,000 in the
consolidated statement of financial position was a sum of inventories
amounted to HK$29,989,000 which do not have subsequent sale
up to the report dated for the year ended 31 March 2012, and no
reliable information about the net realizable value of these inventories
was available; and we did not observe the counting of physical
inventories amounting to approximately HK$1,425,000; and for the
part the inventories held by the third parties of HK$2,496,000, direct
confirmation from consignee had not been obtained; and amounting
HK$2,951,000 transferred from the biological assets to inventories
during the year 2012 and the amounts of inventories HK$1,781,000
being written down in the consolidated income statement in 2012,
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence or to
carry out alternative audit procedures that we considered necessary
to assess the valuation, existence, accuracy and completeness of
the inventories as at 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 and the related
impact on the Group’s result attributable to the equity owners for the
year ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013. Consequently, we
were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts
were necessary. Any adjustments found to be necessary to the opening
balances as at 1 April 2012 may materially affect the Group’s result
attributable to the equity owners for the year ended 31 March 2013
and the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
with respect to the inventories.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZEARE

(b) Scope limitation — Trade and other payables

Included in the trade and other payables of approximately
HK$79,401,000 in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2013 was trade payable of approximately HK$40,293,000
which was subject to an interest of 1% per month for overdue
payment. During the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2011, the related trade creditor confirmed
that no interest was billed to the Group. Therefore, the Group did
not accrue interest for overdue payment. For 2012 and 2013 year
audit, the Group represented that the trade creditor did not bill any
interest for the overdue payment. However, due to the non-reply to our
confirmation request, absence of new information of the trade creditor,
and no sufficient appropriate audit evidence to prove that no interest
was required to be accrued, there were no other alternative audit
procedures that we could carry out to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to verify the existence, completeness and valuation of
the trade payable as at 31 March 2013 and 2012. Accordingly, we
were unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether these amounts were
fairly stated in the financial statements as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

Our audit opinion on the Group’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2012 was also qualified accordingly.

QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 June 2013

Alvin Yeung Sik Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05206
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Consolidated Income Statement

RE R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7# 251)

2013 2012
== _=fF T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt BT BT T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREEK
REVENUE A 7 76,550 115,616
Cost of sales SHE R AR (67,302) (118,423)
GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS) E7(£#8) 9,248 (2,807)
Other income HAa A 8 122,962 4,124
Other net loss H B 18558 8 (9,618) (274,484)
Selling and distribution costs HE RO A (10,398) (18,543)
Administrative expenses TS (61,040) (107,175)
Loss on business disruption ¥BTE S 9 = (335,641)
Other operating expenses H 2 ER Y 10 (47,546) (1,519,271)
Change in fair value of biological assets EMEEANTELEM
less costs to sell SHERA 21 (482,190) (150,419)
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS REER (478,582) (2,404,216)
Finance income EEUWA 5,332 486
Finance costs MEEH (16,571) (15,790)
Net finance costs MEEBRFHE 11(a) (11,239) (15,304)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION ERFi AT BT 11 (489,821) (2,419,520)
Income tax FiSHe 14(a) 163,145 87,105
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM HEREXKZ
CONTINUING OPERATIONS EERR (326,676) (2,332,415)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRI
Profit for the year from discontinued operation BRIEER 2 FE R A 15 = 4,503
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEE (326,676) (2,327,912
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: PEh
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZE DN (326,601) (2,327,909)
Non-controlling interests FEPEIR AR R = (75) ©)
(326,676) (2,327,912)
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners EEXBUTEBEZRATEEA
of the Company arises from: FE1L (B518), %A
Continuing operations B EETS (326,601) (2,332,419)
Discontinued operation EARIEFER = 4,506
(326,601) (2,327,909)
Loss per share SRER
From continuing and discontinued operations REFELEEBRERIES 18
— Basic — HEAK (4.85) cents i  (41.19) cents 1l
— Diluted — s (4.85) cents flll  (41.19) cents 1l
From continuing operations REFECEER 18
-= [BEgite = G (4.85) cents fili  (41.27) cents 1Ll
— Diluted — B8 (4.85) cents i (41.27) cents 1l

The notes on pages 48 to 179 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

Z—H#5 -

FA8EEF TR LM AWK U ESRE MRS

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012/2013 039




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EmHWER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA # 271))

2013 2012
=r—= S T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE BEET T BT IT
Loss for the year FEEE (326,676) (2,327,912)
Other comprehensive loss Hith2HEE
Exchange differences on translation of HE G I B R BB RS
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries ~ E4 7 M 5 =58 40 (49,534) (68,659)
Reclassification adjustment for exchange BRLEEINTE AR ZIEN =58
differences relating to disposal of overseas WA=% 1ok L b
subsidiaries 40 - (6,364)
(49,534) (75,023)
Income tax relating to components of BREMEEmKSAKID
other comprehensive income Z PR 14(c) 3 T
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FRHEMPEES  HIBRHE
net of tax (49,534) (75,023)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRE2MEEEER (376,210) (2,402,935)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income DFALTEMLZE
attributable to: (B18) WA -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ=DN (376,131) (2,402,949)
Non-controlling interests IR A R A (79) 10
(376,210) (2,402,935)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ELXBUTEEZAATERA
attributable to owners of B2 (EBR), W a s
the Company arises from:
Continuing operations SRS T (376,131) (2,407,451)
Discontinued operation B IEFER = 4,506
(376,131) (2,402,945)
The notes on pages 48 to 179 form part of these consolidated financial 5548 B & 5 179 v M sk It Hi5 & B iSRS 2

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BT RS IR L R

At 31 March2013 R —_E—=F=A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7# 251)

2013 2012
2= =E= ks
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Biat T T ST T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment I -~ BB MR 19 190,274 213,306
Intangible assets BmIARE 20 = -
Biological assets EYEE 21 344,172 913,049
Goodwill EES 22 302,118 302,118
Deposit for purchase of property, WHEMZ -~ BE K
plant and equipment Bz ® 24 - -
836,564 1,428,473
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =8 25 4,337 65,628
Trade and other receivables U 5 7k N Ho4th fE W R I8 26 10,583 17,972
Consideration receivable FEWRAE 42 - 208,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 27 216,540 7,760
231,460 299,360
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables FE B 53R IE R HAb S R 28 79,401 212,310
Loans and borrowings BEXREE 29 36,132 25,289
Consideration payables ERRE 31 r =
Finance leases payables FEfT ALY 30 - 100
Provision for taxation TRIEBME 33(a) 50,255 49,456
Financial liabilities MISBE 34 - 6,030
Promissory notes AT EiE 37 6,648 -
172,436 293,185
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 59,024 6,175
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRDEMSE
LIABILITIES 895,588 1,434,648
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR L R

At 31 March2013 R —_ZE—=F=A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA # 271))

2013 2012
—F-= -l mS
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BtaE BEET T BT IT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Loans and borrowings ERREE 29 = 3
Amounts due to shareholders FE S A% B I8 35 231,568 210,874
Amount due to related companies FE(TRE:E R A ZIE 36 3,717 2,048
Finance leases payables FETREE ALY 30 - 250
Promissory notes AT ERE 37 - 6,517
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIBAEE 33(b) 143,296 339,564
378,581 5691268
NET ASSETS BEEZFE 517,007 875,395
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARR#E
Share capital N 38 390,832 384,328
Reserves & 40(a) 126,168 490,981
Total equity attributable to the owners of Z<A F#EH AELAEZ
the Company 517,000 875,309
Non-controlling interests R R R R 40(a) 7 86
TOTAL EQUITY S 517,007 875,395

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 June HEZFER -_ZE—=4F, A =+/\AH# & RiZE

2013. FI4T o

On behalf of the board RREZE
ZHOU Jing MUNG Wai Ming
& EZEL

Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 48 to 179 form part of these consolidated financial 5548 B &% 179 B 2 MisH At Zia & IR E
statements. 287 e
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Statement of Financial Position

B 5 AR O 3%
N /R

At 31 March2013 R —_E—=F=A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7# 251)

2013 2012
—E—=£ SRR s
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaE BT T BT TT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y~ B K& 19 4 22
Interest in subsidiaries B BB A AR 2 23 340,713 936,925
340,717 936,947
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables E b e WSk IE 26 769 3,011
Cash and cash equivalents R RBEeEFEY 27 216,281 2,166
217,050 B, 1
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Other payables HibER IR 28 3,303 7,918
Loans and borrowings BEREEE 29 - 25,206
Financial liabilities MEaE 34 - 6,030
Promissory note AENERE 37 6,648 —
9,951 39,154
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE (BE)FE 207,099 (33,977)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERTBDEMS
LIABILITIES 547,816 902,970
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Promissory notes N 7 - 6,517
NET ASSETS BEFE 547,816 896,453
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXR#E
Share capital &7 38 390,832 384,328
Reserves & 40(b) 156,984 Sl 2255
TOTAL EQUITY RS 547,816 896,453
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 June RESeR —_ZE—=F A=+ /\BH#tERE#E
20)1CH F4T o
On behalf of the board REREZE

ZHOU Jing
B
Director

EE

The notes on pages 48 to 179 form part of these financial statements.

MUNG Wai Ming

ELEL
Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEREER

s 9 ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HiE —ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA # 271))

Aributable to the owners of the Company

Shares held
bythe
Company for
setflement of Retained
acquisiion Exchange Share profits/ Non-
consideration fluctuation opion  (Accumulated controling
Share Share ARRGER Tesene resene losses) nterests Tota
captal pemum  HBRE EXfE BikE RBEH Sub-total TRRE equity
s hEgE  Hihi i BE  (ziER) gt & BEG
Notes HK§ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000
T EETn Mo AT EETn  #Tn BT AETn AT
At 1 Apri 2011 39324 2310765 = 86,674 2311 450000 3266298 76 3256369
Change in equity for 2012
Loss forthe year = = = - - RNy 9 B R
Reclassffication adjustment for exchange
diferences relating to disposal of overseas
subsidaries 2 = = = 6377 = = 6377) 13 (6:364)
Exchange differences on AEINHED
translaton of fnancialstatements If A
of overseas subsidiaries & 5% - - - (68,659) - - 68,659) - (68,659)
Total other comprehensive loss - - - (75,036) - - (75,036) 18 (75,023
Total comprehensive loss or the year RER2AFRES g i - (75.036) - RATNY 4029 10 (4029
Transactions with owners HEENETZRS
Consideraton shares issue for SRENEAR
acquisttion of subsidiaries EARERR 380 20267 137,083 (115920 - - - 41,400 - 41,400
Issuance of shares pursuant o the RERABERARA
equty ine facitty 38) 4 10,772 = = = = 16499 = 15499
Diidends declared inrespect of sl
previous period 16 - - - - - 81,99) (31,996) - (31,996)
Forfefture of share options RAERE - - - - (6751) 6,751 L L L
Sheres ssue Upon exercise of ERREEZARY
share options 38(c) 10 84 - - 2 - n - n
Equity-settled share-Dased payment - - - - 3013 - (3013 - (8013
Totaltransactions with owners 25,004 147909 (115,920 - (a81) 26,245) 21,961 - 2191
At 31 March 2012 RZF-ZF=f=1-H 384328 2458674 (115,920) 11,638 19524 (1,908154) 875,309 86 875,3%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEEESER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7# 251)

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ADTREARL
Shares held
by the
Company for
settlement of
acquisition Distri- Capital  Exchange Share Non-
consideration butable  redemption  fluctuation option controlling
Share Share  AAFFER  Contributed reserve resenve resenve reserve  Accumulated interests Total
capital  premum  WERE supis  WEAK  RARE  EXED BHE losses  Sub-total  FERER equity
R RHEE  fkRE @ E4ER Fi i Ei BE  ZiEE gt BE 8RR
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
i3 ERTn BN EBTn EMTR EBTn EMTn ERTn EMTn BT ERTn BMTR EBTR
At1 April 2012 304328 2,458,674 (115,920) 10,003 2,216 8,000 11,638 19524 (1,903,154 875,309 86 875,395
Change in equity for 2013
Loss for the year - - - - - - - - (326,601) (326,601) (1) (326,676)
Exchange differences on BERAHELR
translation of financial BRSE
statements of overseas subsidiaries EXZE - - - - - - (49,530) - - (49,530) @ (49,534)
Total other comprehensive income EOETION ] - - - - - - 49,530) - - (49,530 (0] (49,534)
Total comprehensive loss for the year REEREHELE - - - - - - 49,530) - (326,601)  (376,131) 1) (376210
Transactions with owners BEEARTIRS
Issuance of shares pursuant RERARERTRG
to the equity lne faciity 3 6504 | | 11667 2 3 . 3 - . -] 1 -] s
Equity-settled share-based payment NRELEZRRHH - - - - - - - (349) - (849) - (349)
Forfeiture of share options RUBRE - - - - - - - (9,321) 9321 - - -
Totaltransactions with owners BRRARTZRAER 6,504 11,667 - - - - - (9670) 9,321 17822 - 1782
At31 March 2013 R=§-z£=A=t-B 300832 2470341 (115,920) 10,008 2,216 8,000 (87,892 9854 (2,220434) 517,000 7 517,007
The notes on pages 48 to 179 form part of these consolidated financial 48 BE % 179 B~ M It £ 454 B H %
statements. Z—85 e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZ -2 —=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA # 271))

2013 2012
=B = ey o
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mz BT T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &% #7535 & i
Loss before taxation bR TR A ETIE
— Continuing operations —FEEEFE (489,821) (2,419,520)
— Discontinued operations —BRIFEK = 4,503
Adjustments for: KT AR
Impairment loss of goodwill EREEE 22 - 1,462,118
Change in loans and borrowings due to FMETBRSER R
decrease in interest rate EE &) = (2,932)
Finance costs mEEA 11(a) 16,571 15,790
Finance income BERA 11(a) (5,332) (486)
Gain on disposal of discontinued HE B RIEER 2 W
operations & = (8,819)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEMEE
plant and equipment ZEE 10 736 733
Write off of property, plant and equipment MEEmZE - WE k& 10 1,686 -
Amortisation B 20 - 2,389
Depreciation e 19 2,300 1,654
Waiver of consideration payable NRFEMARE & - (71,183)
Issuance of financial liabilities EIMBAE 34 = 8,730
Change in fair value of financial liabilities A BEAFEE 34 (6,030) (2,700)
Write down of timber logs WORER AN AR 10, 25 - 1,781
Write down of inventories WREE 10, 25 44,840 =
Write off of timber logs Hh S R AR AR 9,25 - 233,572
Waiver of liabilities by creditors BREARREE 8 (119,603) =
Impairment loss of intangible assets B EEREEE 10 - 45,205
Write off of other receivables i 55 L Atb FE W IR 10 284 9,434
Write off of trade receivables i 55 FE W E S RIR 849 = 413,360
Rental expenses e 8 = 13,745
Exchange difference, net HEHEZFFEE 19,539 22,112
Share-based payment VAR 3 A+ 11(b), () (349) (3,013)
Change in fair value of biological assets EMEEATFEZER
less costs to sell $HE B AN 21 482,190 150,419
Operating loss before changes in R EEESEEAZ
working capital KEEE (52,989) (123,108)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERAL,/(Em) 16,382 (60,761)
Decrease in trade and other receivables FEWE 5 5038 & H Ath fE 5k IR
DA 6,859 a8 ST
(Decrease)/Increase in trade FEAST B 5 R I8 [ Fo M FE A~ 5RIE
and other payables G A,/ (8,814) 17,380
Cash used in operations REEERHES (38,562) (89,132)
Income tax paid ERFTEH
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — BERBEBFER - -
— PRC Enterprise income tax paid — B BEREMER = (20)
- 20)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBRETHZHE
ACTIVITIES (38,562) (89,152)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B E —T—=F=A=+—H L FE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7# 251)
2013 2012
=5 =% =
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
k23 BET T BT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RE&EEERERE
Payment to acquire property, BAME - BE k&
plant and equipment AT 19 (2,689) (6,728)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE BB MEE
plant and equipment FTiS 318 703 2
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2R EmE E5E 42 = (1)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of IWEEH B AR 2 R RAFEE
subsidiaries 41 = 897
Interest received BEYF B 11(@) 5,332 486
Proceeds of consideration received BEWREFSKIE 42 208,000 u
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) BREZTBHRERA(RE) =5
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 211,346 (5,344)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Bt& EBRERE
Loans and borrowings raised FrESERREE 33,000 42,800
Repayment of loans and borrowings EEERLEE (7,118) (7,191)
Advance from shareholders AR BT 24,923 111,688
Advance from a related company —RKEEERNT ﬁ%’ 18,500 2,015
Repayment of amounts due to shareholders E{%‘_;F SRR R K18 (13,393) (46,735)
Repayment of amount due to EEEN—X Eﬁ A RIFRIA
a related company (17,500) -
Interest paid BEARFIE (2,010) (1,088)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon the TP RE AR R BT IR
exercise of share options TS RIA = 71
Interest element of finance lease payments AL F IﬁZf | 2305 (49) (13)
Capital element of finance lease payments REEBAFIEZ §$*B (350) (100)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders EfRARRERERR RS
of the Company - (22,691)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM BETHHEERAZE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 36,003 78,776
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASHAND & R BE S ZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS i, D) FE 208,787 (15,720)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FORERESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,760 23,680
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ExgE s L8
RATE CHANGES (7) (200)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASCRASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 27 216,540 7,760
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRBEEEYEFIM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 27 216,540 7,760
216,540 7,760

The notes on pages 48 to 179 form part of these consolidated financial
statements.

FABAEEFNTI A MEBKILFHRE P BERE
e
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FE

048

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and its ordinary shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office and the
principal place of business is 4/F., Soho Tower, No. 110-118 Caine
Road, Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company comprise tree
felling service; sustainable forest management and investment; trading
and sales of forestry and timber products; manufacturing and sales of
timber products.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements had been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provision of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs which are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 4 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$326,601,000 (2012: HK$2,327,909,000)
and had negative operating cash flows of approximately
HK$38,562,000 (2012: HK$89,152,000) for the year.

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

In preparing these financial statements, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the impact of the
current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group and the ability
of the Group to attain positive cash flow from operations in the
immediate and long term.

In order to strengthen the capital base of the Group and to
improve the Group’s financial position, liquidity and cash flows in
the immediate foreseeable future, and otherwise to sustain the
Group as a going concern, the Group has adopted the following
measures.

The Company completed to issue 1,180,938,718 Shares through
the open offer at the subscription price of HK$0.0534 per offer
share on the basis of one offer share for every six existing shares
held with an issue of one bonus share warrant for every offer
share subscribed.

The Company also completed to issue 215,525,161 convertible
preferred share (the “CPS”) through the open offer at the
subscription price of HK$0.0100125 per offer CPS on the basis
of one offer CPS for every six existing CPS held with one bonus
CPS warrant for every offer CPS allotted and issued.

The open offers were completed on 7 May 2013 and
approximately HK$65 million before expenses were raised.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, in light of the
measures taken to date, together with the expected results
of other measures in progress, the Group will have sufficient
working capital for its current requirements. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company consider that it is appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the values of
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to classify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities respectively. The effects
of these potential adjustments have not been reflected in the
financial statements.

3. FEEHHEEE®)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

050

(@

KRMEZERBRD A

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2013 comprise the Group.

[tems included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), rounded to the nearest thousand except
for per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the biological
assets and the warrants are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out in Note 3(g).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs

that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
source of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 5.

—EB- /CE-=5FHK
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealized profits arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the owners of
the Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

3. FEEHHEEE®)

(b)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

052

(b)

(©)

KRMEZERARRE —T—

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (Please
refer to Note 3(i)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of business are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

° a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination
and the potential tax effects of temporary differences and
carryforwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition
date or arise as a result of the acquisition are recognised
and measured in accordance with IAS12 Income Taxes;

/B FFR
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3. FEEHHEEE®)

(c) Business combinations (continued) (c) EKa/E

° assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with IAS 19 Employee Benefits;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
of acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on
the basis specified in another IFRS.

s HEBRMNZHBHIEEN
BE - HIREER S ERE
1955 B S 15 MR METE

. BRI BB N Bl 2 AR D I R
Prok BL AR = @ 2 LARR 7 15 5%
ZHEE A W EE A7) 2 A
NREZHEBzaBEHBRAT
B T YHE B EAAR 15 B PR B 75
s LRI 3B 2 5% DA AR 17 19 3 5T
2 K

o REBERMBHESEAFESR
FFIEFEFRBEER KL
EBERIBRBEHEZEE
(KR EEE) IREZE R

= S

BERUMERERRE wEBEHh2E
] FEFR AR R M 2 & BRUIA S B 77 1%
NERFA 2R IRE 2 AFE
(A7) 2 M - BH KB R R E
EEMAER ERWEE B B 2 FREr
EHAE - WEENGEE - AW
AT BRI A A B AR B AR UEE B
ZFEBHAEEAE KRBT 2
EASEE R R E S & A R
TRERAZRET S 2 A FE
(ang) 2 &M - RIZFRAIRR B ET
ERAEEEE WS

BREGAERRRETERSA AR
MRBRRZLLAID(EERFEEZ
FEFER AR 2 A ) SR D FE K FE
PR AR SR A 2 D A AR B U T R I
BECHISBILIIFE - TEE
ERFHRAXZHMELRE - B
B IR R S AR A E SR
BRI 75 ¥R 5 ZE QU RT B 2 22 (3@
R)FE -

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012/2013 053



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

054

()

KRMEZERBRD A

Business combinations (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the
Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognized in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(Please refer to the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If some
or all of the goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit was
acquired in a business combination during the current annual
period, that unit shall be tested for impairment before the end of
the current annual period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment
Freehold lands are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of freehold land acquired in a business combination is the
fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Freehold land and construction in progress are not depreciated.

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
(Please refer to Note 3()):

—  furniture and fixtures, machinery, engineering and other
equipment, and motor vehicles

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads
and borrowing costs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

056

(e)

KRMEZERARRE —T—

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimate
useful life as follow:

Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Machinery, engineering and other equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets, other than goodwill, identified on business
combinations are capitalised based on their fair values.

Intangible assets acquired by the Group are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)
and impairment losses (Please refer to Note 3(i)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of patent with finite useful lives is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over its useful lives of 6 years
which will expire on 2 August 2017.

Amortisation of outstanding sales contract with finite useful life
is charged to profit or loss based on the percentage of revenue
recognised on the contract.

Trademark has an indefinite useful life.

Amortisation of timber concession rights with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful lives of 5 to 25 years, which is based on their estimation
of the economic benefits of units of production of forestry and
timber products from the harvest of timber during the period
of concession rights, or the expected useful life of the rights if
shorter. Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Biological assets

Biological assets are living plants involved in the agricultural
activities of the transformation of biological assets into agricultural
produce for sale or into additional biological assets. Biological
assets and agricultural produce are measured at fair value less
costs to sell at initial recognition and at each reporting date. The
fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest is deemed as the
cost of agricultural produce for further processing, if applicable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether

the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exception:

Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or

taken over from the previous lessee.

(i)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included in property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities,
net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Company or Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in Note 3(e). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in Note
3(i). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for

each accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as an expense in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

() Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtors.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

060

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

()

Impairment of receivables (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 3(i)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
in accordance with note 3(i)(ii).

For trade receivables and other current receivables
and other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decrease and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

()

(i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;
— intangible assets; and

—  goodwill
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

062

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying amount
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
Financial Reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(Please refer to notes 3(i)(i) and (ii).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill and available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the
end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and not profit
or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

064

0)

(k)

()

KRMEZERBRD A

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,
is determined on the first-in first-out basis. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see Note 3(j)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Preferred share capital

(n)

(0)

(P)

Preferred share capital is classified as equity if it is non-
redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s option, and
any dividends are discretionary. Dividends on preference share
capital classified as equity are recognised as distributions within
equity.

Preferred share capital is classified as a liability if it is redeemable
on a specific date or at the option of the shareholders, or
if dividend payments are not discretionary. The liability is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policy for interest-
bearing borrowings set out in Note 3(l) and accordingly dividends
thereon are recognised on an accruals basis in profit or loss as
part of finance costs.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with Note 3(r)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
equivalents include investments and advances denominated in
foreign currencies provided that they fulfill the above criteria.

Employee benefits

() Short term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

066

(P)

KRMEZERBRD A

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(ii)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with rules of the
central pension scheme.

Share-based payments

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Share options granted to consultants

Share options granted to consultants in exchange for
goods or services are measured at the fair values of
goods or services received, unless that fair value cannot
be reliably measured, in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of the
share options granted. The amounts are recognised as
expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or
when the counterparties render services, unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the years, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
that those differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

068

(a)

KRMEZERBRD A

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at end
of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

()

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless
the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other
payables. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset, Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with Note 3(r)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect
of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value
can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at
fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with Note 3(r)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot
be reliably fair valued or were not present obligation at the
date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with Note

3(r)(iii).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

070

U]

(s)

KRMEZERARRE —T—

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

()

(i)

Tree felling service income

Revenue from provision of tree felling services is
recognised when services are provided. The amount of
revenue recognised is based on the fair value of logs
harvested during the tree felling process or any cash
consideration received or receivable.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered at the customers’ premises or agreed
point of delivery which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv)  Rental income from operating lease

Rental income receivable under operating lease is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(v)  Service fee income
Income from provision of services is recognised at the time
when the services are rendered by reference to the stage
of completion.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. ltems of statement
of financial position, including goodwill arising on consolidation
of foreign operations acquired on or after 1 April 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 April 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

072

(t)

(u)

(v)

KRMEZERBRD A

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals, the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents
a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is
abandoned.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B2 —ZF—=F=A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Discontinued operation (continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount
is presented on the face of the consolidated income statement,
which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above criteria
for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary
after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the financial statements of the Group and the Company are
concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These
assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(w) Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised
in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as
held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

(x) Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i)~ Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x)

()

Related parties (continued)
(o)  (continued)

(v  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the board of
directors of the Company (the chief operating decision maker)
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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3.

076

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(z Shares held by the Company for settlement of

acquisition consideration

The Company issued shares and held them on behalf of the
vendor for the settlement of acquisition consideration payables to
the vendor in future years upon meeting of net profit guarantee
by the vendor in connection with acquisition of its Zhongshan
subsidiary. The shares, valued at HK$0.414 per share, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, are presented as
“Shares held by the Company for settlement of acquisition
consideration” and deducted from total equity. As a result of
the failure to meet net profit guarantee by the vendor as per the
acquisition agreement, these shares are held by the Company
awaiting disposal by the Company. Proceeds recovered from
the disposal of these shares shall be returned to the Company.
Details of the acquisition and net profit guarantee are outlined in
Note 41.

(@a) Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by other
than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments are derivative financial instruments.
Warrants classified as derivative financial instruments are
recognised at their fair values at the date of issue. Changes in
fair values in subsequent periods are recognised through profit or
loss.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised Standards,
Amendments and Interpretations (“new and revised IFRSs”) that are
first effective for the current accounting period.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying

Assets

Amendments to IAS 12

The adoption of the above new and revised IFRSs does not have any
significant impacts on the financial statements of the Group for the
current or prior accounting periods.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 5.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 3, management has made certain key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, as described below.

(@)  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

(b)  Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses on trade and other
receivables resulting from inability of the customers or debtors
to make the required payments. The Group bases the estimates
on the ageing of the trade and other receivables, customer or
debtor credit-worthiness, and historical write off experience.
If the financial condition of the customers or debtors were to
deteriorate, actual write off would be higher than estimates.

(c)  Write down of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write
down of inventories are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.
The identification of write downs requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of inventories and write down of inventories in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed.
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5.

078

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

()

(e

®

Impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of goodwill in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 3(j). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units are determined based on value in use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the business, pre-tax
discount rates, and other assumptions underlying the value in
use calculations.

Impairment loss of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful life. In the
event that the carrying values of the intangible assets are higher
than their recoverable amounts (i.e., the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use), impairment loss is recognized. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value in use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the business, discount rates, and other
assumptions underlying the value in use calculations.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that are initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
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5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 5. €iH{4it R Y6 @

(continued)

(9)  Fair values of biological assets

Management estimates at the end of the reporting period the
fair value less costs to sell of biological assets with reference to
market prices and professional valuations. Unanticipated volatile
changes in market prices of the underlying agricultural produce
could significantly affect the fair values of these biological
assets and result in fair value re-measurement losses in future
accounting periods.

The Group’s forestry business is subject to the usual agricultural
hazards from fire, wind and insects. Forces of nature such
as temperature and rainfall may also affect harvest efficiency.
Management considers adequate preventive measures are in
place and the relevant legislation under forestry laws in Brazil will
assist in minimising exposure. Nevertheless, to the extent that
un-anticipated factors affecting harvestable agricultural produce
may result in re-measurement or losses in future accounting
periods.

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

Certain critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies are described below.

Going concern basis

As mentioned in note 3(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are confident that the Company will be able
to meet its financial obligations in full as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

If the going concern basis is not appropriate, adjustments would have
to be made to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and liabilities respectively, to reduce the values of assets to
their immediate recoverable amounts and to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise. Such adjustments may have a significant
consequential effect on the loss for the year and net assets to the
Company

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the board of directors (“Board”) (the chief
operating decision maker) of the Company for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.
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6.

080

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Continuing operations
Tree felling service: provision of tree felling and clearing services.

Sustainable forest management: sustainable management of and
investment in natural forests; timber and wood processing; trading and
sales of forestry and timber products.

Zhongshan operations: manufacturing and sales of timber products
including but not limited to wooden doors, furniture and wooden
flooring.

Discontinued operation
Chita forests operations: logging, timber and wood processing, timber
trading and timber sales and marketing.

In accordance with IFRS 8, segment information disclosed in this
consolidated financial statements has been prepared in a manner
consistent with the information used by the Board of the Company
for the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources among segments. In this regard, the Board of the Company
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all non-current assets and current assets
attributable to an individual reportable segment with the exception of
certain unallocated corporate assets including unallocated cash and
cash equivalents and consideration receivable.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than current,
deferred tax liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned by/(loss) from each
segment without allocation of central administration cost such as
director’s salaries and other head office or corporate administration
costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning the profit
earned by/(loss) from each segment, the Board is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales), interest
income and expense from cash balances and borrowings managed
directly by the segments, depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses and additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEHmE @
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) 7oHpXEE BERES
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment is reported below: RNEB R 2O RE DI 2D a0
aF -
2013
—E-=F
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
HEREER BRIEEK
Sustainable Chita
Tree forest forests
feling management Zhongshan operation
service A#EE  operations Sub-total bid Total
KRR ARER IS S Nat AMER @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
i3 BET T BT T BT T YT BETT BETT
Revenue from external customers RENRELZKA - - 76,550 76,550 - 76,550
Inter-segment revenue DEREKA - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue AHREFBBA - - 76,550 76,550 - 76,550
Reportable segment loss AR D SRR AT
before taxation BE - (419,092) (50,825) (469,917) - (469,917)
Change in fair value of biological EMEENTEEE
assets less costs to sell ok k-l #N 21 - (482,190) - (482,190) - (482,190)
Depreciation neE - (1,011) (1,272) (2,283) = (2,283)
Write off of other receivables W fth e oA 10 - (64) (220) (284) - (284)
Write down of Inventories WREE 10 - (44,840) - (44,840) - (44,840)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE K
plant and equipment SEEE 10 = (736) = (736) = (736)
Write off of property, WEME - BEK
plant and equipment B3 10 - (1,686) - (1,686) - (1,686)
Waiver of liabilities by S5 BEARRAR
trade creditors 8 - 119,603 - 119,603 - 119,603
Interest income FIEMA 11(a) - 5,332 - 5,332 - 5,332
Interest expense B - (14,505) - (14,505) - (14,505)
Reportable segment assets AHREFNEE - 836,011 14,906 850,917 - 850,917
Additions to non-current FRBADEERE
segment assets - 450 2,239 2,689 - 2,689
Reportable segment liabilities THEN BEE - (319,476) (26038 (345514) - (345,514)
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (@) DHEE BEEREEBE®H)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment is reported below: NEBRE2HAI{E DI 2D a0
(continued) ™ : (%)
2012
—T—F
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
REREEK BIRILERS
Sustainable Chita
Tree forest forests
feling  management Zhongshan operation
service ARE operations Sub-total T Total
KRR AMER FILER et AMER &5t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fit BETT YT AT BT AT AT T
Revenue from external customers RENRER ZIWA 5,39 30,702 79,518 115,616 - 115,616
Inter-segment revenue AEERA = 58,389 = 58,389 - 58,389
Reportable segment revenue ARED KA 5,396 89,091 79,518 174,005 - 174,005
Reportable segment loss before taxation 7] 2 2Rk &t A A5 18 (223,220) (2,080,650) (72,004) (2,375,874) (4,316) (2,380,190)
Change in fair value of biological EMEERNTES
assets less costs to sell MSHERAR - (150,419) - (150,419) - (150,419)
Amortisation i - - (2,389) (2,389) - (2,389)
Depreciation e = (1,332) (@1) (1,423) = (1,423)
Write off of other receivables e E R R - (7,434) - (7,434) - (7,434)
Write off of timber logs WSERAARM 9 (233,572) - - (233,572) - (233,572)
Write down of timber logs OB RAAR - (1,781) - (1,781) - (1,781)
Rental expenses HEE% 8 - (13,745) - (13,745) - (13,745)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - HE R
plant and equipment ZE#R = (296) - (296) - (296)
Impairment loss of intangible assets ENEERERE = = (45,205) (45,205) = (45,206)
Write off of trade receivables WIS 5208 89 3 (413,360) = (413,360) L (413,360)
Waiver of service fee payables REEMREE 9 12,205 - - 12,205 - 12,205
Impairment loss of goodwill BERESE = (1,384,765) (77,359) (1,462,118) - (1,462,118)
Interest income FEWA - 485 1 486 - 486
Interest expense A EFX - (9,780) - (9,780) - (9,780)
Reportable segment assets ARESDEE - 1,449,834 64,686 1,514,520 - 1,514,520
Additions to non-current FRBAIBEERE
segment assets - 3,847 2,881 6,728 - 6,728
Reportable segment liabilities AHEIHEE - (390,465) (27,138) (417,609) - (417,608)
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(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,

profit or loss, assets and liabilities:

(i) Revenue

6. DEHmE @

AHRETBBRA - BFNHE
B EEREBZHK:

(b)

(i)  Loss

@i KA
2013 2012
= SER—T e
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT
Reportable segment revenue A #d o JUA 76,550 174,005
Elimination of inter-segment revenue  ¥J44 % BRIUA - (568,389)
Consolidated revenue LA WBA 76,550 115,616
(i) BB
2013 2012
=B =4 ==
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T ook e
Reportable segment loss AT ERE D R RIEE

before taxation (FFEREER)

(continuing operations) (469,917) (2,375,874)
Unallocated corporate income RAOBLEZEWRA 8,969 2,703
Depreciation e (17) (231)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEEFERS (26,790) (40,108)
Unallocated interest expense ROBEF B H (2,066) (6,010)
Loss before taxation BT AT E 1B

(continuing operations) (BECEER) (489,821) (2,419,520)
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities: (continued)

(b) ATHED YA BRRE
B EEREBEZHER: (B

(i)  Assets (i) BE
2013 2012
=5—= S
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T PRI
Segment assets for reportable FELCEEB I RED D
segments from continuing operations 2 5 2 &= 850,917 1,514,520
Reportable segment assets ARG D EE 850,917 1,614,520
Unallocated: RAOH
— Unallocated corporate assets — AP EELE 817 3,083
— Unallocated cash and cash — KXPEEE &
equivalents REEEY 216,290 2,230
— Consideration receivable — EWRE - 208,000
Total assets per consolidated REMIERRRFTZS
statement of financial position EERE 1,068,024 1,727,833
(iv)  Liabilities (iv) EfF
2013 2012
= s —E—-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T T
Segment liabilities for reportable FREACE EIT Hd o &
segments from continuing operations 7 9 &8 & & 345,514 417,603
Reportable segment liabilities AHEH AR 345,514 417,603
Unallocated: ROBL
— Provision for taxation — FIIERE 50,255 49,456
— Deferred tax liabilities — RIEFHIBAE 143,296 339,564
— Unallocated corporate liabilities — RAOBEEEAE 11,952 45,815
Total liabilities per consolidated REMBRRARMES
statement of financial position SR 551,017 852,438
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEHmE @

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, b) AHREDBUWA - & F R E
profit or loss, assets and liabilities and other items: B -EEREEREMIEB 2
(continued) HER ()

(v)  Other items ) EmEH
2013
—E-zE
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
RELEER BRI

Sustainable Chita

Tree forest forests

feling  management  Zhongshan operation
service TEME  operations  Unallocated Sub-total ##  Unallocated Sub-total Total
fREH AHER lllE 3 L) it RMER AOR it &3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BNt BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRTR BNTR BRI

Depreciation & - (1,011) (1,212 (17 2300 g = - (2:300)
Interest expense HEHR - (14,505) - (2,066) (16,571) - - - (16,571)
Wite off of other receivables  # ] - (64) (220) - (284) - - - (284)
Write offof property, Mgz BERRE
plant and equipment - (1,686) - - (1,686) - - - (1,686)
Loss on disposal of property, HE#E « BER
plant and equipment Fie BE - (736) - - (736) - - - (736)
2012
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
HERERE RESE S
Sustainable Chita
Tree forest forests
feling ~ menagement Zhongshan operation
senvioe MEE operations Unallocated Sub-total i Unallocated Sub-total Total
BN MR AHER GlITESS AR NGt S AR NGt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000
AETT BT BT AETT BB BT RETT ABTT BETT
Depreciation & - (133) o) 231) (1,654 = = = (1,654
Interest expense R - 9780 . 6010 (16,790) = 1 s (15,790)
Wite off of other receivables i3 = 6 KGR - (7.434) - 2,000) 0434 - - - 9.434)
Loss on disposal of property, HE9Z « BER
plant and equipment HEE - (296) - 437) (733) - - - 733)
(c) Revenue from major products and services: (c) REFEERERBRBZWA :
Continuing
operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
BEEEEY BRLER 58
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

“g-=f -B--% ZCZB-=f -T--F C-B-=f -T--F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETr BT B%Tr AT B¥%Tr  B%To

Tree felling service income RARRBBA - 5,396 - - - 5,396

Sales of forestry and timber SEEARN RAR
products Ef 76,550 110,220 - - 76,550 110,220
76550 115616 = F 76550 115616
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6.

086

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the Group’s
revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group’s non-current
assets. The geographical locations of customers refers to the locations
at which the customers reside. The Group’s non-current assets include
property, plant and equipment, biological assets, intangible assets and
goodwill. The geographical locations of property, plant and equipment
and biological assets is based on the physical locations of the asset
under consideration. In the case of intangible assets and goodwill, the
allocation is based on the location of the operation to which they are

allocated.

DEHRE (@)

i & & ¥

UTROAKEREINERZWA + R i)
AEBFERBEEZWELIT - TRME
BEEPHEZME - AREZFRDEE
BREYE BENIERE £YWEE - BV
BENEE -VF BERRBAREY
BEZHRRBBEBEEERFLE 20 -
BV EENGBRMBEEER D -

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REIREFZBA kRBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
=i SkEd | EmEg—maE | BioEaE 5 TR —aE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT
Continuing operations BEREER
North America EEM - 111 - -
South America =M - 5,921 832,360 1,422,778
Asia Pacific (other than Hong Kong) DARE(TEEES) 76,550 109,584 4,016 3,049
Hong Kong (place of domicile) a8 (EEE) - - 188 2,646
76,550 115,616 836,564 1,428,473
Discontinued operation BRIEER
Asia Pacific (other than Hong Kong) DKE(TBEES) - - - =
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (B2 - = = 3
76,550 115,616 836,564 1,428,473
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEE|E @
Information about major customer EBEXEEFZEHR
Revenue from customer contributing 10% or more of the total revenue REGAREBRBRAI0%EINA EZEEZ
of the Group is as follows: WAL ¢
2013 2012
=T =UF T 2o e
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BFELE XK
Customer A — revenue from sales of forestry and & F A — R B H L 2K EEAM &
timber products from Zhongshan AEERZ
operations — China WA — 60,567 -
Customer B — revenue from sales of forestry and &/ B— KA A ERMNEEISE
timber products from sustainable M R ASHRLEE f
forest management — China ZWA — = 27,910
REVENUE 7. WA
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, (after WAFREHNBREE REENNEERE LS
allowances for returns and trade discounts) and revenue from tree B2 BEFEARKARRE ZBA -

felling service.

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADHITT
Continuing
operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
REREXH BALER )
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

=gk | et B Aobole (e s Se Sl
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT BETTT BETT BETT BETT BT

Tree feling service income RARRB LA - 5,396 - - - 5,396
Sales of forestry and timber products $5E AM BRI E 76,550 110,220 - - 76,550 110,220
76,550 115,616 - - 76,550 115,616
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8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET LOSS 8. HiWARHEMEIEFEEE
Continuing
operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
BRCEER BRIEEH &Re
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
SR CFERNTE s TSRS S SRS Sl S RSN S
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
Other income Hegrg A
Rental income HeWA 30 29 - 451 30 480
Walver of liabilities by trade BHEEAREAR
creditors (Note i) (Hizti) 119,603 = - L 119,603 -
Others Hit 3,329 4,095 - - 3,329 4,095
122,962 4124 - 451 122,962 4,575
Other net loss HitBRTE
Net exchange loss [E BB T8 (15,648) (35,536) - (1,284) (15,648) (36,820)
Write off of trade receivables MeEEKE 5708
(Note ) (Fiai) - (299,086) - = - (299,086)
Rental expenses (Note i) BEeRZ (Hzti) - (13,745) - = - (13,745)
Waiver of consideration payable BN RETAE (fatii)
(Note i) L 71,183 L L 1 71,183
Change in fair value of NBEEATEEE
financial liabilties (Note 34) (Fi3#34) 6,030 2,700 - = 6,030 2,700
(0,618)  (274,484) e (1,284) 0,618  (275,768)
Notes: HteE -

088

KRMEZERBRD A

In March 2011, the Group purchased logs and timber from independent
suppliers in Democratic Republic of Congo (“DRC”) and Virginia, USA and
sold them at a total sale prices of approximately HK$396 million to some PRC
customers who were independent to the Group and its directors on an ex-
yard basis. Ex-yard means the seller were required to deliver the goods to
its yard. All other transportation costs and risks are assumed by the buyers.
The customers inspected and accepted the goods sold at the respective
designated yards in DRC and USA. The sales contracts were signed under
Hong Kong laws. According to the terms and conditions of the sales contracts,
the customers were responsible for arranging transportation after inspection
and acceptance of delivery.

In April 2011, China placed a ban on importation of logs from Virginia, USA. No

one could move any logs originated from Virginia to China. The ban was only
lifted, on a test basis, beginning 1 June 2012.

—EB- /CE-=5FHK

R=ZF—F=8  AEERFNHNERE
HFBE(RIR]) RERFESFEDRMNZ B
HERE S RA KA - BIREFERTBE
REFEES H 47 306,000,000 7T 2 & B
HETETBUNAEBEREEEZHER
F-BrERREREATEREMNELER
ZHEE - fTEEMERKAKRBREHE
REfE - REDRIRBIREERZ 5 EiHE
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8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET LOSS

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

0

The Group understood that Chinese customs places ban on importation
of products and goods from time to time. These bans might be politically
motivated as retaliations to discriminatory policies against Chinese goods by
foreign countries. Bans based on such motivations might be difficult for market
participants to predict the duration. The Group was not aware of any similar
rationale behind the April 2011 ban which stemmed from pests being found in
some shipments from those selected states involved. Pest problems in general
should be easily addressed by proper fumigation. Based on public information,
the US government from those states involved seemed to be working actively
and immediately to resolve the problem with the Chinese customs. In addition,
the views of the Group’s sales in the PRC and market views collected by them
indicated that the concerns could be resolved quickly. As such, the Group
believed that the ban would be short-lived.

Concurrently, the customers began looking for vessels to transport the African
logs and timber from DRC to China since signing of the sales contracts. It
proved to be very difficult to secure vessels as there were limited choice of
shipping lines due to the perceived security risks associated with DRC, the
limiting conditions of the port and the lack of proper port facilities for loading.
The Group tried to assist the customers out of courtesy but was also not
successful.

Timber prices in China began to soften in the second half of 2011 and
continued with a downward trend for the rest of the year. Demand and prices
dropped significantly after Chinese New Year in February 2012 generally due to
poor housing market and negative economic outlook in China.

The sales contracts required payments be made in five installments by the
customers with the last of the installments paid by 31 August 2011. Up to 20
December 2012, only a total of approximately HK$84 million was collected from
the customers. No further payments were received from the PRC customers
since July 2011. The Group requested the customers to settle the outstanding
payments due to it numerous times while understanding the unusual
circumstances surrounding the delays in shipment of the goods sold both
from the USA and DRC to China. When considering to allow the customers
to make deposit payments slower than the original plan, the Company took
into consideration amongst other factors that it might physically block the
movement of the logs and timber if payments received were not adequate to
cover the quantity of logs and timber that the buyers ship. The physical block
would be feasible as the Brazilian logs sold were stored inside the hydropower
plant at our log yards; and the African logs and timber sold were stored at our
supplier’s warehouse at the port which we helped to arrange.

Timber prices began decreasing during the last quarter of 2011 and dropped
significantly and suddenly during the first quarter of 2012 due to slow down
in the Chinese housing market and economy. The customers notified the
Group its intention to default on the contracts in May 2012. After repeated
unsuccessful attempts in collecting the outstanding receivables from the PRC
customers, the Group agreed with the African and US suppliers to terminate
its purchase agreements with them on 31 May 2012. The African and US
suppliers took back the logs and timber with no further liabilities due from the
Group. The Group understood that the supplier sold the logs in the domestic
market with some profit after taking back the logs. The Group recognised the
waiver of liabilities HK$119,603,000 as other income during the year ended 31
March 2013.

HtW AR HMWEERFE @)

Hrat - (&)

0

AEETHRE hEEEETHAENER
REMTERES - ZEESA R HNBUAR
HBREINE S BB 2 AR BGR © 52
EETRRHATRBENZ SR T EZLE

SRFEEERE ARBYTHNE _T——F
MAZESERBEMBALIEE  ERZF

BRI

BMA 2 & FRHREY R EIRELR -
B2 REARER  ARXBMBNA-—ER
BT {E - WANKS B rh BB R AR R B RERE -
IO ERARASEETFHEHEEZERR
HAWB e i8R - RRERERMR
RIGUOERR - Bt - AEEBEZES KB
REEE -

BRI RE BRI HESNRAGRKSE
M EEHIREXIFMNEARRAMERE - B
REHZERRABE 2L 2ER - BAZR
R R R 2 IEHR S O R #RR i - AT RE
ZMERRTLZ  MEFHEAESHE K
SEERFERBHES - BIENME -

HFEAMEBRR T ——FTH+FRHED
B YRFRARTRBHEE TEEE - F
RKREBN_TE-——F - AREFHFEKNRE
TR REE BB ES RAEEA R RE
FRER °

HEANERBEFAS TN MK —
LiiE Z——FNA=+—HAX
——F+-A=-+H " E#RE
F W7z & £ 49 7% #84,000,000tc B =%
——FtARBEKIPBEEEZER -
EEZREREFEERNAEBZ R
HEREABE 2 TEFEE RS BHER KRR
HEBEOEERETRZER - EEEREF
USR8 R 2R BRI SR - BrEAD
EZ=5N - NARINE BRI ATUREGRIET R
NEREREERARAMZEE - BIFA
BEPR BB A RN RARM o ARFTE B HERA
TR EMKREA S Z K EERA - Al
g IR G @RS - MATEIEMRA KA
AITF AR B M BB B B N 2 B A
BERA e

AMBERAR-Z——FEWNFTHBE TG
HEATEEMREEREMR=-_T—=
EE—Z2BETY N-_T——FHA %
LRPAEAEEEEEEN - EZRER
MFBEEFERERRBETRE AEEH
EMNERERZHEEESIR T —=—F5
B=+—BEk i KRIEASEERE SR
ST 2B E e o JEN R =B 4 g U B R AR
RAM  BEEAMERAEEZAE - BAX
SETH EEFERKRERAZDRERT
BHERRLHTEF - BE_T—=F=
A=+—BLFE  RNEEBHEEESE
119,603,000 JTiERR A EABUIA ©
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8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET LOSS

(continued)

090

Notes: (continued)

)

KRMEZERBRD A

The Group was consulting legal advice from its Hong Kong lawyer and was
preparing to take legal actions against the PRC customers for breach of
contract and loss of profit. It was uncertain as to the amount that may be
recovered from the PRC customers and whether the courts of Hong Kong will
be the convenient forum to handle the claims against these PRC companies.
As such, the Group considered that the value of the total receivable
outstanding with these PRC customers of HK$299 million was impaired and
the amount was written off during the year ended 31 March 2012.

In hindsight, the customers might have underestimated the difficulties in
sourcing transportation for such volume of timber and logs. Also, the slowdown
of the housing market and the drop in timber prices in China that began in the
fourth quarter of 2011 was not anticipated by the customers or the Group.
These factors together contributed to the default by the customers eventually.

At the time of publishing the 31 March 2011 results on 29 June 2011, the
intention to default by the customers was not known to the Group and as
mentioned previously, there was no objective evidence of impairment. In June/
July 2011, while it might have been difficult, the Group did not consider that it
was impossible to secure vessels. The Group’s senior logistic manager went to
DRC in July 2011. After his trip, for the Group’s other purchases, he was able
to arrange one vessel that departed in July 2011 and one vessel for departure
in September 2011. Accordingly, the Company did not consider the business
of the Group at the time would be adversely affected, and no disclosure,
impairment or announcement was considered necessary.

On 1 January 2012, Universal Timber Resources Do Brasil Participacao
LTDA (“UTRB”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in Brazil, entered
into an agreement with Berena Business Corp (“Berena”) to terminate an
acquisition memorandum of understanding dated 1 June 2009 and its related
supplemental agreement dated 28 March 2011 (Please refer to Note 24 for
details).

On 2 August 2011, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of
Originate Tech Global Investments Limited (“Originate Tech”) for a total
consideration of 769,230,769 shares. Originate Tech is an investment holding
company and its Hong Kong and PRC subsidiaries are collectively referred
to as “Zhongshan Operations”. Consideration shares were payable in three
tranches with the second and third tranches contingent upon meeting net profit
guarantee. Consideration payable represented the fair value of tranche 2 and
3 shares valued at the time of acquisition, and the amount was extinguished at
the end of the financial year ended 31 March 2012 as the net profit guarantee
was not met. Details of the acquisition and the net profit guarantee are outlined
in Note 41.

—EB- /CE-=5FHK

8.
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LOSS ON BUSINESS DISRUPTION

9. EBTEZER

2013 2012

—E—=£ S PR es

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T BT

Write off of trade receivables W EE R E 5 I8 - 114,274
Write off of timber logs WSS R AR AAS - 233,572
Walver of service fee payables e RBEEN IR - (12,205)

L 335,641

In November 2009, UTRB and a main contractor being an independent
third party of the Group (“Main Contractor”) entered into a service
agreement, pursuant to which the Main Contractor engaged UTRB to
provide tree felling services in the hydropower plant in Rondonia, Brazil.
The main contract was signed between the operator of the hydropower
plant and the Main Contractor.

In May 2010, the alleged agent (“Alleged Agent”) of the Main
Contractor’s owner started negotiation with UTRB for the proposed
sale of the equity interest of the Main Contractor to UTRB (the “Proposed
Deal”). UTRB was not satisfied with the results of due diligence exercise
on the Main Contractor and the Alleged Agent failed to provide proper
authorization document from the equity-owner of the Main Contractor
to proceed with the Proposed Deal. As such, the Proposed Deal did
not materialize.

Since around February 2011, UTRB and some of the senior officers of
the Company were receiving threatening emails and phone calls from
the Alleged Agent extorting money including that payable under the
Proposed Deal. It was also believed that the Alleged Agent published
or procured the publication on internet and articles posing serious
accusations against the Group on its integrity and manner of doing
business. The Alleged Agent also harassed the Group’s staff with
constant emails, phone calls, sms and numerous personal visits to
UTRB’s office premises.

As a result of the above events, (“Events”), UTRB made a police report
with the Sao Paulo State Police Department on 10 October 2011. The
alleged accusations against the Group and its business have adversely
affected the reputation, business and operations of the Group in
Rondonia. Further, since the occurrence of the above Events, the
relationship between the Group and the Main Contractor deteriorated.
In August 2011, unrelated to the Events and the operations of the
Group in the power plant, hydropower plant operator terminated the
main contract with the Main Contractor. Thereafter, UTRB was rejected
access to the hydropower plant. During the year 2012, inventories
amounting to R$51 million (or approximately HK$234 million translated
at the relevant average exchange rate for the year ended 31 March
2012) kept inside the hydropower plant.

RZFZFNF+—A UTRBEFEEBH
([Ex#BE] AAEBZBILE=7)F]
SR B EAEEEREUTRBE
BB % B B M 27K 113 B R R (R (AR AR
o KNBERZICEHRERBDE RG]
ES=F )

R-ZZTE—ZFRA TABEBEBAZ
FEREAE([HERBARE]) FBEUTRBEL M
UTRB i3 855 A0 2 AR ([
5 ETHER - UTRBY TABRE 2 &8
BEERTTRE  MERREERRMH
HEAPRAZBaEEATL ZEEFR
MHLGETEERS - At - BER S E
SEEH o

AMEZZ——F ALK - UTRBRAR
ﬂ%?%ﬁ%%—ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ@%%@
BrZRBEHRERE  BREEEXZET
ZEFUA - $%lﬁm%hﬁﬁ@%m
EHAE FBRKENBRIE  HAEE
ZHERE ﬁ%&kﬁ%ih%oh%ﬁ
BATHAEE Bif FRENER
mﬁﬁi%mmzmﬂz&ﬁmﬁla
Io

EREMEH(EH]  UTRBRZ=Z——
F+ATHRBRELENRE - xSHAE
SEREEBELZ2EBBETREHAEE
REAZREEMNZBE EBELEEBRT
FIRFEE o o AIEEEE Fali B - ANE
ERFTEASHZEEREL RZ2T——F
NR - CEHRSEHERASEEREMAEIT
ZEBEBZEBERT  KNBERZEE
ERIEBFABEFILZERLN Hé
UTRBZIEBHEAK N EER - =

& m/51wowomﬁﬁ(&&a§ =
——F=ZA=1+—HILFEABEFHE
RIGE 47 # 234,000,000 7T) Z1FETF
IR B ERRA ©
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092

LOSS ON BUSINESS DISRUPTION (continued)

In March 2011, the Group sold logs located inside the hydropower
plant at total sale prices of approximately HK$114 million to some
PRC customers who were independent to the Group and its directors.
The customers inspected and accepted the goods sold at the
respective designated yards in DRC and USA. The sales contracts
were signed under Hong Kong laws. According to the terms and
conditions of the sales contracts, the customers were responsible for
arranging transportation after inspection and acceptance of delivery.
The abovementioned sold logs at the hydropower plant were part of
the goods sold under sales contracts that also included other timber
products from Africa and USA. The sold logs remained inside the
hydropower plant up to the time when UTRB was denied access to
the hydropower plant in September 2011. For goodwill with these PRC
customers, the Group negotiated and agreed with PRC customers
that it would not demand for payment of the outstanding trade
receivables in the sum of HK$114 million relating to the logs kept at
the hydropower plant. The Group arrived at the decision to write off the
trade receivables of approximately HK$114 million after considering:
(1) that the denial of access to the hydropower plant where the sold
logs were kept was completely unrelated to the buyers and not their
fault. After all, the Group, as seller, was not able to enter into the
hydropower plant site itself; (2) approximately HK$396,420,524 was still
outstanding on the sales contracts relating to African and US logs and
timber; (3) that Group believes there would be continued and additional
businesses with these customers; and (4) that the Group did not
believe it could collect the sum of HK$114 million from the customers
without jeopardizing the remaining portion of the contracts particularly
under the circumstances of the denial of access to the hydropower
plant.

The Group was consulting legal counsels for the possible civil legal
actions against the Alleged Agent and/or the Main Contractor in
relations to the above Events and the blockage on the Group to operate
in the hydropower plant. In light of the above matters which might
adversely affect the Group’s operations and prospects in Rondonia, the
Group decided to write off R$51 million (or approximately to HK$234
million translated at the relevant average exchange rate for the year
ended 31 March 2012) for the full carrying value of the logs and the
trade receivables with PRC customers of HK$114 million during the
year 2012.

During the year 2012 and 2013, the Group has also retained criminal
lawyer to assist UTRB and its staff (including its departed staff) with the
ongoing investigations by police in Brazil into the Events and various
filings by our staff against the Alleged Agent. The police’s investigation
still in the progress during the year 2013 and up to the date of approval
of the financial statements.

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH
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10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

e B B R R B R

=F=A=t—HLFE

10. b B

Continuing
operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
BREREER DRIEEK e
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=§f =% CZB-=§ <-—£--f CZEB-=f CZT—=%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI T BETT BRI T BETT BRI BETT
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE « BERLE
plant and equipment BB 736 733 - - 736 733
Write off of property, plant and W% - BB R
equipment 1,686 - - - 1,686 -
Write down of timber logs (Note i) WORBRAAM (Hieti) - 1,781 - = - 1,781
Write down of inventories (Note i WORFE (HaFi) 44,840 - - - 44,840 -
Write off of other receivables (Note i) i # e U 008 (B 5 i) = 0,434 = = - 0,434
Impairment loss of intangible assets & &E 7 REERE
(Note 20) (H320) k 45,205 - L - 45,205
Impairment loss of goodwill (Note iv)  E2RERSE (A1) - 1462,118 - - - 1462,118
Write off of other receivables i E A R YT oE 284 - - - 284 -
47,546 1,619,271 - - 47,546 1,619,271
Notes: Hfat:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

After the financial year ended 31 March 2012, UTRB entered into a sales
agreement with a third party to purchase its logs inventory located at the yard
inside the Brazil forest. The amount represented the estimated net loss on
sale of logs inventory. The access road to the yard was destroyed during the
rainy season and was being repaired as of the date of approval of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the inventories were written down to
their net realizable value as they were slow-moving and obsolete.

Write off of other receivables included primarily prepaid service fees paid
to vendors, advanced deposits paid to suppliers and other miscellaneous
receivables that the suppliers and vendors defaulted on or were unable to
return upon termination. Particularly, included in the amount is the write off of
an advanced deposit of R$840,000 (or approximately to HK$3,869,000) paid
to a third party under a Partnership Harvesting Agreement in Brazil. Please refer
to Note 45 for more details.

Impairment loss on goodwill was a non-cash item resulting from the annual
revaluation of the cash-generating unit of the segments of sustainable forest
management and Zhongshan Operations. Please refer to Note 22 for details.
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11. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 1. BRBATEE
The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): RNEBE BB ATEIE &G (GTA) T35
FIHEF/E :
Continuing
operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
BECEER BARILER e
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“8-=f -—T- - ZB-=f —T--% -B-=f T —f
Notes HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ffir E%Tx  A%Tr  B¥Tr  B%Tr  B%Tr  A%Tx
(a) Net finance costs () REBRFE
Interest income from EWARE
consideration receivable ZHM BB (5,324) - - - (5,324) -
Interest income from BTN
bank deposits 2R B A 8 (486) - - (3] (486)
Interest income on financial VIR A FERA
assets not at fair value BRI
through profit or loss BEZFERA (5,332) (486) 3 - (5,332) (486)
Finance costs HEER
Interest on loans and other BRAFNEEH
borrowings wholly repayable BREX
within five years HinfEE 278 5,083 5973 = 5 5,083 5,973
Interest on promissory notes AENZEZF S 37 131 129 - - 131 129
Interest on amounts due to FER IR 08
shareholders 258 47(b) 10,640 8,463 - - 10,640 8,463
Interest on amounts due to [EfTE AR
related companies HIBZHE 47(b) 668 48 - 7 668 48
Interest on loan from B —RBERA
arelated company & vl 47(b) = 1,164 = - T 1,164
Finance charges on obligations Bl ETRAIAE Y
under finance leases BEHY 49 13 = - 49 13
Total interest expenses on VIR A FERA
financial liabilities not at B2 0%
fair value through profit BBEZFBHY
or loss Pk 16,571 15,790 - - 16,571 15,790
11,239 15,304 - - 11,239 15,304
(b) Staff costs (including (b) EIHA(BHE
directors’ remuneration) EEME)
Salaries, wages and other e TARHM
benefits &Fl 38,198 51,260 - - 38,198 51,260
Pension scheme contributions NESEEIER 1,137 1,444 - < 1,137 1,444
Equity-settled share-based DRSS 2 kD
payment e 39 (349)  (2426) J . (349)  (2,426)
38,986 50,278 - - 38,986 50,278
094 KEMEZERERAT —T—— —ZT—=FFH
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 52— —=4=A=+—RH L EE

11. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 1. REAIER @
Continuing
operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
BRSEEY BRIEER e
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=f —%--f ZB-=f -—T-—-f -Z-=f —T—=f
Notes HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
fat BT AT B¥Tr B%Tr  B%Tr  A%Tx
() Other items (c) Hftg R
Cost of inventories* FERA 25 110,298 347,436 - = 110,298 347,436
Amortisation B - 2,389 - - - 2,389
Depreciation e 2,300 1,654 - = 2,300 1,654
Minimum lease payments T REF
under operating leases (BREERS)
for land and buildings BEHN 7 RIK
(including directors’ quarters) HEMR 2,485 4,483 - 27 2,485 4,510
Auditor’s remuneration 2
— audit services A 1,088 1,072 - 254 1,088 1,326
— other services — Hb MR 718 600 - - 718 600
1,806 1,672 - 254 1,806 1,926
Equity-settled share-based T A 2 £ A
payment for consultants RiEsE 7
BLERES 39 - (587) - - - (587)
b Cost of inventories includes depreciation of HK$NIl (2012: HK$306,000), the * GFERACRETEBE ST (ZF——4F : &

amount of which is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed

separately above.

#306,0007T) * BRAFEINE BIFE LX 5
Bl 55 2 HEEGAE R & o
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

096

REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of Laws of Hong Kong) and the
chief executive’s remuneration are as follows:

—_ =

12. EERBRESITHRAEZ#ME

RIRE AP 32 % 1 AR HI 5 161 1R
BrEERRSTBRABZMENT

2013
—E-cF
Salaries Retirement
and other scheme Share-
benefits  contributions based
Fees E 9% Bk payment Total
Bt At g7 HE 3 MR st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive Directors HTES
ZHOU Jing R
(Appointed on 4 January 2013) (R—Z—=5-FMWBEZRT) - 29 - - 29
MUNG Wai Ming SR
(Appointed on 4 January 2013) (R=Z—=5-FMWBEZRT) - 29 - - 29
LOH Jiah Yee, Kathering #5H
(Resigned on 15 February 2013) (R=Z—=F-A+HHET) - 1,469 3 169 1,641
FLETCHER Yurk Nam, Sandy 55
(Resigned on 1 March 2013) (R=E-—=%F=F—HE) - 3,553 8 - 3,561
LEUNG Siu Hung, Joel Pl
(Resigned on 8 February 2013) (R=E—=%-R/\BBE) - 51 - (166) (109)
LI Zhixiong it
(Retired on 5 February 2013) (MZE—=F_ARHEMA) - 677 12 - 689
SHIH Chiu, David HERK
(Resigned on 30 September 2012) (R=Z--EhA=1HEE) - - - - -
- 5,814 23 3 5,840
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES
John Tewksbury BANIGAN John Tewksbury BANIGAN
(Resigned on 17 January 2013) (RZZ-=F-ATLARE) 263 - - 110 378
KEUNG Paul Hinsum ZER
(Resigned on 8 February 2013) (R=Z—=F-R\BE{) 128 - - - 128
Donald Smith WORTHLEY Donald Smith WORTHLEY
(Resigned on 17 January 2013) (R=Z-=F—A1+tAET) 132 - - - 132
William Keith JACOBSEN Wiliam Keith JACOBSEN
(Appointed on 4 January 2013) (R=Z—=F-AmAEZMT) 2 - - - 29
WU Wang Li RoLE
(Appointed on 17 January 2013) (RZB—=F—-A+tREZML) 25 - - - 25
NG Wai Hung REMH
(Appointed on 8 February 2013) (RZZ-=5-A/\BEZ{) 34 = 3 = 34
611 - - 110 721
611 5,814 23 113 6,561

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH
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REMUNERATION (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE

12. BEERBETHRAEZHE @)

2012
Salaries Retirement
and other scheme Share-
benefits  contributions based
Fees g4k RIK payment Total
ik X HE IR 3 &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
Executive Directors BE=s
LOH Jiah Yee, Katherine “ZH - 1,400 12 337 1,749
FLETCHER Yurk Nam, Sandy %53 = 2,200 12 802 3,014
SHIH Chiu, David (Appointed on (KT —F
12 July 2011 and resigned on YR+-BERER
30 September 2012) R=F-ZFNA=THEE) - 433 - - 433
LI Zhixiong (Appointed on TEEM %
2 September 2011) NAZREZFT) - 375 5 - 380
- 4,408 29 1,139 5,576
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
NG Tk Hong REE
(Resigned on 11 July 2011) (RZZ——FLAT—HE) 28 - - - 28
LEUNG Chau Ping, Paul ZHE
(Re-designated as Non-Executive (W=Z——EWABALA
Director on 6 April 2011 and FRTESRN-E——F
resigned on 23 December 2011) +-A=t=HEA) 87 - - (4,095) (4,008)
115 - a (4,095) (3,980)
LEUNG Siu Hung, Joel Py
(Re-designated as Executive Director (R=B——F+-—FWE
on 4 November 2011) HAEARTES) 68 = = 256 324
John Tewksbury BANIGAN John Tewksbury BANIGAN 131 - - 297 428
KEUNG Paul Hinsum ZER 129 L 4 | 129
Donald Smith WORTHLEY Donald Smith WORTHLEY
(Appointed on 4 November 2011) (R=E—F+—FNBEZH) 61 - - - 61
389 - - 553 942
504 4,408 29 (2,408) 2,538

On 6 April 2011, Mr. LEUNG Chau Ping, Paul was re-designated
from the position as an executive director of the Company to a non-
executive director and resigned as chief executive. Since then and to
up the date of approval of financial statements, the position of chief
executive has not been appointed. During the current financial year
when no chief executive was appointed, the functions of chief executive
have been performed by the executive directors with the assistance of

the management of the Company.
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

Therefore, the executive directors together act as the chief executive
of the Company and are responsible for the Company’s day to day
management and overall activities. The remuneration of executive
directors for 2012 and 2013 are disclosed above.

There was no arrangement under which a director has waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, no emolument was paid by
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

. BEERBEITRARZHME @)

Eit  ITEERBETEA R ERRTR
AB  BEARARAIAEEIE MR-
MTESEN B —FR_T—=F7%
BARS £ EE ©

BEEENEXATHEEAMSH L -
BE_Z—=F=A=+—HIEFEAN"

AEBYBAEZTINME  UESKRE
DA INAZ S B 5y 2 SRE) SR BER A (E

13. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 13. REH AL
The five highest paid individuals during the years included two (2012: FRNAELZESFATEEMEB(ZE—=
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 12 FRR)EET  AEBREZHNEFEIHR
above. Details of the emoluments of the remaining three (2012: three) FXMizF12- B T=Z2(—_E——F: =
non-director, highest paid individuals were as follows: B)BREFHESATZHMEFEOT
The Group
REEE
2013 2012
== —F-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T P IT
Salaries and other benefits Ha REHAMER 2,145 SO
Retirement scheme contributions RORGTEIH R 29 14
Share-based payment VARG AR 321+ 39 81
2,213 3,852
The remuneration of the non-director, highest paid individuals fell within SeHIEESATZBEN TFIATEE -
the following bands:
Number of individuals
EEHE
2013 2012
—B—=F —E—=fF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = Z75¥ 1,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7% 1,000,001 JTT 2= ¥ 1,500,000 7T = -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 JT £ %% 2,000,000 7T = —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 P& 2,000,001 7T E= % 5 2,500,000 7T — 1
3 8
During the year ended 31 March 2013, no emolument was paid by the HEOE =+ =H=+—H I ERAr
Group to such individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the AREBWERBBEALT NS  LAEA
Group or as compensation for loss of office. 18 55 N A SR DA 7S S5 (3B BeF 2 422 D ok B Bk
e o
098 KEMEZRERAT —FT—— /—"Z-—=FFHK
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14. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 14. ZREWBRZAEHR
INCOME STATEMENT
(@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement (@) HFEWBERZFEHRAR:
represents:
Continuing
operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
BRSEER BRIEER e
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“B-=f -—T--f ZB-=f —T--f -—%-=f —T-=FfF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AETr BETr AB%Tr #B%Tx AT
Current tax BER%iE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ — &#&FI&
— Provision for the year — KEERE 799 = - = 799 =
Current tax BERBiE
— PRC Enterprise — PR EMEH
Income Tax
— Provision for the year — KNEEEE - 20 - - - 20
Deferred tax BEBE
— Reversal of temporary — BOEEES
differences (163,944) (87,125) - - (163,944) (87,125)
(163,145 (87,105) L - (163,145)  (87,105)

riy 2 s = = wms B = - =8| [ 4E
B BEAFESHBREREEEELEZ
har R R FIERE16.56% (==
— —4F 1 16.5%) FHR B o

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Brazil income tax rate is 34% (2012: 34%) of the estimated
assessable profits arising in Brazil. No Brazil income tax has been
provided for in the financial statements as the Brazil's subsidiary
has no assessable profit for both years.

ErEmEHRENEAEL Z AEHE
ARPE M Z R BB4%(Z T —— 5
34%) o @A 7 KT B 2 B R i E
BEHEERGEH - S ELE T
SRR SRS R -

PRI B AR ESMN25%(ZE—=
F 1 25%) B FEATSH

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at
25% (2012: 25%).

RE M RDERE R E & 2 THIRIRAARE )
R ERAMRGE

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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4. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

14, ZEWBERZFABH @

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and b) RAERABRTEZHIERX
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates: BREE (B8) SRR ZHE -
2013 2012
=T = T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BFiAT (E51R), S5
— Continuing operations — FEREER (489,821) (2,419,520)
— Discontinued operation (Note 15) — BRIEER (e 15) - 4,603
(489,821) (2,415,017)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, BEBERRERAREEZ
calculated at the rates applicable to MEGTHE 2 BRBATEE
loss in the countries concerned ZBEHIA (174,580) (732,414)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBIRA Z B2 (2,579) (43,256)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses DAHIF A 2 B2 17,826 503,624
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised  AREEZ AR B) A 77 18 518 2 T 1S oo 22 14,272 184,941
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses )8 &4 AR IEE 2 (18,084) =
Tax credit TRIEHE 5 (163,145) (87,109)
(c) Tax effect relating to each component of other ()i £ ﬁb 2EHEBRSARBS 2B
comprehensive loss ge
2013 2012
—E-=f EEST
Tax Tax
Before (expenses)/  Net-of-tax Before  (expenses)/ Net-of-tax
tax benefit amount tax benefit amount
amount BIE HNRBER amount BB mkbiEg
BREAEE (Fi%)/ B2 ¥E REAEE (FR)/B=R £
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  A%TrT BTz BT BT AETx
Exchange differences on BEFINIBA
translation of financial Eﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁgi
statements of overseas Tt
subsidiaries (49,534) - (49,534) (68,659) - (68,659)
Reclassification adjustment for ~ B HE/&4)
exchange difference relating ~ HB AR ZER
to disposal of overseas EREMHEAR
subsidiaries - - - (6,364) - (6,364)
(49,534) - (49,534) (75,023) - (75,023)
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In February 2010, the Group commenced negotiations to dispose of
the Chita forests operation in Russia as part of its ongoing strategy
to seek forest assets or operations with better return on investments,
hence improving the return to shareholders.

On 6 October 2011, the Group entered into a disposal agreement
(“Disposal Agreement”) with Source Bright Limited (“‘Buyer”) to dispose
of the Group’s entire equity interest in issued share capital of Ally
Rise Limited, which held 100% equity interest in OOO Zabaikalskaya
Lesnaya Kompaniya (“ZLK”) (and which in turn held 99.95% equity
interests in OOO Novoles (“Novoles”) (collectively referred to as “Ally
Rise Group”).

In January 2012, Novoles was declared bankrupt and one concession
right previously held by it expired without renewal. In the same month,
one concession right previously held by ZLK with carrying amount on
30 March 2012 of HK$144,231,000 was expropriated by the State
Forest Agency due to concession fees in arrears. The Company
assisted the Buyer to get back the two concessions and obtain
additional concessions from the relevant State Forest Agencies. The
parties mutually agreed to proceed with the completion of the sale and
purchase of Ally Rise Limited.

On 30 March 2012, in light that it would require some time for the
Buyer to get back the two concessions from the State Forest Agency
and restructure the assets of the Ally Rise Group from the bankruptcy,
the Company agreed to extend the payment term of the consideration.
The total consideration of HK$208,000,000 shall be paid in one lump
sum within nine months upon Completion (see below for definition). Al
conditions precedent outlined in the Disposal Agreement (including all
of its supplemental agreements) were fully satisfied and the disposal
was completed on 30 March 2012 (“Completion”) pursuant to the
Disposal Agreement and its supplemental agreements.

On 18 December 2012, the board approved a further extension of
the due date for the Consideration upon the request by the Buyer as
more time was required to complete the procedures to get back the
two concessions. In granting the extension, the board had consulted
Russian lawyer. Based on the legal opinion obtained, it is common
that such investment application may take up to a year and in the
opinion of the Russian legal counsel, the three-month extension period
is adequate to obtain the final approval from the forest agency for the
above two concessions. After the extension, the total consideration
of HK$208,000,000 shall be paid no later than 30 March 2013.
In consideration of further extending the payment date, the Buyer
should pay interests equivalent to 9.25% p.a. to the Company on the
consideration outstanding from the above date until the amount is fully
settled.

15.

EA LXK

R-ZE—ZTF_F AEEFAEREHER
BERERMERETHER  (ERFRA
FEREORIAMEBEXEB ZHER
B% — &P - {EMERFHAIR @R o

RZZE——F+AXNB A&EEHEER
ERARITER DL EERZE(TEE
H#El) LWHEHEAEBREFBRAF
ERTRAMBFEERAERZ - 688
R A &) # A 000 Zabaikalskaya Lesnaya
Kompaniya ([ZLK]) Z 100% & 7 # z= -
i ZLK ] A 000 Novoles ([Novoles |) &
99.95% R A Mz (1B [ A &R ) -

MR-—ZT——F—F  NovolesEEHE ' &
NARBz —BETEERMAEEE -
BA ZKAEREZ —ER-_Z——F
Z— A=+ BEEEARBE 144,231,000 T2
5 B 4R [ B R R AR R T A B SR AR AL
SR U o AN B 17 Bh B 77 1A 48 B B R AR A A
WA ER (2] 5 P T8 2 4 R ERAS 58 5 R A
EHVRBEETKEESABRAFZ

NR-_TE——F=A=+H ENEFFTE
iy 5 [ [ 2R 2R M 48 8 B [0 57 R 7B 45 B 4
NEBRESHREGEEBEZEE  ARA]
BEEEREBZNRER - AREBSKE
208,000,000 LZER A (EE R TX) &
NEAR—IRABZ o HE R (BIEEM
RS IR FTA L RIGEGHE 2
BER MEEEEERZZ—Z—F=F7
= TERBEEHE AT R (5T
) e

K== —=EF= BNE SR E s
¥ b E TR I E Z MBS FE
EECWAERE S ERE— TR
REZIHE - pEFTEERSHA  E5T
EARAMBENZR - BRIEAMBEZER
EERENFEEYRERRE—F MK
BHLZBERRA —EAANTERER
B %) B M3 B BN AS - it A TE B R A
R MERHAK  BREBE
208,000,000 AT BR-_ZT—=%=A
=t RS - EEIE—FSERNKBE
BERARARAHBMNESERNE LMBHE
E2EEEHAMN R ARESRERER
KQ25%FTH ZF B o

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012/2013 101



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

102

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company has obtained two
separate legal opinions in Russia regarding the feasibility and legality
of the steps proposed by the Company and the Buyer in obtaining
the two concessions back. The legal counsels had also met with
the relevant State Forest Agency to confirm that those concessions
were reserved for the Buyer and that such arrangement is within
normal industry practices for forestry sector in Siberia. Based on their
independent analysts, they both concluded that the plan proposed by
the Company and the Buyer to obtain the two concessions back are
legal, reasonable and feasible.

On 28 March 2013, the Company received the consideration and the
accrued interests. Starting from 1 January 2013, the Buyer did not
require further assistance from the Company and will continue to apply
the concession by themselves.

The operations of Chita forests were classified as discontinued
operation and the profit arising from discontinued operation is analysed
as follows:

15.

BRIEEK @)
BHE_T——_F=HA=F+—BIEFERN
BRAZA N R HE 75 FhER Bl 5% N I8 B AR RE P
BERERZERZATHEREEE XA
AERBBHREMEBILFERER %
FREARS Jr B A B B SR AR MK A 2 T DA T AR
ZERTEERERTRE  mMABLZHEN
HEABFEMEZ —RITEED - BE
WEZBIL DA FEHRABANRQF)HE
BB MIESTEmMEZ 2806
B BB RAAT o

REZZE—=F=A—+/\B ' AQE KN
REREFHE - B=ZT—=F—F—H
i BN EEARRENRE—FHE)
W HHEE B TTER R AT ATHE ©

TERMEBDBEREKRILER  MER
IFREBEE B DOMAT

2013 2012

=2 = ol =5 e

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T PRI

Loss after tax briiiz SR = (4,316)
Gain on disposal of discontinued HE B R IEER 2 Was (5 42)

operation (Note 42) - 8,819

Profit from discontinued operation ERIESETE 2 5 A - 4,508
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The results of the discontinued operation which have been included in

15. BRIEEK @)
BEHEASL B ASAKREZE

the consolidated income statement up to the date of disposals are as WRIPERESENT
follows:
Chita forests operation
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
KiaF BT T BT
Revenue PN 7 = W
Cost of sales SHE A = -
Gross profit E7 = T
Other income EaA 8 = 451
Other net loss HEME1EF 5 8 = (1,284)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R HA A T 3
Administration expenses T = (3,483)
Other operating expenses HhEEms 10 = =
- (3,483)
Loss from operations K B 1R = (4,316)
Finance income BB WA = T
Finance costs BMEEMA = -
Net finance costs B E B FEE 11(a) o ¥
Loss before tax BRAR AT ETIE = (4,316)
Income tax FriS#5 14(a) N -
Loss after tax brifigEE = (4,316)
Gain on disposal of discontinued S B AR IR 2 BRF AT S
operation before tax - 8,819
Income tax FriS i 1 L
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation, & B 4% |F 276 2 Izs -
net of tax HIBRFHIR 42 = 8,819
Profit from discontinued operation BRIEEB 2T - 4,503
Attributable to: FEAS -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ FEN - 4,506
Non-controlling interests JEPE AR AR R e 2R L @)
- 4,503
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

16.

104

Cash flow from discontinued
operation

Net cash used in operating activities

Net cash generated from investing
activities

Net cash generated from financing
activities

BRIEEBZRER

REEBRE R HFE
RERDHEDMAFR

BEEPRDRAFR

15. DR IEERK @)

Chita forests operation

TRIE RIS
2013 2012
—=E—= =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the discontinued

operation at the date of disposal are disclosed in Note 42.

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not propose the payment of any

dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to the

ERIEEENHEBH 2 EENRABEERR
BRI T 42 4758 o

- Eﬁ d%\

ARAREETEFIRNBE_T—=F=A
E+—HBIEFERNEAMRE(ZE—Z=
FE) o

ke E—EFBRFELRAFEELEZ

previous financial year, approved during the year: ERAREIHB ARE.
2013 2012
=2 = T =g
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEET T BT TT
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial REE— A BRFELAENFE
year, approved during the year, of B 2 REAR BB
HK Nil cent per ordinary share TR B
(2012: HK0.45 cent) (ZZF——F : B¥0.451L) = 24,683
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial REE— A BRFEELRANFE
year, approved during the year, of TR 2 REARR BB
HK Nil cent per convertible preferred share AR AR o AR B 1L
(2012: HK0.084 cent) (ZZF——4F : B¥0.0841L) = 7,313
- 31,996

The final dividend relating to year ended 31 March 2011 amounted to

HK$22,691,000 was paid in September 2011.

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH
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17. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the Company
includes a loss of HK$366,459,000 and HK$1,625,455,000 for the
years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 respectively, which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

18. LOSS PER SHARE

(@) For continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company as follows
and the reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares
as shown in Note (d):

e B B R R B R

—ZH=A=+—AILEE

17. AR REBAEEEE

EEAZIK"ﬂEM@EiJEEEZZK“ﬂ%ﬁA
BlEGABEEREEE—_T =6k

——F=A=+—HLEFEZEER EIJ/E
#366,459,0007T M /& #41,625,455,0007T °

18. BRE#E

(a) BHECERBERORLERE
SREARBEHRIRELTAR
B A R85 18 R BT £ (o) 2 B4
I8 HARETH

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Loss BB
Loss for the purpose of basic and BUAFEEREARNEE
diluted loss per share B8 2 B
— Loss attributable to the owners — RNARER ARG
of the Company B8 (326,601) (2,327,909)
Diluted loss per share equals to the basic loss per share for the R EARITE 2 TRRE LR - BR

year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 because the outstanding
convertible preferred shares, share options, warrants and other
potential ordinary shares in issue had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share.

- RBEEEAREMERITELE
B BRENEEARBEYE
BEE_FT—=FR-_F-—_F=4
=t RULEFEZERETERES
REBERERER -
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18. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 18. BREIE »)
(b) For continuing operations (b) HEREEK
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from KEBEREER 7 GRREAR L EE
continuing operations is based on the loss attributable to the B THRE A AR Bl #EA A B E
owners of the Company as follows and the reconciliation of the 18 K B 5E (d) 2 B0 A S 19 2 2
weighted average number of shares as shown in Note (d): ARETE
2013 2012
=L i== el o
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Loss B8
Loss for the purpose of basic and FAAGT B G AR A R
diluted loss per share BBz EE
— Loss attributable to the owners — ARQEIHES AL
of the Company B8 (326,601) (2,332,415)
Diluted loss per share equals to the basic loss per share for the EA R R AR 1T 2 AT IR AR ST A ~ FB
year ended 31 March 2012 and 2013 because the outstanding - RBEEARAEMERTEES
convertible preferred shares, share options, warrants and other B BREABRAREETTE
potential ordinary shares in issue had an anti-dilutive effect on the WHE—ZE——FR-FT—=F=A
basic loss per share. =+ —BIEFEZSREESEERS
REAREREE -
(c) For discontinued operation () BRIERK
()  Basic earnings per share () EBREFXEF
Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operation ERLEXBZEBRERBIG
is nil per share (2012: basic earnings per share of HK0.08 SRAEBTL(ZFT—=4F:
cents which is based on the profit from the discontinued FRERNAFNEE0.08U)
operation attributable to the owners of HK$4,506,000 in DIRE-F - —FHA ARG
2012) and the denominators used are shown in Note (d). B AL 5505 K78 4,506,000
JCETE - MATA 9 &R M
(d)
(i)  Diluted earnings per share (i) EBREEZEF
Diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per B R AT 2 AT R AR B 5T
share for the year ended 31 March 2013 because the B BREREMERTEE
outstanding convertible preferred shares, share options ERkk s SREABRARE
and other potential ordinary share in issue had an anti- BRE BEE_FT-=F=
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share. A=+ REFEZSRES
EEEENEREREE -
Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings HREE-_T—=—=H
per share because the outstanding convertible preferred —t+t—RALEFEREBRIESE
shares, share options, warrants and other potential T 2 18 ARITE Al 3R AR (B R AR -
ordinary share in issue had an anti-dilutive effect on the RERRHE - RBRAER M E P2
basic earnings per share for discontinued operation for the TEELEBR 2 GRELRBAR
year ended 31 March 2012. ERBESE  REREER
FESEREREREF -
KEMEZRERAT —T—=/—T—=ZFFH
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18. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 18. EREE &)
(d) Weighted average number of shares (d) RGMMEFTH
2013 2012
—E—=F —F—=
’000 ‘000
I i
Number of Shares RDEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares RUTEGREREEZ
for the purpose of basic loss per share AR INAEF 6,734,032 5,651,619
& As disclosed in note 46(a), the Group completed the open offers * AT aE 46(a) BT 55 - AEEE R —
on 7 May 2013. As the open offers did not have bonus element, no F—=FRA+HAZHKABAEE - &
adjustment is required for the weighted average number of shares. RAFIEE W EAFIEE S - B HE 5

RR17 DR BUE L A -
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. M1% - BERRHE

The Group NEH

Machinery,

engineering

Freehold Furniture and other

Lands and  equipment Motor Construction
KA fixtures #2E IR vehicles in progress Total
¥Rt  GAREE HitR AE TEIR #sct
(Note a) (Note b, c)
(Hizta) (Hitb - c)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost BA
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FNA—AH 225,673 2,568 2,391 3,794 - 234,426
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR - 165 - - = 165
Additions NE = 2,108 2,596 = = 4,704
Construction expenditure BALRERS

capitalised - - - - 2,024 2,024
Disposals HeE = (1,760) () = = (1,765)
Exchange movement i i (22,729) (33) (158) (324) - (23,244)
At 31 March 2012 N S == JE =Sqr ] 202,944 3,048 4,824 3,470 2,024 216,310
At 1 April 2012 R-ZF——FmA—H 202,944 3,048 4,824 3,470 2,024 216,310
Additions NE - 627 289 348 1,425 2,689
Disposals HE - (289) (432) (1,260) - (1,981)
Transfer % - 2,642 821 - (3,463) -
Write off R - (1,437) (642) - - 2,079)
Exchange movement fE 5 8 (19,858) (46) (322) (283) 14 (20,495)
At 31 March 2013 R-—E—=F=fA=1+—H 183,086 4,545 4,538 2,275 - 194,444
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19. W% - WMERRE @)

The Group (continued) REE(E)
Machinery,
engineering
Freehold Furniture and other
Lands and  equipment Motor Construction
KA fixtures #3% IRK vehicles  in progress Total
¥Rt HFRAREE Hithk s hat ERIRE st
(Note a) (Note b, ¢)
(Kista) (Kb c)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Accumulated depreciation RIHE
At 1 April 2011 RZZ——FWmA—H = e 520 903 = 2,580
Charge for the year AEEHE - 414 439 801 . 1,654
Written back on disposals &R o] - (1,028) ) - - (1,030)
Exchange movement 0 5 2 E) - 7 (52) (141) - (200)
At 31 March 2012 A e o= == - 536 905 1,563 - 3,004
At 1 April 2012 RZZ——FMA—H - 536 905 1,563 - 3,004
Charge for the year KEERE - 1,339 452 509 - 2,300
Written back on disposals i E R o] - (45) 172) (325) - (542)
Write off sk - (117) (276) £ L (393)
Exchange movement EiE = 1 (54) (146) - (199
At 31 March 2013 R=F—=%=A=1+—H = 1,714 855 1,601 - 4170
Carrying amounts BEE
At 31 March 2013 R—ZF—=%=A=1-H 183,086 2,831 3,683 674 - 190,274
At 31 March 2012 il B dEE B 202,944 2,512 3,919 1,907 2,024 213,306
Notes: Hfat

(a) The freehold lands are held in Amazon Brazil where the 44,500-hectare nature

forest is located.

(b) At 31 March 2012, the motor vehicles with carrying amount of HK$196,000
were pledged for bank loan of HK$83,000 (Note 29a). During the year ended
31 March 2013, the pledge was released as the bank loan was fully repaid.

() At 31 March 2012, a motor vehicle of the Group financed by the finance lease
was HK$350,000 and the carrying amount of motor vehicle held under finance
lease of the Group was HK$471,000. During the year ended 31 March 2013,

the finance lease was fully repaid and the motor vehicle was disposed.

KA FERE L RO B P 35 55 iR 44,500 AL
KIRFRETTE D

R-ZBE——"F=A=+—8H REE?D
¥ 196,000t Z R B EERIBRITERA K
83,0007 Z H i (MizE29a) - HE=-T—=
F=ZA=1+—HBILFER HRCEHEE
SBITER - EIRESRER -

R-FE——F=A=+—0 ' AEBZ"RE
& F 4 A& 75 ¥ 350,000 7T ¢ 1 AN £ [ LA 7k
BRI E 2 RBEZREME R 471,000
T O menesese i = eH = 5| S (5] It e
AN BERYEEREROREERE -
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Company

190. Y% - BMERRXRE @
AT

Furniture
Leasehold and other
improvements equipment Total
HEMERE ERREMRE At
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
ST IT BT PRI
Cost R A
At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FMA—H 1,062 713 il Yi7S
Disposals BE (1,062) (837) (1,399)
At 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 A= S e = A S5l
and 31 March 2013 “T——_FMWA—ABEK
—Es == H=4—H - 376 376
Accumulated depreciation 2iHiITE
At 1 April 2011 RZZE——FMmA—H 637 448 1,085
Charge for the year REEZIE 177 54 231
Written back on disposals & BF o) (814) (148) (962)
At 31 March 2012 and N e s = J5 == S
1 April 2012 —E——FpA—H = 354 354
Charge for the year REEHE - 18 18
At 31 March 2013 I e El= s - 372 82
Carrying amounts BRE{E
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=F=RA=+—H - 4 4
At 31 March 2012 s —=ees B =0 e = 22 22
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B2 —ZF—=F=A=+—HIFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BLEE
The Group REE
Sales
Patent contracts Trademark Total
= HEEH [l @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Cost B
At 1 April 2011 R-T——%FmA—H - r - y
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 41) Weisb B A | (FE41) 4,419 17,251 25,024 47,594
At 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 o e Rl e
and 31 March 2013 —E--FNA-HK
TE-EEE S ege— 4,419 17,251 25,924 47,594
Accumulated amortisation and B R EERE
impairment losses
At 1 April 2011 RZZ——FMA—H - - = =
Charge for the year AEESH 268 2,121 - 2,389
Impairment losses recognised FABRRERSE
in the year 4,151 15,130 25,924 45,205
At 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 s —— SRl g —E]
and 31 March 2013 “T-—#mA-Ak
b T = = F =] 4,419 17,251 25,924 47,594
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=1+—H - = = =
At 31 March 2012 R-Z——F=A=1+—H = = = T

The Group acquired the patent for the “curved floor panels”,
outstanding sales contracts and the registered trademark “#74%M”
through the acquisition of Originate Tech Global Investments Limited
(“Originate Tech”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Zhongshan
Operations”) on 2 August 2011 as disclosed in Note 41. These
intangible assets were valued by independent valuer as at the date of
acquisition at HK$48 million.

The patent has a finite life and will expire on 2 August 2017. The
patent was valued by Greater China Appraisal Limited (“GCA”), an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group, with a fair value of HK$4,419,000. GCA adopted multi-period
excess earnings method at a discount rate of 18% to value the patent
which is based on a financial projection cover a period of approximately
5 years approved by management. The management estimated the
financial projection based on their experience and the average annual
growth rate for the forecast period is 3%.

Amortisation has been provided on a straight-line basis over the
remaining useful life of 6 years from the date of acquisition to 2
August 2017. The amortisation charge approximately of HK$Nil (2012:
HK$268,000) for the year is included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Outstanding sales contracts were unfinished contracts with a number
of property developers at the acquisition date. The outstanding sales
contracts were valued by GCA with a fair value of HK$17,251,000.
In valuing the outstanding sales contracts, GCA adopted a discount
cashflow method with a discount rate of 17.5% to value and forecast
the gross profit of each contract estimated by management.

B EA RE R ——F\J
B ANEEZBRBRIMREEEARA
ﬂ(FEUﬂJ)&EW%AT(”JMEF'UJ%J%J)

S [ ARMIR | 2 BERHE - REXEE
é%@&ﬁﬂﬁ?@ﬁ@i [#TAM | o B AR5
ZEBTEERKE R RMIEHERBE
48,000,000 7T °

EFEEEREATH TR —+
FENAZHER - EFEREREEITE
Eﬁ@Z%i EREEGEMEETER

Al (DEZEFED G EAFEAS
m4m9mmﬁ o EEETTEENE IR E Pt
R E X5 F I 2 B 7S TE R - B % B
IR EE EFSE AR IR R 18% A F (G E -
EEEBREBRE ZEBANTEE[MZ F
B FIL R R 3% (AT A TS TEA

BEAEREZNARERREFE_
— I\ H= EIZ6$§%T—H§E%¢H5@T’F
B Kif%ﬁﬁi’]ﬁé”iﬁg@m<

£ #068,0007T) Bt ALLA ﬁlfmi‘%qﬂ
TR °

KT SHES X AR UEE B HiEE Tt E
BREZRATREH - ﬂi%ﬁ)ﬁﬁ%é%’ﬂdﬂ
EETEETHE AESEAFESBE
17,251,0007C ° FEERTRHE S LK
2 T (B B A AT I £ 7 8 0k LA BE B K
175%EHEERTBAERERE & A

#2FER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

112

Amortisation has been provided based on the percentage of revenue
recognised on the contract. The amortisation charge approximately
of HKS$NIl (2012: HK$2,121,000) for the year is included in the
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Trademark is registered in China and is for the distribution of wood
flooring products. The trademark was valued by GCA with a fair value of
HK$25,924,000. GCA adopted a multi-period excess earnings method
using a discount rate of 18% and financial projection covering a period
of approximately 5 years approved by management. The management
estimated the financial projection based on their experience and an
average annual growth rate of 3%.

Trademark has an indefinite useful life. The management will assess
recoverable amount of the trademark and provide necessary
impairment on each reporting date. The impairment for the year
ended 31 March 2012 is included other operating expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (first year of operations after
consolidation into the Group), the results of Zhongshan Operations
incurred a net loss of approximately HK$18 million. The net loss was
primarily attributable to the rapid slow down of the property market and
falling property prices in the PRC. As a result of the uncertainties in the
PRC economy and continued depressed timber demand and prices,
the Group considers that the value of the intangible assets related to
Zhongshan Operations suffered impairment. Details of the impairment
are disclosed in Note 41.

The recoverable amount of the intangible assets relating to Zhongshan
operations segment cash-generating unit was based on value in use
and was determined with the assistance of an independent valuer.

The patent was valued by GCA with a recoverable amount of Nil as at
31 March 2012. GCA adopted multi-period excess earnings method
at a discount rate of 19% to value the patent which is based on a
financial projection cover a period of approximately 5 years approved
by management.

Outstanding sales contracts were valued by GCA with a recoverable
amount of Nil as at 31 March 2012. GCA adopted a discount cashflow
method using a pre-tax discount rate of 18% to value and forecast the
gross profit of each contract estimated by management.

The trademark was valued by GCA with recoverable amount of Nil as at
31 March 2012 adopted a multi-period excess earnings method using
a discount rate of 20% and financial projection covering a period of
approximately 5 years approved by management.

The Group decided to fully impair the carrying amount of the intangible
assets, the patent, outstanding sales contracts and trademark of
HK$4,151,000, HK$15,130,000 and HK$25,924,000 respectively for
the year ended 31 March 2012.

As there is no change for the recoverable amount of the intangible
assets. No reversal of impairment is provided for the year 2013.
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HERIE S W PTER 2 WA B 7 b B
o REEBENBET (T ——F:
B #2,121,00070) B FT ARG WRERPIT
BB o

R AN R BIEE - AD SHAMARE M
AIRERENEETEE AFEATFE
7378 #525,024,0007T ° EENERKAE B
EIEBRR ZNDE AR IR R 18% N B IR & A it
R E K5 FHIR < IS TR R AR IR
ERERBREZERURTFHFEREX
3% T T TR -

BRABERZAIEAFER - EEEHF
HRERZATRE SRR - WHE2®RAE ME
HERE BE_T——F=H=+—
BHIEFEREDFAGZEKER T EME
BRI -

HEAEEAMHUNR  PILEBREEY
Eges—T——&E=F=+—HILFEE
A B8R BB 4978 15 18,000,000 7T © &5 1R T
RE B R E B E IS R R RE
N BB T o B A B A NER
BAARAMERREBRFESR  ~A5E
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EZARESRNEREERER SHE
B {ERM 7B T EERE

ENEREEFER T ——F=A4
=t— B HAMOSELT - EFE
FHERBZ HREEANE  REREEE
P L/ 2 405 FF B fE 2 BA 7 TR RN A BR 3R
E19% REFEME

AERHESNBEEFER _T—=F
=HA=t—HiE EJKEeELE -
EEFERARRR S REEABATIE
TR EHHERBRAEREMEFES
#IZER -

BEREEFERN - —F=H=+—
Beth - HAREEBAT - EEFERK
FA % BRfE1 R 58 A A1 A DABR 3R = 20% K B 12
Eﬁt)&i&%%@SE,HHFHEJZEM‘%?EEEM%%
Zh1E

NEBARAERBE-_T——FE=A=1+—
BIEFREZEFREE BRI - RTEKEH
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 1. £YEE
The Group KEE

2013 2012
=B =4 =k
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok e
At beginning of the year REA] 913,049 1,173,150
Transfer to inventories HEERFE - (2,951)
Changes in fair value less costs to sell NEELERHEEKA (482,190) (150,419
Exchange movement b 5 2 &) (86,687) (106,731)
At end of the year REK 344,172 913,049

The Group’s forest assets, acquired through the business combination
of Amplewell Holdings Limited (“Amplewell”) and its subsidiaries
(“Amplewell Group”), are located in the Northwest of Brazil, the State
of Acre, Amazon Region (the “Brazil Forest”). At 31 March 2013 and
2012, the biological assets represent natural tropical forests. The total
area of the Brazil Forest is approximately 44,500 hectares. Under
the environmental laws in Brazil, 20% (2012: 20%) or 8,939 hectares
(2012: 8,939 hectares) of the Brazil Forest area is the permanent
preservation area and therefore is restricted from logging. At least
80% of the remaining area is designated as the sustainable forest
management area and the balance is the permissible clear cut area
that has no restriction on felling under the environmental laws of Brazil.
In the sustainable forest management area, minimum impact logging
techniques are used and forests are managed in a sustainable manner
which means that the harvesting rate is below the overall natural growth
of the forest. The main objective in sustainable forest management
program is to ensure the substance of the forests be preserved. The
maximum logging rate allowed under relevant regulations governing
sustainable forest management is 30 cubic meters per hectare, an
average, over a 25 to 30 year harvesting cycle.

On 27 March 2012, the board decided to suspend harvesting
operations in Acre for 1 year until the operating environment for UTRB
is improved. As disclosed in Note 9, UTRB and its staff had been
harassed by the Alleged Agent of the Main Contractor in the tree
felling service project in Rondonia. Not only was the tree felling service
project adversely affected by the Alleged Agent, he also created a
difficult and hostile environment for UTRB and its staff in Brazil. Since
the harassments began in February 2011, the Alleged Agent harassed
UTRB’s staff and their family with death threats in numerous instances.
The Group’s employees especially in Brazil were scared and UTRB
had experienced high turnover of personnel. As such, it was decided
to suspend harvesting operations in Acre to address the concerns
of its staff. For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recorded
a revaluation loss on biological assets of HK$482.1 million (2012:
HK$150.4 million). The fair value of the biological assets decreased
from HK$915,049,000 to HK$344,172,000. The decrease was
primarily attributable to the decrease in log prices, which decrease 37%
during the year, and depreciation of Brazilian Real against Hong Kong
dollars.

AEBEBBEHMREZERERRAR (M
B REKBAR (RER ) 2 #E/5E
B2 HmMEBEMMPE Rt 62 25 572 =M
TEEEMNE(ERHZEM®K]) R_F—=
ERZEBE——F=H=+—H £YEE
IBARABREZTN - EBRRMZBEENA
445007 - IREERAZRREE  BH
BMEREZ20% (ZF— =€ : 20%) 3%
8,939 N (=T —— 4 : 8,939 AE) AKX
AIRER - WERETE I 8B RETTIRE ©
BT EHERD80%IEEIEAAFHERME
B REERRRE  HHGEBUWE
PR Hl 2 REK (R - fE ] FHFERME IR &
BW - BRABKSIERZE 2 WA
MBRMTIARIFEZ FAER - RIFRK
HERERBFEMRBEBRAERRE - A8
FMNEEASZEZENABRRENAZ
MARBERE - A HBEHRMETE 2 A ES
ERINRFZRARKEAR_-_THE
=+ F 2RI BRI EREI0 K °

RZE——F=H=++H EF2RTE
EEDREZEMNZ2EARES—F EZEUTRB
ISR AR E AL o A AT
% UTRBREE THEMZETINZ KA
RFSTEE 3 EABE BB RIERE -
IERRIETEAKAREEB HRAFE
2. HAhASUTRBREES TEEB AR YR
SErBEEE - EREEHN_Z—F
“ARAREENR  BEHEREZRART
HEBREBURBEIRBEZRA - K&
BrvETI BRREEZEIRKRRE-
BHUTRBZ ETIRAXRFR - At » &
EER T EE 5 EIN 2 RAREL AR R
BTIZERE HE=ZT—=F=H=+—
BIEFE  AEEREVMEESSEME
B 482,100,000 L (=T —=F : B
150,400,0007T) c EMEE 2 A FEBRB
#915,049,000 7T B = & % 344,172,000
T EEZEREAEBERRERNTEKRI7T% K
B2 75 & dh R S S TE R B2 (BT B o
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21.

114

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the fair value of the biological
assets decreased from HK$1,173,150,000 to HK$913,049,000. The
decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in log prices,
decrease in remeasurement of allowable harvesting area; depreciation
of Brazilian Real against Hong Kong dollars; and increase in costs to
sell.

The forest engineer adopted the following methodology in determining
the harvestable area of the Brazil forests in the technical report used for
the 2012 and 2018 valuation. This methodology or standard (Modeflora
— Digital Model of Forest Exploration) was developed locally in Brazil
by Embrapa (Brazilian Enterprise for Agricultural Research). Adoption
is not mandatory by the state but recommended to the forest engineer
professionals.

During the valuation process, GCA referenced to a technical report
on estimation of quality and quantity of commercial and potentially
commercial wood species and residues resulting from the forest
exploitation issued by CAAP FORESTAL (“CAAP”). CAAP performs only
once diagnostic sampling for the whole farm area under current State
regulation. 100% census of the inventory will be performed to obtain a
new operating license for a UPA area. In general, it is common practice
by forest engineers to assume there is no change in the forest inventory
as the tropical natural forestry asset is very stable within five to ten
years, so there is not necessary to perform detailed sampling every
year. Rain forest is a long lasting asset if without human intervention
(Amazon forest is estimated to have existed for some 10 million years).
Temporary hostile climate, e.g. strong wind, heavy rain and flooding
do not change the natural habitat of the forest. Disease and fire might
affect the forestry assets, but to the best knowledge of the Company,
no known fire and abnormal wood disease were reported during the
periods covered under the valuation. Temperature might affect the
quality/volume of the forestry asset, but in a long term prospective
(which usually over decades) instead of affecting within a short period
of time.

Notwithstanding the above, CAAP obtains satellite image of the farms
in August every year with spatial resolution of 15 m (49 ft). This is to
recognize if there is any abnormal situation (e.g., sudden large scale
clearing/disappearing of trees) in the farms. It indicated that any object
or abnormality with 15m in size will be shown on the satellite image.
CAAP also monitors the daily updates on burns and fires in Brazil forest
area: http://www.inpe.br/queimadas/.
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EYEE @)
HE—_ZT——_F=A=+—HLFE &£
YA E 2 A FER B 1,173,150,000 7T
275 913,049,000 © EEHRREARER
K- EFtErREHEETRERY - B

BB BEEE AREERA LR
FITER o

AR IR BRMBRERERABATA
AR IE - ER T =FufhE
ErTEARM A #HREEE - ZHE
gk # 8 (Modeflora — Digital Model of Forest
Exploration) B8 Embrapa (Brazilian Enterprise
for Agricultural Research) i EE A 2% o BIZX
WG ERKRAZAE  EEREER
MIIZADHER -

HEBRBFR ZEEFELSE HCAAP
FORESTAL ([ CAAP ) FiT %% 3% i ZR PR A 2%
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21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

The Brazil Forest was independently valued by Greater China Appraisal
Limited (“GCA”), an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. GCA has experience in valuing similar
forestry assets. GCA has adopted a discounted cash flow methodology
in valuing the Brazil Forest. The following are the major assumptions
used in the valuation:

a logging volume of 21.5 m® (2012: 21.5 m?®) per hectare in the
sustainable forest management program area.

a post tax discount rate of 16.5% (2012: 15.8%) based on the
data and factors relevant to the economy of Brazil, the industry
of forest business and the harvestable resources in the Brazil
Forest, and the weighted average cost of capital.

harvesting activities for the first 30-year cycle will resume from
the calendar year of 2013 and complete in 7 years (2012: 7
years). Revenue or costs from subsequent harvesting cycle are
not taken into account.

average logs price growth at a rate of 3% per annum (2012:
3% per annum) in the next 7 years (2012: 7 years) which is the
expected long term growth rate was estimated by reference to
the Consumer Price Index in USA.

the Group will obtain Forest Stewardship Council (the “FSC”)
certification in 2015. FSC certification demonstrates fulfillment
of social and ecological criteria, while increasing the prices
achievable for timber products. Based on current market
practices, the directors estimate that the Group can enjoy a price
premium of 15% over non FSC timber products from 2015 when
the Group obtains the FSC certification.

The Group is exposed to a number of risks related to its natural forest.

(i)

(ii)

Regulatory and environmental risks

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in Brazil in which
it operates. The Group has established environmental policies
and procedures aimed at compliance with local environmental
and other laws. Management performs regular reviews to identify
environmental risks and to ensure that the systems in place are
adequate to manage those risks. The Directors are not aware of
any environmental liabilities as at 31 March 2013.

Supply and demand risk

The Group is exposed to risks arising from fluctuations in the
price and sales volume of logs. When possible the Group
manages this risk by controlling its harvest volume, according to
market conditions. Management performs regular industry trend
analysis to ensure the Group’s pricing policy is comparable to the
market and the projected harvesting volumes are consistent with
the expected demand.

21.
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22. GOODWILL 22. HE
The Group N EEEF
Sustainable
forest Zhongshan
management Operations Total
(note i) (note i)
AR AR
BEEEK NI et
(Ktazi) (Ktatii)
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Cost AR
At 1 April 2011 R_E——FMH—H 1,686,883 = 1,686,883
Avrising from acquisition of subsidiaries U BE Rt B 2 &) BT EE A= - 77,353 77,353
At 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 W—E—=—F=f=+—H§-
and 31 March 2013 —E-——FHWA-HEK
=F == H=[5-H 1,686,883 77,353 1,764,236
Accumulated impairment losses RiPREEE
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMA—H = = =
Impairment losses recognised RERNE BRI EREE
during the year 1,384,765 7853 1,462,118
At 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 R—_ZE——£=A=+—8-
and 31 March 2013 —E——FmMA-HEK
SRS B == 1,384,765 7l &1t 1,462,118
Carrying amounts BRE{E
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=1—H 302,118 - 302,118
At 31 March 2012 R=F—=—F=HA=+—H 302,118 = 302,118
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22. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes:

(i)

Sustainable forest management

Goodwill was allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit identified according
to the operating segment. Goodwill as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 was
attributable to the cash-generating unit that comprises the sustainable forest
management segment.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, goodwill relating to sustainable forest
management segment suffered an impairment loss of HK$Nil (2012: HK$1,385
million) primarily as a result of the deferral of harvesting plan; drop in timber
prices and decrease in remeasurement of allowable forest area.

The forest engineer adopted the following methodology in determining the
harvestable area of the Brazil forests in the technical report used for the 2012
and 2018 valuation. This methodology or standard (Modeflora — Digital Model
of Forest Exploration) was developed locally in Brazil by Embrapa (Brazilian
Enterprise for Agricultural Research). Adoption is not mandatory by the state
but recommended to the forest engineer professionals.

The recoverable amount of the sustainable forest management segment
cash-generating unit was based on value in use and was determined with the
assistance of an independent valuer.

Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated
from the continuing use of the unit. The calculation of the value in use was
based on the following key assumptions:

= Cash flows were projected based on past experience and financial
budget approved by management. The financial budget is for 7 years.
The management considers that the harvesting activities have 30-year
cycle so long period of budget can be justified. Management estimated
that the cash flows after 7 years (2012: 7 years) are immaterial to
the overall recoverable amount of the unit because the management
planned to complete the harvesting and selling activities for the first 30-
year cycle of the Brazil Forest within 8 years. Therefore, cash flows after
7 years (2012: 7 years) are not included in the value in use calculations.
Management estimated that there would be a negative growth of 71%
in year 7 as a result of the completion of harvesting and selling activities
for the first 30-year cycle of the Brazil forest.

— Revenue was projected based on management’s past experience and
their expectations for market development and the harvesting plan.

— Timber product average price growth at 3% per annum (2012: 3%
per annum). The expected long term growth rate was estimated by
reference to the Consumer Price Index in USA.

— A pre-tax discount rate of 25.75% (2012: 27.84%) based on the data
and factors relevant to the economy of Brazil, the forest industry, the
timber products in the Brazil Forest, and the weighted average cost of
capital.

= The Group will obtain FSC certification in 2015. FSC certification
demonstrates fulfillment of social and ecological criteria, while
increasing the prices achievable for timber products. Based on current
market practices, the directors estimate that the Group can enjoy a
price premium of 15% over non FSC timer products from 2015 when
the Group obtains the FSC certification.
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22. GOODWILL (continued)

118

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

KRMEZERBRD A

Zhongshan Operations
The goodwill of HK$77,353,000 arising from the acquisition of Zhongshan
Operations represented the future economic benefits from the synergy effect of
the business combination.

The entire value of Zhongshan operations segment was considered impaired
as of 31 March 2012, and an impairment loss on goodwill of HK$77 million was
recorded. Details of the impairment are disclosed in Note 41.

The recoverable amount of Zhongshan operations segment cash-generating
unit was based on value in use and was determined with the assistance of
GCA.

The value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows
generated from the continuing use of the unit. The calculation of the value in
use was based on the following key assumptions:

— Cash flows for Zhongshan operations segment were projected based
on past experience and financial budget approved by management.
Management estimated that the cash flows after 5 years are immaterial
to the overall recoverable amount of the unit.

— Revenue for Zhongshan operations segment was projected based on
management’s expectation for market development and the existing
agreement with customers.

= The expected long term growth rate is 3% per annum was estimated
by reference to the Consumer Price Index in USA.

- A pre-tax discount rate of 22.70% based on the data and factors
relevant to the economy of China, and the weighted average cost of
capital.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, goodwill relating to Zhongshan operations
segment suffered an impairment loss of HK$77 million. Zhongshan Operations
incurred a net loss of approximately HK$18 million in its first year of operations
since consolidation into the Group. The net loss was mainly due to rapid slow
down of the PRC property market and falling property prices in the PRC. As
a result of the uncertainties in the PRC economy and continued depressed
timber demand and prices, the Group considered that the value of the goodwill
related to Zhongshan Operations suffered impairment. Please refer to Note 41
for more details on the acquisition of Zhongshan Operations.

—EB- /CE-=5FHK

22. BHE )

Hret - (&)

(ii)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE

23. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

23. B RIER

The Company
PN

2013 2012

—E—=F bl

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T P T IT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR ¢ REAS =+ =
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE B B R B3R IE 2,319,484 2,655,161
2,319,484 2265558I16G)

Less: Impairment losses B REEE (1,978,771) (1,618,236)
340,713 936,925

Total investment cost are HK$9 (2012: HK$10).

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and had no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the
Company’s director, these advances are considered as quasi-
equity loans to the subsidiaries.

The decrease of the amounts due from subsidiaries is due to the
application of the deregistration of the subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 March 2013.

BREK A BB ITT(ZFE—=14F : BK10
JT) °

RN BARFIAREER 22N
SRR BRI M E A m R 2 A

ReEY

BEER -

FEUHT B8 A B RR A Th R K B A
ARBE_T—=fF=H=+—HIt
FEERFPOBEMATE -

The movement in the allowance for impairment losses during the ) FRRBEBEREZESHIMOT :
year was as follows:

2013 2012
—R-=F == 20
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T TSI
Balance brought forward ISR 1,618,236 15,284
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 360,535 1,602,952
Balance carried forward T3 1,978,771 1,618,236

For the year ended 31 March 2013, as a result of deferred
harvesting plan and decline in market prices of timber, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that an impairment
of HK$360,535,000 was made.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, as a result of deferral,
decline in market prices of timber and the unexpected
operating performance of Zhongshan operations, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that an impairment of
HK$1,602,952,000 was made.

e e i =
- AREEREKEE RAMME
Tk RABIEZERAE  BELEE
360,535,000 7T Z B {E °

rEn = = G5 5| =5 = (5] 54
B AREEBRMER  AMTE
TERLA R AR L 75 2 48 & R IR A
B8 ARBIEERE - DELEE
1,602,952,000 JT 2 B (& °
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23. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

()

120 KRMEZRBR A

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

23. BN TR &)

(c) MIBATFBWT :

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issued and equity attributable
operations paid up capital to the Company
Name R/ MK EETR EARES Principal activities
£ men BRRAFE RERDL TEER
directly indirectly
E# BE:3
Amano Holdings Limited Cyprus 1,000 ordinary shares of = 100 Inactive
ERRE Euro1 each TmEE
1,000 & R
BREE1ET
Amplewell Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - 100 Investment holding
R ERBR AR EERUHS US$1 each REER
1B SRR
FRERIET
Anex International Management Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100 - Human resources management
Limited Bk HKS1 each ANERER
ZETEARERERAA 1RE B
BREEEK1T
AW Holdings Limited * Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 Inactive
ZEERERAF Bk HK$1 each TR
1SR AR
BREESK1T
Eastmark Holding Ltd. Samoa 3,350 ordinary shares of - 100 Investment holding
EED US$1 each REER
3,350 R & i
BREE1ET
Firm Well Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - 100 Investment holding
REBRRA RERAES US$1 each RERR
1 SRR
UG ERE
Great Path Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100 = Investment holding
ERERRA REERUHE US$1 each REER
1R E AR
BREE1ZT

—EB- /CE-=5FHK
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23. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

()

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

e B B R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 52— —=4=A=+—RH L EE

23. B A RIHER 5

(c) MBARFBMT : (4

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issued and equity attributable
operations paid up capital to the Company
Name L/ MK BETR KRR E Principal activities
£ Ted BRBRAFE RERDL TEEH
directly indirectly
B 5k
Manzhouli Yongbao Forestry China Paid up registered capital - 100 Inactive
Co., Ltd.* (Formerly knownas of US$75,000 TEER
“Manzhouli Eastmark Wooden BT MmARA
Products Co., Ltd") ** (Note (j) 75,000% 7T
M 2K RAER R
(ARE DM EREARE
BRAR L) (Hiat()
New On Creation Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of = 100 Investment holding
MREIRERA] BE HK$1 each KA
10,000 R & ik
BREBEE 1T
Originate Tech Global Investments  British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - 100 Investment holding
Limited RBRNHES US$1 each REER
BIRIRIREBR AR 1 SRR
BREE1ET
SFH Innovation Limited * Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of - 100 Construction and trading of
XREIRBR AR 55 HK$1 each wooden building materials
100 REER RERMRRREE
BREBEEIT
SFH Trading Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 Timber and wood products
KREZHBB AR B HK$1 each trading
1 SRR A RAREREE
BREBSE T
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23. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 23. B AR

(c) Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (c) MIBATFERBWT : (&)

KRMEZERBRD A

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issued and equity attributable
operations paid up capital to the Company
Name R/ MK BRTR KRR ER Principal activities
£ Re BRBRAFE RERDL TEEH
directly indirectly
B 5F:
SFH Trading (USA) Inc. United States of America 1,000 common stocks of = 100 Procurement business
%M US$0.001 each REBXK
1,000 B & R
HREE0.001ETT
SFH Homes Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 Trading business
(Formerly known as “SFH E% HK$1 each ZHEK
Trading (Zhongshan) Limited) 1 RSB
KRREERBRAR BREERET
(A KRE S (RL)BRAR])
Susfor-Oasis Timber China Paid up registered capital - 100 Manufacturing and sales of
(Zhongshan) Co. Ltd.™ H of RMB5,091,000 timber products
BT RN AR E BB AR~ ESREMER AMEREEREE
ARH5,001,0007C
Total Integrity Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of = 100 Inactive
EERUHE US$1 each TmE%
1R i
BREE1ZT
Universal Timber Resources Brazil R$12,049,136 - 100 Sustainable management of
do Brasil Ltda. i 12,049,136 Z = and investment in natural

(Formerly knowns as
“Universal Timber Resources
do Brasil Participacao Ltda.”)

(A7 [Universal Timber Resources

do Brasil Participacao Ltda. |)
(“Universal Timber”)
(TUniversal Timber )

—EB- /CE-=5FHK

forests, timber and wood
processing, timber trading
and timber sales, marketing
and tree felling services

RABARIHEEERRE
ARARIT - AMEE -
AHEE RTGHE
IAREA RS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

()

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

e B B R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #;

= 2= == HE - —|HlIEE

23. B A RIERE @)
() MEATHBWT : (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issued and equity attributable
operations paid up capital to the Company
Name L/ MK BETR KRR E Principal activities
£ ik BRBRAFE RERDL TEEH
directly indirectly
B 5k
SFH (China) Limited" Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of - 100 Investment holding
KERIE (R E) BB AE BE HK$1 each RERR
100/ E Bk
FREESE T
Prevalent Success Limited Samoa 1 ordinary share of - 100 Investment holding
EED US$1 each REER
1RERER
BREEIET
Triumph Trade Limited Samoa 1 ordinary share of - 100 Investment holding
EED US$1 each RERR
1SR
BREGAIET
Absolute Able Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of - 100 Inactive
EERUHE US$1 each TmE%
100 & & imiR
BREME1ET
Acenergy Limited British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of - 100 Inactive
RERAES US$1 each e
100 B & SRR
FREET1ET
3 The subsidiaries are applying for the deregistration. 3 ZEMTB A RIIE BB BCEF °
i The English translation of Chinese name is for identification purpose only. g X & 12 X B (E (RS A o

ol Wholly-foreign owned enterprise registered in China.

0] The subsidiary has been deregistered on 17 June 2013.

o RPEEMZINEEEER -

(i) ZHBARER-—"ZT—=FAt+t
B BUHRERMT ©
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24. DEPOSIT FOR PURCHASE OF PROPERTY,

124

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Pursuant to a memorandum of understanding and its extension
agreement (collectively “MOUs”) entered into between UTRB and
Berena on 1 June 2009 and 28 March 2011, respectively, UTRB
paid a total advanced deposit of R$6,400,000 (or approximately
HK$30,336,000 as of 31 March 2011) to acquire a factory, machinery
and equipment. UTRB occupied the factory and used the machinery
and equipment from July 2009 to January 2012. Pursuant to the
MOUs, the advanced deposit shall be used to offset against the
purchase price in the event that a definitive agreement shall be entered
into for the purchase of the factory, machinery and equipment on or
before 31 March 2012 (the “Expiry Date”), or as rental payments if no
such acquisition agreement is reached.

On 27 July 2010, Berena entered into a loan agreement lending
R$3,000,000 (or approximately HK$14,220,000 as of 31 March 2011)
to UTRB with maturity on 27 January 2011. The loan agreement was
subsequently renewed on 28 March 2011 extending maturity to 27
January 2012.

No definitive acquisition agreement for the purchase of the factory
was reached between the parties on or before the Expiry Date.
On 1 January 2012, Berena and UTRB entered into an agreement
(“Termination Agreement”) to offset the loan and its accured interests
payables of R$3,416,000 (or approximately HK$15,732,000 as of
14 February 2012) against the advanced deposit of R$6,400,000
(or approximately HK$29,477,000 as of 14 February 2012). The net
difference of R$2,984,000 (or approximately HK$13,745,000) would
have been rental expenses for the usage of the factory from July 2009
to January 2012. In addition, UTRB entered into an agreement on 30
December 2011 and paid R$320,000 (or approximately HK$1,364,000)
to purchase some machinery and equipment from Berena.

On 7 April 2011, Berena became a related company to the Group as
the ultimate beneficial owner of Berena joined the Group as part of the
senior management team.

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH

24. WEYE  BERREZTE

R UTRBEBerena D B — 2 E HLFE N
FlIs= Eli=ed——=4= =5 =ap /\ BT 22
MERE T R HIE 3 (5 [ REE s
8%1) - UTRB X [NTEfIE] & & £6,400,000 &
TE(ER_E——F=A=+—BHBK
30,336,000 7T ) AU EE R = - #4238 Rkt o
UTRBE-_ZZNFtAE_ZT——F—A8
ﬁﬁﬁ;mz%&@i%%%%%& S5 o ARIERARE
= MR =E——F=A=t+—A8(Em
Hﬁﬁj)izm@tﬁﬁaﬂﬁ% - B KRR AEET AL
ER % - BT ERAEREREER @ X
HARREER A BB - BIZERS -

RZZE—ZFFLH=_++tH " Berenaz] L
B Z W= mUTRB{E 13,000,000 F &8
BER-_ZE——F=A=1+—BHBK
14,220,0007T) ' BIEAHA - ——F— A
Z++tH  EFpEAEER =T ——F=A
—+/\BEEE  mIHBIEEE=—=
£ —=H =+ Hye

&M B s 2Rl - S AW EREERER]
S IER B c R=FT—=—F—A—A8
Berena & UTRB RT3zt ([ 4% 1E 5% ]) + A
B H 25T A FIE 3,416,000 F 25 FE (31
MZ—ZT——F = A+09H%#% 15,732,000
70 ) 3K 88 78 1+ 5T £ 6,400,000 55 55 /8 ( 3k 1
—E——F = A1+ A 4% 29,477,000
JT) ° 5‘%%%@%29840005 TR B

#13,745,000t) RE —_ZTTNLEF LA =E
—E——F-AFEABEZEERAX - It
b » VR =8 pes g JEES - [S)E]
S a0 3 £1320,000%F 55 B (48 K
1,364,0007T) (W] Berenall B %5 T #4323 & 284 ©

RZZE——FMALH " AR BerenaZ &
KREBEEANALEEZ 5 EEEBK -
i Berena il BAK B 2 BB A F)
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25. INVENTORIES
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 52— —=4=A=+—RH L EE

25. &

2013 2012
—E = T =g s
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE BT T BT T
Timber logs R AR AR A @) - 1,425
Sawn timber SE (b) 3,320 48,126
Raw materials JRAMH ©) - 3,212
Work in progress RS () - 83
Finished goods RIEK (c) 1,017 12,782
4,337 65,628
Notes: Hfat
(@) The timber logs were harvested from the biological assets during the year (a) BHE-T——-F=A=+t—HLEFER 'R
ended 31 March 2012. RNAM TR EYEERRK
(b) The sawn timber was purchased for trading purpose. (o) FEMTIREERERMEA
© These inventories were held for further processing or sale. (© ZEFERBEE—SMIHHERS -
(d) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as (d ERABRAXZFESEIMAT :

follows:

2013 2012

—B—=f = e G

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFSREE 65,458 112,083
Write down of timber logs (Note 10) WOR R ARAM (Hfa 10) = 1,781
Write down of inventories (Note 10) WomF & (M 10) 44,840 =
Write off of timber logs (20712: Note 9) WA RAANM (ZF— =4 : f{:79) - 233,572
110,298 347,436
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

126

26. W E Z A R H R YRIE

The Group The Company
REE b N/N|

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=F = s —E—=f —FE—TiE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT BET T BT

Trade receivables EWE 5 30E 274 955 - -

Other receivables = e 5,608 10,279 - -

Amount due from a director M —REEFIE 183 456 - =
(Note i) (Htazi)

Amount due from a shareholder FEU—Z R N IE 422 - - -
(Note i) (Kiati)

Prepayments and deposits BRNFERES 4,096 6,282 769 3,011

10,583 17,972 769 3,011

All of

the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered

within one year.

Notes:

)

(i

The amount due from a director was unsecured, interest free and had no fixed
terms of repayment. The maximum outstanding amount during the year is
approximately HK$183,000. As at 1 April 2012 and 1 April 2011, the amount
due from a director was approximately HK$456,000 and HK$Nil respectively.

The amount due from a shareholder was unsecured, interest free and had no
fixed terms of repayment.

FT B FE W E 5 5RT8 Ko Bt FE MR TR ¥9 TR HA
R—FRUKE -

Bt

(0

BR—2ESHEAERR 2ERERTE
B - FAREERESRS BN ABE
183,000t e R=—TE——-—FWA—BR=-F
——FHA—BZER—BESHED RN
A58 456,000 T KB EE T ©

FEW —EZRRFIARBER  REREEE
B o

(@) Trade receivables (@ EWRESHE

The aging analysis of the trade receivables as of the reporting RERBH - BEZAHFEZER

date, based on invoice date, was as follows: ESRIBZREBEDTIT ¢
2013 2012
=B—=F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 197 922
31 to 60 days 31E=60H = 18
61 to 90 days 61290H = =
Over 90 days Q0 HIA E 77 15
274 955
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit BR¥EFE—MAEBRMREREEZT
and letters of credit, except for new customers where payment eI REBAZ@HLTREEE
in advance and cash on delivery are normally required. Invoices HRIACEHAEBRS o BE BN
are normally payable between 30 and 180 days after issuance. HE3E1B0RRAZF - BR2EF
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks B AREEERE - AEEHARKME
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and Z FEWGRIA B T B AGIEH - WE AL
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue EERGEETER  URESERIK
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. Further FERR SREEETHENE
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note 43. HEER o BN EBEEBRE—FF

IEH P FE4S -
KEMEZRERAT —FT—— /—"Z-—=FFHK
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

()

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

Trade receivables that are not impaired
The aging analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows:

26. FEWNE 5 I R H B WK IH

(#8)

(b)

(c)

W E 5 RIEZRE

BREWE SHRZRERBRETER
R ARAC S - HEfn A8 55 B3R 25 Wk [ 3K
HeHEEM  RIBEBESERR
FEUCE 5 FRIAMSH o

I B 2 R E 2 KR

I BRI (B Bl s SR BB E 2 &
WESHAZREOMT

The Group The Company
AEE b N

2013 2012 2013 2012
SRS NS = S e e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT T BT
Neither past due nor impaired 3 48 260 HA 78 AR (B 197 28 = =
Less than 1 month past due EH DR —E A - 894 - -
1 to 3 months past due BH—==10A = 18 = -
Over 3 months past due EEA=E A N E 77 15 - £
_________________________________________________________________ [ 2 e Y w pe W5
274 955 - -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group for whom there was no recent history of
default. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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I B HA TR R E 2 FE W E 5 IR TS
HEF AT R AR ek 2 NREEIER P
B - SEBE ERE 2 YR
BEZBURFAR RERAKHE
BRFEBERLE - MHTRERK
L8 REBUAERLR  BRNEEER
WEEAZE  IWFERDPAR DA
ARBURM - REEEREBAR L
FHEBELRERE - AEEXER
M E AR A TR o
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27.

28.
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=i EAI= T Bt

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. BERBREEEY
The Group The Company
AEE RKAFE
2013 2012 2013 2012
== R T T e e T
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’000
BET T PEHETFIT BET T ST TT
Cash at bank and on hand, RITRFEREEUR
and cash and cash equivalents KRBTSR TR
in the statement of ZHe R
financial position HeEEY 216,540 7,760 216,281 2,166
Cash and cash equivalents in the RIFRIREeRERZ
consolidated statement of cash flows BeMREEEY 216,540 7,760
Cash and bank balances denominated LA A R ¥ %I{E >~
in Renminbi Re RIRTTHET 119 1,297

Renminbi is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange Renminbi for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

The interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with banks ranged

ARBETAARABBHEMER - AW -
R o B KB 2 51 EE B 32 R 1 LA S S B
EERMNEEERRTE  ASEREELE
RIEETINEEB ZRITEARB AR

fﬁﬁfﬁ/f&%ﬁ ﬁ K2 HENFFF0.01%

from 0.01% to 8.4% (2012: 0.005% to 8.4%) per annum. £84% (ZF—=% : 0.005% £8.4%) °
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. ENEZRERHEMEMNKE
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
“®-=Ff _—B¥-—F "B-=F _—F-_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
KtaE BET T BT T BET T BT I
Trade payables JENE S8 @) 51,650 177,997 - -
Other payables and accruals £ & 1~ 3518 &
FEETE A 19,818 22,049 3,303 7,918
Amounts due to related FETRE:E R A
companies IE (b) 7,933 12,264 - -
Financial liabilities measured ~ #&Zi# $lpk A5t 2
at amortised costs ZURaE 79,401 212,310 3,303 7,918
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be repaid or P e & 5 3R T8 I At [l SR IE TR B S

recognised as income within one year or had no fixed terms of

repayment.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(@)

(b)

Trade payables

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on invoice date, was as follows:

28. ENEZRERHEMENTKIE

(#8)

@ ENEZREA
RBEPWEEE - RERADHE
ZAEEENESFAZ BRI NN

N

2013 2012
—_B—=£ TS
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 3,930 5,200
31 to 60 days 31£260H 190 2,717
Over 90 days (note (i) 90 H A L (Htat () 47,530 170,080
51,650 177,997

Note: Bt -

(i) Trade payables as of 31 March 2012 included HK dollars equivalent
amounts of HK$114 million and HK$10 million payable to two suppliers
for African timber and logs, and North American logs, respectively. The
logs were purchased and sold to PRC customers during the financial
year ended 31 March 2011. The Group agreed with these two suppliers
to terminate its purchase agreement with them on 31 May 2012. The
Group recognised the waiver of liabilities for trade creditors as other
income during the year ended 31 March 2013. Please refer to Note 8(i)

for details of the purchases and the related sales.

In addition, trade payables also included equivalent R$10 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$40 million at 31 March 2013 and
HK$45 million at 31 March 2012). This sum represented service fees
payable to a subcontractor for a tree felling service project in Rondonia,
Brazil. UTRB had disputes with the subcontractor and it abandoned the
site. No further work was subcontracted to them after the year ended
31 March 2011 as UTRB was not assigned any area for clearing by the
hydropower plant of this project in the financial year ended 31 March
2012 and 2013, and no amount was paid by UTRB either. UTRB is
not aware of any claims or lawsuits filed by the subcontractor at the

relevant courts.

Amounts due to related companies

The amounts were unsecured, interest free and had no fixed
terms of repayment. The director of the related companies is also

the director of certain Group’s subsidiaries.

[0} R-E——F=A=t—HZEMZ
SR BBIED BIER B IEMNAH K&
RN PR LA R AL E R AR RS 2
- SR IE 4948 2 7 45 #5 114,000,000 7T
R 5#10,000,0007C - HE-FT——
FZA=t+—HUMBEEMEEZ
RAREEFHEARS - R_T—=F
FA=+—H AEEHRZREHE
ARERIEEEBERZ - AEENE
B === B == [E I EER
BB S EEAREBEER BRI
A o FREERBBHE 2 BELHEN
= 8() °

o ERNEBESRERLERE
#®10,000,000% = BW( 4 # & R
—E—=F=RA=+—BHzH%
40,000,000t kR =—TE——&=A
=+— Bz ##45,000,0007T) ° B
BeEERNNERABEZREEMNZ
KARRBEE EBRHREZREE -
UTRBE S B % AT - KEME
Zisih o BRUTRBREZ =2 —=
Ep_E—=F=A=+—HLHK
FEARZBEZ KN EERESTR
EMEEZEREIE  BREE_Z
——F=ZA=+—RAILFEEABER
BEE— 5B T fUTRBINLE
£ 3 (TR FE - UTRBIE N &12E B
D EERIERART IR Z R
FFEA ©

*F

(b) EFABEATFIE
BERZEAEER e RERTE
2 HEBEARZEENANEEE
FHEBARZES -
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29. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

130

29. ERREE

The Group The Company
+£8 A48
2013 2012 2013 2012
“B-=f —F-f —E-=f —E2--f
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it BETR BETT BT BETT
Bank loans, secured BHERZRITER @ = 83 P :
Secured interest-bearing loan BEEZHEER (2013: Note e
2012: Note b)
(ZF—=%: fite
ZE——F Jii#b) 36,132 7,206 - 7,206
Unsecured interest-bearing loan ERR7FEET (©) - 18,000 - 18,000
36,132 25,289 - 25,206
Carrying amount repayable: RATHRARE ZERE
On demand or within one year EEZXE—FR 36,132 25,289 - 25,206
More than one year but not BA—FATRARE
exceeding two years - - - =
More than two years but not BEMFATRARE
more than five years = L 2 A
36,132 25,289 - 25,206
Less:  Amounts due within one year W RBEEETIA
shown under current liabilties R—FREH 2 708 (36,132) (25,289) - (25,206)

Non-current liabilities

JEREIAE

(@)

KRMEZERBRD A

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had total banking facilities of
HK$NIl (2012: HK$83,000) of which HK$Nil (2012: HK$83,000)
had been utilised.

The bank loan of HK$Nil (2012: HK$83,000) was secured by the
Group’s motor vehicles with a carrying amount of HK$Nil (2012:
HK$196,000) (Note 19) and is bearing interest at a fixed rate of
Nil% (2012: 23.87%) per annum. The bank loan was fully repaid
during the year 2013.

On 4 November 2011, the Company entered into a HK$12.8
million Term Loan agreement with an independent third party (the
“Lender”). The loan was guaranteed by Assure Gain International
Limited, a shareholder of the Company, and Mr. YIP Kam Kuen,
an employee of the Group. The loan carried monthly interest
of one percent (four percent per month in case of default) and
had maturity falling two months after the draw down of the loan.
Based on subsequent agreement, repayment were rescheduled
into installments with maturity extended. The entire loan plus
accrued interests payable were repaid in full on 15 June 2012.

—EB- /CE-=5FHK

RE-T—=F=A=+—H ' K&£H
BRTREBEESET (T ——
F : FBH83,0007T) ERABEZ T
(=ZZ— =4 : B%83,0007T) 2 &
}Sﬁ o

RITERBETT(—T——F: 8
# 83,000 7T ) JIABREE ABEZ T
(ZZ——4F : #%196,0007T) 2 A&
EESE (M E19) EHE T - Wi E
EFFEEE(ZFT——_F :2387
B)itB - RITERER T —=F

R_ZT——F+—AWA ' KNAAE
—ZBYFE=HFTEHFFIAZL—18
75 # 12,800,000 7T & H3 B R 5 5% ©
I8 B 3} H AN A A7) f% 3R Assure Gain
International Limited & 78 & & (g & &
SRS LE IR IER - HTEERIREA
FMEABE(RIERERBFTA4E) -
BREREREMEAE B Em -
RIEEE R BEEERNASHE
3 WERERE - 2EEFCEREN
2FNEER=_E——F,A+EHA
EEUEST -
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29. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

()

On 19 December 2011, the Company and an independent
third party (“Investor”) entered into (1) the Equity Line Facility
Agreement (“ELF Agreement”) and (2) a Debt Facility Agreement
(“DF Agreement”). Pursuant to the DF Agreement, the Lender
agrees to grant the Debt Facility to the Company, comprising
the Initial Loan in the principal amount of HK$30 million and the
Renewal Loan in an aggregate maximum amount of up to HK$80
million which may be re-borrowed up to a maximum of ten (10)
times to be granted by the Lender to the Company. The Initial
Loan was repayable in five installments with the last one falling on
the sixty-first trading day after the draw down of the Initial Loan.
There is no interest payable under the Initial Loan and Renewal
Loan. A draw down fee of 3.25% on the principal amount of the
Initial Loan and Renewal Loan is payable to the Lender upon
each drawn down. As of 31 March 2012, HK$18 million was
outstanding under the Initial Loan. The Initial Loan was repaid in
full on 6 June 2012.

On 27 July 2010, UTRB entered into a loan agreement with an
independent third party (the “Lender”) whereby UTRB borrowed
a loan of R$3,000,000 (the “Loan”) from the Lender for the
period from 27 July 2010 to 27 January 2011. On 28 March
2011, UTRB signed an extension agreement with the Lender
to extend the maturity date of the Loan from 27 January 2011
to 27 January 2012. The Loan is unsecured and bears interest
at 2.7% per month. The carrying amount of the Loan as at 31
March 2011 included the principal of R$3,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$14,220,000) and interest payable of
R$800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,794,000).

On 27 June 2011, UTRB entered into an agreement with the
Lender whereby the Lender agreed to reduce the interest rate of
the Loan from 2.7% to 0.5% per month, retroactively from the
date of commencement of the Loan.

On 7 April, 2011, the Lender became a related company to the
Group. The balance of the loan of HK$15,732,000 was offset
entirely on 14 February 2012. Please refer to Note 24 for further
details.

20. ERREE®

©)]

R=ZF—F+=A+hB ' xad
BB E=H([&E&EHFILA)
BAREE ([ RARE R & (2
EERE T ((EEmERE] - B
BESRERHS  REERERAEARQ
AERLEGRE  EHEEACEAR
75 # 30,000,000 7T Z ¥ 45 B 3% K 48
SR % A5%80,000,000 T2 E#H
Bx AIHBEARAQREHNE LR
Z+(10)R - NIZERD AHEE
B —HPRRBVFERENT—E
R8I EFRREHER BT
B MARSRREROES X5
BEREEHERAEEEZ 3.25%
BR - N-_TE——F=A=+—H
1  BE #IE T A 7% % 18,000,000 7T
HMAEE - MFERER -_E——F
NANBERER -

R—ZT—ZFF+HA_-_++H "  UTRB
B—2BE=F(EFDIER
Wik #BL  UTRBEZZ —ZF+
A2 rglE BSEEs = =
HHEIM M E 7 & A 3,000,000 & 58 6
ZERTEZFRD) R-T——F=
B=-+N\H ' UTRBEE LR
Wi WEERIHAR T ——F
—A-t+tBIEEE —T— —F—
A-Z+tH - ERAEEBEEEA
BRE27TEHNE - RZT——F=
A=+—B ExZEEESER
% 3,000,000 5 25 /8 (4 12 & RS &
14,220,000 7T ) & F& 1 # £ 800,000
T I (AUAEE P #43,794,0007T) °

RZE——F/,A=++tH ' UTRB
MEFEIIBE - Bt - BEARES
EXZBRANEHB27ERAKE0S
B BMEEHHR A EBRER -

RZIZE—FWMALH  BEAKSE
SBEZBERR - ZIBERZHEHE
#15,732,000tER=_E—ZF =
AT HBEEUEE -  BRE T
% B2RIME24 -
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29. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

(€)

At 31 March 2013, the interest-bearing loan was secured by
share charge in favour of the lender over the entire issued share
capital of a wholly owned subsidiary, Acenergy Limited. The
Group may borrow up to HK$50 million within a 12-month period
commencing the date of the loan agreement. Interest rate is
18% per annum and maturity in one lump sum 18 months after
the first draw down under the loan agreement. Notwithstanding
the above, the Group may prepay any loan amount outstanding
after 12 months from the first draw down without penalties. As
disclosed in note 46(c), the interest-bearing loan was fully repaid
on 8 May 2013.

30. FINANCE LEASES PAYABLES

At 31 March 2013, the Group had finance leases payables as follows:

20. ERREE®

)

e es =5k = B re=Elo s
EH A —K2E KB 2 7l Acenergy
Limited 2 & #B B 21T R AE & IR 1
WA FERA - AER % EH
Bttt EAHEA NEBRS
A & A% ¥ 50,000,000 7T © F F R
B18[E ' BRIBIEER B E IR
HE+ AR —EBEE &
TEREMBERT AEETREIR
e BCEE BT 1 = A 1& T8 S 8 £
HEREREEMBAZE - HAME
ABC)FTHE  STEERR=_Z—=
FRANBEEEE -

30. ENMEMELY
R-ZE—=#=A=1—0 A£EIE

HRERLOWT :
The Group NEE
2013 2012
—E—= ==
Present
value of the Total
minimum minimum  Present value Total
lease lease of the minimum minimum lease
payments payments lease payments payments
BEHSEAE BEHESEE SEHeRE =EHSEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BT T TSI
Within 1 year —ER - - 100 113
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRBERFEA - - 250 281
- - 350 394
Less: total future interest B BRI SR
expenses 4R - (44)
Present value of lease obligations 8 49 #&EIR(E - 350
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CONSIDERATION PAYABLES 31. ERRE
The Group
TEE
2013 2012
—T_=£ —EE— s
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat BET T BT
At beginning of the year F9 = 1
Consideration for acquisition of WHEM B AR 2R E
subsidiaries 41 = 71,183
Waiver of consideration payable HNeEMRE - (71,183)
At end of the year FIR = -

Referring to Note 41, the Group acquired Zhongshan Operations on
2 August 2011 for a total consideration of 769,230,769 shares of the
Company. The total consideration was payable in three tranches with
tranches 2 and 3 contingent upon meeting net profit guarantee by the
Vendor. As part of the acquisition, the Vendor guaranteed that Susfor-
QOasis must not incur any net losses for each of the three financial years
immediately after completion. For the year ended 31 March 2012 (first
year of operations after consolidation into the Group), Susfor-Oasis
had a net loss of approximately HK$18 million. As such, the net profit
guarantee was not met and tranches 2 and 3 under the acquisition
were not payable.

SEASONALITY OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s forest operations in Brazil is located in the Amazon and
is subject to weather conditions during the rainy season ranging
roughly from December to April each year. Forest logging activities in
the Amazon are substantially scaled down or stopped completely in
some areas. Log prices usually increase during the rainy season due
to diminished supplies. This affects many sawmill operators that have
to stock up logs and tie up significant working capital, but benefit
forest owners who can plan ahead to reserve stock pile prior to the
start of the rainy season. The Group incorporates this seasonality in its
forest management plan to avoid supply shortage as well as to take
advantage of seasonal price differentials in logs.

32.

B EMATR  AEEBER =T ——
FNAZBKRBEBRLER BREB
769,230,769 R AR A R I o BREH =it
SN B HRE=RFIAREBEES
ERMATIRER  FEEE - ERKE—
o BBHREKEFEMNDBEETKE
“ A RFESFATEELEEMEBRE
H-REE-_ZE——F=A=t+—HItHE
E(REAEBEHEREETT) KR
A7 M 8713 B5 18 75 BB 49)8 % 18,000,000 JT ©
it - AEFR B ARG ER - B AT UK
BE-_REZHRE-

RB 2 E=HMHEER
AEEREAZMERBURDHFE - ©
MEXRRMRARS - MEE—REE
FT_HENA - THERMREEER
BARERD  RNETHREMTEREIE -
AMER—RRBELT - TR EER
DB WHESZREABRELEE  ©%
EREEFAREAN MREAELEES
BUHBAESANEEESTRERE  BE
AT BN R ERT R ET AN - NREEK
U= R R AR E RS - LA R
HEER WA XERAM FHIEERE
) o
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33.

134

=i EAI= T Bt

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 33. REMBRRRZABH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (@ ZEMBMRRRZEBHER
financial position represents: *:
2013 2012
—B—=£ T =
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax ANEEBRBNEHEE
for the year 799 -
Balance of Profits Tax provision WA FEANFREESR
relating to prior years 49,456 49,456
50,255 49,456
(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (b) E BAREEHEAE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RiFE P BRARERZ BENIER
consolidated statement of financial position and the movement EZZHEZ‘B > REFREFHNT
during the year is as follows:
Classified as liabilities associated
Consolidated statement of financial position with assets held for sale
GREBHRR. PERERFHELERRZAE
Chita forests operation
FERMER
Property, Property,
plant and plant and
equipment Biological Intangible equipment Intangible
VER 1 assets Inventories assets Sub-total 0% BE assets Sub-total Total
K&k ENEE 78 BYEE it R&f BVEE it 5t
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o S BB BETR EETL BB BETT Eaw EETT BB
At 1 Apri 2011 76,615 354,646 23,080 - 454,341 8,167 29,402 37,569 491,910
Acquisttion of subsidiaries - - - 11,899 11,899 - - - 11,899
Credited to consolidated income statement - (52,146) (23,080) (11,899 (87,125) - - - (87,125)
Exchange movement (7,717) (31,834) - - (39,551) (26) (90) (116) (39,667)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 42) = = v = = (8,141) (29312) (37,453) (37,453)
At 31 March 2012 68,898 270,666 - - 339,564 - - - 339,564
At 1 April 2012 68,898 210,666 - - 339,664 - - = 330,564
Credited to consolidated
income statement - (163,944) - - (163,944) - - - (163,944)
Exchange movement EREE (6,741) 25,583) - - (32,324) - - - (32,324)
At 31 March 2013 W=2-=£=f=+-A 62,157 81,139 = = 143,296 = - = 143,296

At 31 March 2013, the Group has tax losses of approximately
HK$496,425,000 (2012: HK$549,287,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available for the companies in which losses arose.
The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$64,090,000 (2012:
HK$16,410,000) available for offsetting against future profits that may
be carried forward for up to five years, for PRC enterprise income tax
purpose. The remaining tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other significant deferred tax
liabilities that is required to be provided for in the consolidated financial
statements for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH

R-—ZE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—8 ' ' "EBE4L
ZHIEEE A A B 496,425,000 ( =
T — —fF : 549,287,000 ) ¢ Al EE
EBIB AR BREEREREFIES - AR
FEHR S5 B 14 FERR RS F 2 BT B A Al RE
EXBEARESA R EERELRE
BE -MABECEMERMS A&ELH
B 7B #64,000,000c(ZF——F : B
1&mammﬂ2ﬁﬁ%ﬁ Al £ H 1% 5 7
B MEBERZUEERF - BRER
1IRUE - B THEEETSRE -

B EXIREEES  BIEEME RN IR
AEEARBE_T =R _T =

A=T—RALEFEZEAUBHRETEE -
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

34. MK EE

The Group and the Company REBERAEKAT
2013 2012
—T_=£ —EE— —leE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST
At beginning of the year FH) 6,030 -
Issue of warrants BITREERE - 8,730
Change in fair value NEEES (6,030) (2,700)
At end of the year RER - 6,030

The warrants were measured at fair value at each end of the reporting
period. The valuation was carried out by GCA independently based
on Binomial Option Pricing Model. The warrants were expired on 18
December 2012.

AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

RBEEEREREPEAEEAZATE
STE - (AEREEFER B BETE
B BT  BRREBER=ZZ—=F
+=A+NRBER -

35. B RRKIEA

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—B_=fF SR 2
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Htat BET T BT
LOH Jiah Yee, Katherine (“Ms. Loh”) #MRE ([ ]) (@) 26,774 16,738
Winner Global Holdings Limited Winner Global Holdings Limited
(“Winner Global”) (I'Winner Global |) (b) 52,358 51,294
LIM Ping Wai MSER )] 8,336 7,930
New Premier Holdings Limited New Premier Holdings Limited
(“New Premier”) (I'New Premier]) (@) 74,327 56,385
Assure Gain International Limited Assure Gain International Limited
(“Assure Gain”) (TAssure Gain ) (e) 5,612 17,624
Corporate Insights Limited EHREEREAR AT
(“Corporate Insights”) -1 1j] 836 645
Splendid Asset Holdings Limited Splendid Asset Holdings Limited
(“Splendid Asset”) (['Splendid Asset |) ) 63,325 60,258
231,568 210,874
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35. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

136

35. FE{FRBR R FRIE ()

Notes: HiaE -

(a) The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable (a) BREAREAEET IRFEMRS5EFFERA
on 31 December 2014. On 1 March 2012, an extension agreement was signed RZE—NF+_A=+—HEE -RN_%
and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. ——F#=ZA—H BRIJEEHSE mIH

AELEZE=Z—WF+=-A=+—H-

()  The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable (0) ERARELREER  REFESETE &2,\
on 31 December 2014. On 1 March 2012, an extension agreement was R-E—MFE+-_A=+—HEEZ - K=
signed and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. Ms. Loh is ——F®=A—H  BR;ER®R:ZE  mE HH
beneficially interested in 100% of the share capital of Winner Global. HEEZ=FT—MFEF+_A=+—H %L

+E %A Winner Global Z f% 28 100% ©

(©) The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable (© EAZEAEIKN  IRENXR5ET B KRE
on 31 December 2014. On 1 March 2012, an extension agreement was signed R-E—MF+-_A=+—HEE R
and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. ——F=A—H  EEFERWHZ M

HELZ=Z—WF+=-_A=+—H-

(d) The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable ) ERRERERN  RFEMNESEF B RA
on 31 December 2014. On 1 March 2012, an extension agreement was signed RZZE—HE+-_A=+—HEE -R=Z
and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. Ms. LIM Ping Wai ——H%=A—B BEFLERWmE MmN
is beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of New Premier. HEEZ-_Z—MNWMF+_A=1+—H - %

B2 1+ B % A New Premier & 377 B AN /R
ZEbHERS o

(e) The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable (e BAZBEAEET KREMNER5EFBRA
on 31 December 2014. On 31 December 2011, an extension agreement was R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—HEE - N=_F
signed and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. Ms. Loh is ——F+ZA=+—H  BEEITLERGRE "
beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Assure Gain. MR EE—ZE—NWE+=-_A=+—

H o %4 + % 3% 5 Assure Gain @ 558 817
&7 o

(f) The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable ) BRZFEAEERE  REFERSEFBERA
on 31 December 2014. Ms. Loh is beneficially interested in 100% of the issued N-_ZB—EFE+-_F=1+—HEEZ - &4+
share capital of Corporate Insights Limited. BEofa2mREEBEaRAREIEEIT

AR

(9) The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable (@ ERTUE BEEH -« IREFXR5E g B NE
on 31 December 2014. On 1 March 2012, an extension agreement was N-ZZE—NME+-_A=+—HE& R=_Z
signed and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. Ms. Loh is ——F=f—H B% JLEWJQ% » T EI Hf
beneficially interested in 100% of the issued capital of Splendid Asset. AEZZE-_Z—NFE+_-_A=+—H %K

H 259 A Splendid Asset B #7172
aﬁﬁs/\o
Y = =
AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 36. BEAELQFFIR

2013 2012
—F—=F —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 BET R BETT

Value Creation Partners Company

Limited (@) 2,152 2,048

Jack Lau Limited (b) 1,565 -

3,717 2,048

Notes:

Value Creation Partners Company Limited is a company controlled by Ms.
Loh, a former Executive Director of the Company. The amount was unsecured,
bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable on 31 December 2014. On
1 July 2011, an extension agreement was signed and the maturity date was
extended to 31 December 2014.

Jack Lau Limited is a company controlled by Ms. Loh, a former Executive
Director of the Company. The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5%
per annum and repayable on 31 December 2014.

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH

Bt -

(@) Value Creation Partners Company Limited 4
—REARRAFMEATESE LT 2 A
Al e FEAREAEER IREFXR5EFE
RER-Z—NF+_A=+— El%f}fﬂﬁ’\\
72__$JEH B BERITERBGZ
AR EE=_T—ME+=-A=+—H

(b) Jack Lau Limited & — R B AN A R ATERITE
RHLT G 2 AT o B BRI AEIKE -
BREFMRSEFBERER-_T—NFE+=A

=t+t—HEZ-
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37. PROMISSORY NOTES

37. R EE

The Group and the Company REBRAEKAT

2013 2012
—EB_=4F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT TT
At beginning of the year REH] 6,517 6,388
Accrued effective interests ZEERH A 131 129
At end of the year RER 6,648 6,517
Carrying amount repayble fEEEFIAREE

Within one year —= 45y 6,648 -
Over one year — 1% - 6,517
6,648 6,517

On 31 July 2009, the Company issued promissory notes in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$232,000,000 as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of Amplewell. The promissory notes
bear interest at 2% per annum. The interest shall be repaid together
with principal in one lump sum upon maturity on 31 January 2011. On
1 September 2010, the Company entered into a letter with the holder
of the promissory notes to extend the maturity date of the promissory
note to 31 July 2012. On 1 September 2011, further extension to 31
July 2013 was granted from the holder. The promissory notes may be
assigned or transferred (in integral multiple of HK$1,000,000) to any
third party (other than a connected person as defined in subject to the
Listing Rules) subject to the Listing Rules and the applicable laws. The
Company may repay all or part of the principal amount and interest
at any time prior to the maturity date (i.e. 31 July 2013) by giving the
holder not less than seven days’ prior written notice specifying the
amount and date of repayment provided that the amount shall be at
least HK$1,000,000. Otherwise, the payment of principal and interest
payment of promissory notes shall be made in full upon the maturity
date.

The fair value of the promissory notes at the date of issuance was
HK$191,911,000, which was determined by GCA. Valuations were
made on the basis of effective interest method which is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability
and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate used in the calculation of the
fair value is 15.74%.

The promissory notes are held by a substantial shareholder. On 23
September 2009, the Company made repayment of promissory
notes with carrying amount of HK$84,529,000 at par value for
HK$100,000,000. On 2 November 2009, the Company made
another repayment of promissory notes with carrying amount of
HK$90,188,000 at par value for HK$105,000,000. The excess of the
repayment amount over the carrying amount of HK$30,283,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2010 was accounted for as distribution to the
shareholder.

RZZEZEAELA=1+—R8 ' KQARIET
K& #2%8 578 ¥ 232,000,000 7T 2 7 fF 22

REMK2EFE - FIEBEREAER =T
——E—A=+—RB%H BEE—KBEE
B-NRZZE—ZFNA—HB  KQF)HEHE
NZEFEAGT L — DR - &AM ZE
ZHHBEEE —E——F+A=+—
H-RZZE—FNA—H BEEEA
Ry E—FIELHHEE -_T—=F+tA
=t+t—H - EFALTRAIREREZZ
BT - AT ZEE AN 7] LAZS 5 1,000,000 7T
PEBERHEREETEMNE=F ' K
EHRAAFTATE ZBEEALTRIN o RAF]
AREPHE (B —E—=FtA=+—8H)
2 BT Aa] B FE (B B 2 R ek 2B 0 AN & 5B K
B ARBABEARETLREANS
SEERA - FIAMEEZEBRERH
H - EESTEAERD BB 1,000,000
Lo BR ANEEZAE RF B ERE
HRBEEE -

ANEERBITEHHZAFTERBE
191,911,000t * JYHEETEETE © HE
TIREBRFEEEL  EANEMBEE
ol B 75 & (& B G AN 7R I 7R AE B8 B FE 0 R A
BRASKFEREL 2% - sTERFEFT
BEBHZRAE15.74E o

ENEETTA—ZEERERFE -N_Z
ZAFANA-T=8 ' AARZKEBESBE
100,000,000 T (€72 BR (B8 ¥ 84,529,000
TTZENEE - R_ZTTHFE+—H=-H
ARA B BITIREES ¥ 105,000,000 TLIEE
BR {8 75 ¥ 90,188,000 7T Z A& it =ik - &,
e bl = B = e Bl (a0 B
& F8 8 1 R E B 2 € %88 30,283,000 7T
ABRFERR IR
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37. PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)

38.

138

The Group and the Company (continued)
On 12 April 2010, the Company made another repayment of
promissory notes with carrying amount of HK$19,076,000 at par value
of HK$20,822,000. The excess of the repayment amount over the
carrying amount of HK$1,746,000 for the year ended 31 March 2011
was accounted for as distribution to the shareholder.

37. BTEE @)

Given that the Company has the legal obligation to settle the full face
value of the promissory notes for the aforesaid acquisition, the directors
considered that it is transaction with shareholder in the capacity
as owner. The excess shall be accounted for as a deemed capital
distribution to the shareholder and charged to the contributed surplus

REERARQTF (&)

R-BE-—FENA+-H  AREBTE
M {8 7 # 20,822,000 7T 1& & BR E 18 76 &
19,076,000 T Z AN EE - HE T ——
FZA=+—HULEFE EESEHLE
EEZ £ E 8% 1,746,000 T A BRFIMER R

Tk °

ERARBEEREER L2 BB E
NENEBEZEAE  EFRB/UTAES
ABFDERRETZRS - BHSERA
RIVERIEBRREAD IR - YN BB

FRANER o

account.
Number of
convertible
Number of preferred
ordinary shares of
shares HK$0.01
of HK$0.0533 per share
per share BREE
BREE E#0.01 T
7% 0.0533 7T 28K Total
ZEBERYE BEREE st
Notes '000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
izt Tk BT T BT BRI
Authorised: HAE -
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 R-_E—FWmA—H"
and 1 April 2012 T =tEs B ear—(gls
—Z-——FMA—H (@) 8,437,500 450,000 27,534,000 275,340 725,340
Increased in authorised ordinary shares JETE AR N 3,562,500 190,000 = = 190,000
At 31 March 2013 R-—E—=F=A=+—H 12,000,000 640,000 27,534,000 275,340 915,340
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHAR :
At 1 April 2011 R=F——FmA—A 4,519,074 241,018 11,830,578 118,306 359,324
Conversion of convertible preferred shares HIRT R E AR (b) 1,714,447 91,437 (9,143,717) (91,437) -
Shares issue upon exercise of share options ~ 1T{F BB AAE 8 Z1TID © 190 10 - - 10
Consideration shares issued for RUENB AR RTRERR
the acquisition of subsidiaries (@ 380,000 20,267 - - 20,267
Issuance of shares pursuant to RERAREEITRD
the equity line facility (e) 88,653 4,727 - - 4,727
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 R-Z——F=A=+—-BkK
—Z——FMmA—H 6,702,364 357,459 2,686,861 26,869 384,328
Conversion of convertible preferred shares R B R (b) 261,321 13,937 (1,393,710) (13,937) -
Issuance of shares pursuant to IRIBAR A B & 39T D
the equity line facility (e 121,947 6,504 - - 6,504
At 31 March 2013 R=E-=f=H=1+-H 7,085,632 377,900 1,293,151 12,932 390,832
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 11 April 2012, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from HK$725,340,000 divided
into 8,437,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0533 each and 27,534,000,000
convertible preference shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$915,340,000 divided
into 12,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0533 each and 27,534,000,000
convertible preference share of HK$0.01 each.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, an aggregate of 261,320,704 (2012:
1,714,446,877) new ordinary shares of HK$0.0533 each were issued upon
the conversion of 1,393,710,434 (2012: 9,143,716,696) Convertible Preferred
Shares of HK$0.01 each.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, 190,000 options were exercised to
subscribe for 190,000 new ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of HK$71,000 of which approximately HK$10,000 was credited to share
capital and the balance of HK$84,000 was credited to share premium account.
HK$23,000 has been transferred from share option reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out in Note 3(p)(iii)).

On 2 August 2011, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of Originate
Tech Group at a total consideration of 769,230,769 shares of the Company.
The total consideration was divided into 3 tranches with the first tranche of
100,000,000 shares and second tranche of 280,000,000 shares issued at
completion. The second tranche of 280,000,000 shares were held by the
Company in escrow on behalf of the vendor and would have been released
upon meeting of net profit guarantee by the vendor in three years after
completion. The details of the acquisition and net profit guarantee are outlined
in Note 41. As a result of failure to meet the net profit guarantee, the Company
is currently holding the second tranche shares awaiting disposal by the
Company. Proceeds from the disposal of these shares shall be returned to the
Company in accordance with the terms of the acquisition agreement.

On 19 December 2011, the Company and an independent third party
(“Investor”) entered into (1) the equity line facility agreement (“ELF Agreement”)
and (2) the debt facility agreement (“DF Agreement”). Under the ELF
Agreement, the Company may require the Investor to subscribe up to
HK$350 million, subject to a floor price of HK$0.149 per share (“Floor Price”),
worth of the Company’s shares during a maximum of 3-year period after the
commencement date of the ELF Agreement. Pursuant to the DF Agreement,
the Investor agreed to grant an initial loan of HK$30 million (“Initial Loan”)
and additional term loan of up to HK$80 million (“Renewal Loan”). On 21
December 2011 and 19 January 2011, the Company and the Investor entered
into supplemental ELF Agreements reducing the maximum commitment
amount from HK$350 million to finally HK$115 million. The Company issued
19,351,556 shares to the Investor as commitment fees for the facilities during
the year 2012. During the year ended 31 March 2013, 121,947,271 (2012:
88,653,637) shares were issued to and subscribed by the Investor under the
ELF Agreement.

38. BRA& )

BRER-—T——FNA+—BBBZERIR
BE  ANRTEZIEE R B S 725,340,000
L * 5 £38,437,500,000 8% & A% M & 7 #
0.05337T 2 & i@ i% & 27,534,000,000 1% &
AR E{EA R 0.01 ;T2 Al 8RB AR - 1EINE
7 #915,340,0007T © % A 12,000,000,000
f% & B% ™ (& 7 ¥0.05337C 2 E &Kk &
27,534,000,000 % & AR 1 {8 74 ¥ 0.01 7T 2 A
EIRE SRR -

BE-_ZT—=F=ZA=Z=+—HLFER"
M A #1,393,710,434 B ( = T — = F:
9,143,716,696 % ) = RX E{E A ¥ 0.01 7T 2 A
BREBERE - BETE 261,320,704 8%
(ZF— 4 : 1,714,446,877 %) B EEE
¥ 0.0583 T Z M EAAR o

BE_Z——F=ZA=+—HLFEER:"
190,000 17 & AR #E B 7T F - LAFREE 190,000
BRAR AR A RN B AR - KB &R ¥ 71,000
TT B 10,000 T E A AR - RS
#84,000 7T B 51 A BX 19 3% (B B o 1R 5 Id 5%
3(p)(iii) BT 71 Bk 75 5 23,000 7T B FA B8 A% i
HEERERMEER

N=-T——&N\A=H  NEBERRKNER
{8769,230,769 f& 2 A & i% 17 U 8 Al & 5= [
2 EBRRAE - BREH A=BRD BIER T
B 3% 17 2 5 —#£ 100,000,000 & B 15 & 58 =
#£280,000,000 f& i% 15 ° % = #t 280,000,000
BRDERARARERRARKRESFS
WA B H R TR E = FRERAFRF BT
B o W RAFIRE 2 HER M E41 124t -
AR ARBERMTIRE - ARRBRRERAS
“HROUFEE - HEZSRDZFER
HERBRERZ Z IEREEAAR

RZZE——F+ZA+IB ' ARFIEH—F
BUE=F ([REEDFIL()RAE B
(TREAEE W% ) & BESEE hs ([ &S
BB o BIBRARE Bk - AQRA
BERFEERRABE BRI ABERS
= FHIBREEE R % A% % 350,000,000
TZBRH(BRERKEEBRETRRMD B
0.149 T ([FRIEE D)) - IRIBEBRE B35 -
& E R EF LB ¥ 30,000,000t 2 H1F &
R(TMFEFR]) k&% A7 80,000,000 7T
ZEINEHER(EHER]D - R=2F——
SEqEE 2 Ser (B = s EE— AL
B ARAIEREETLHARABE
& B &= &G 2% B %5 % 350,000,000 7T
B B 4% 7 ¥ 115,000,0007C © AR FRA =
T ——FREEEF719,351,556 % AR 19
EREZEZER RNBE-_T—=%=A8
=+—HLLFE CREBRAREHHERK
BEBITWARIREERE121,947,271 R (=
T——4F : 88,653,637 i) B 1% °
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company terminated the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 9 September 2002 (“Old Scheme”) and adopted a
new share option scheme (“New Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting held on 27 November 2009. There was no share
option granted under the Old Scheme. The principal terms of the New
Scheme are as follows:

140

(@

(b)

()

Purpose

The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operation and to recruit and retain high caliber
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any entity which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Eligible participants

Eligible participants of the New Scheme include the Company’s
directors and other employees of the Group or Invested Entity,
any customers, supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity who, in the sole discretion of
the Board have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares (i.e. 670,236,433 ordinary shares)
which may be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted under the New Scheme represented 10% of the
total number of issued ordinary shares of the Company as at
the date of passing the ordinary resolution on 11 April 2012
(being the date on which the mandate limit of the New Scheme
was refreshed) and represented approximately 9.5% of the total
number of issued ordinary shares of the Company as at the date
of this report for the year ended 31 March 2013.

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH

39. BBRAESTE

RABRIERRARTRZZEZE_FAANHE
Ry B ([E5E])) - WRERN
—ETAF T AT HEBETZRER
AARSEARRARBRREBBZ EBAHERR
BRI ([t 8)) - WEREE
FHEIR BRI R - At 8l 2 TR IGRK
LUl

(@ B
FEt8lc B AR AASE ZKINE
BIEHERMZAGERSHERTEHR
KB - W ARE B RSB EMK
BRRIFAERA EE cBE ([1RE
BB RERBEESES KRR
EEANER °

(b) EEKSHE
By AER2HEAEESRED
BRERABRERESYAEERR
BEBEERBEREHERZAR
AEE - AEERAMREEEYHE
tiE S  AEBIMAK AT AR
B ERSRRGHERRERRE

o

i}
fie

\
I

(c) BHEELR

EE e = = 5 = =Bl 42
B BREFFEERDREREZ
P A AT T T m] T 384T 2 AR (D
422 (B1670,236,433 i% L3@A) « 15
R=ZFE—=—FmMA+—8 (ANFr2
ZEERBEENER) TRRARE
ERBEHZARRIBEEITLBIRA
HZ10% * RAEARHRE BEZ KA A
BEITLBRAEL9.5% °
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
The maximum number of shares issuable under the New Scheme
to each eligible participant within any 12-month period, is limited
to 1% of the total number of ordinary shares of the Company in
issue at any time.

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates, which would result in the ordinary
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in excess of 0.1%
of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any time and
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

Option period

An option shall be exercised within 10 years from the date of
grant or such shorter period as the directors may specify at the
time of grant.

Acceptance of offer

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Exercise price

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the share options;
and (i) the average closing prices of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The validity of the New Scheme

The New Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 27
November 2019 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with
the terms of the New Scheme.

No share option was granted during the year ended 31 March 2013. In
assessing the theoretical aggregate value of the share options granted
and fully accepted during the year ended 31 March 2011, the result of
Binominal Option Pricing Model performed by GCA was used. During
the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recognised a reversal of
share-based payment expenses approximately HK$349,000 (2012:
HK$2,426,000) and HK$Nil (2012: HK$587,000) for employees and
consultants, respectively.

39. IBRESTE (2

(d) BEEERSREEZEZLR
PME+ =8 A SRR AT 208 T
BRABBLRERD 2 BIEA R
TZBHRE  RETBBBAAF
FEARTB R B BT B ARAR 1% <

i PAMER+ =18 A BE AR T AR A
TERRRBI IR TEFTAFES
B Z AT {aBs 8 A = 2 AT (AT B B T 5
BYEZAATEERERBE R L2
FrEREKE(BEETHE BaEk
i ARITIE Z BEARAE ) BT ER B 3T
R FET 2 EBE - BBARRME
AIRSEERTERRK201%  BE
BEREARABROMAREER 2
Bt &) B B % # 5,000,000 7T
BIZEE R R AR A S L o

(e) MBRR#ERNM
BREAERLEHETFANES
EREHR AR B A M
{8 o

() EHER
AR N FT AR IR B AR A i B AR 5T
—TNARRBBINRHUARESH
M 1 T MR R AR -

BRREY B TR A ABERBRE N
BRAEREZHEF -

(9 1TEE
BREZITEERESEE @ ETE
R () AR B I R IR T B AR A
HHEB R e B BRI 2 W
8 (i) 2B ERR D ERE R Ha)
RER S BARRRIRMDEE RS H
REXRIZFHWTE - (i) 4
REBH ZEE(NEeEBLE) o

o

(h) #HFsrEIZ2B%H
BRABIB I AT SVERBITER IS » T
2AESMtTE  BR=_F—NLE+—A8
—+tHEIH-

s =0 e Gmes JEe s —i[5| ([EE]E
ERLERE RIEREE_TE——F=
A=+ HIFEREREZEERZ
BREERAEN  CRAMZETEE
TEAHAREEEAZER -HE_Z
—=F=ZA=+—HBLFE  ZKEHHI
MEENMNBEREERABEE ARG X 2H
T A B 349,000t (=T ——F : B
2,426,00070) RBEZL(ZE—ZF : B
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

39. BRETTE (e

(@  Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their @ EARTTERBIESE R ERRINETF
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BT EEZEHET
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding
at 31 March
2012and
Outstanding 1 April 2012 Outstanding  Exercisable
at1 April RZ%--% at31 March  at31 March
Exercise 2011 ZR=t-H 2013 2013
Date of Exercise price R-B--% R-E-Zf R-F-=§ R-%-=%
Grant period per share mA-A Granted  Exercised Lapsed mA-A Granted  Exercised lapsed =A=t-R =A=1-A
bzl (2] BROEE  HAGE g2&i B BER  HAMTE E&t B BAR  HAGTE A
13 January 2010 13 January 2011 to HK$0.940 9223592 - - (7313906 1,909,686 - - (1388821) 520,865 520,865
-2k 12 January 2020 R0
-Rt=A “2——%-At=RZ
“E-F5-A1CH
13 January 2010 13 January 2012 to HK$0.940 9223592 - - (7313904 1,909,688 - - (1388823 520,865 520,865
3 12 January 2020 %0940
THIER “E-“5-AtZRE
ZECRF-ATCA
13 January 2010 13 January 2013 to HK$0.940 9,203,591 = - (73139000 1,909,691 - - (1,388,824 520,867 520,867
—3-%% 12 January 2020 AE0940T
—-A+=R “F—E-A=RZ
“R-RF-AtzH
13 January 2010 15 July 20100 HK$0.940 5,105,428 - - = 5,105,428 - - - 5,105,428 5,105,428
“3-%3F 12 January 2020 %0940
i hr=F “Z-REEATERZ
“E-F5-At1CA
13 January 2010 15 July 2011 to HK$0.940 5,105,427 - - - 5,105,427 - - - 5,105,427 5,105,427
3 12 January 2020 %0940
Siain=" 2 i il
“E-%5-A1CA
7 May 2010 15 July 2010 to HKS0.710 5,105,427 = = = 5,105,427 = = = 5,105,427 5,105,427
i 3 6 May 2020 EB0T107
TRtA 2-2ELATRRAZE
“3-3ERARA
7 May 2010 7 November 2010 to HK$0.710 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000 = = = = = -
-E-2F 6 May 2020 EEOTI0T
TAtA “3-3E-RtRE
“ZC2ERA5A
7May 2010 13 January 2011 to HK$0.710 3,681,412 = - (2515141) 1166271 E = (885,406) 280,865 280,865
“E-%% 6 May 2020 AEOTI0T
fAtA “F—%-A1+=H%
ZEZEERARA
7 My 2010 7 May 2011 to HKS0710 2872411 = - 046753 825658 E - B 3 -
“3-%F 6 May 2020 AEOTI0T
TAtA Z2——FLAtRZ
ZECTERARA
7May 2010 15 July 2011 1o HK$0.710 5105428 - - - 5105428 - - - 5105428 5105428
E-%f 6 May 2020 EH0T10T
fAtA I i N il

“R-RFRARA
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 39. B RERE (1w
(@ Movements in the number of share options outstanding and @ HARTTEEARESE REEEMET
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BITEE2EEBHT  (48)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding
at 31 March
2012and
Outstanding 1 April 2012 Outstanding ~ Exercisable
at1 April R=%--& at31 March  at 31 March
Exercise 2011 =f=t-H 2013 2013
Date of Exercise price W-F--F k-%--% RZB-=F R-%-Zf%
Grant period per share mA-A Granted  Exercised lapsed BA-H Granted  Exercised Lapsed =A=t-B =A=t-H
b=l i3] SRKE HALTHE B BT BAR  MAGE B BTt BAR  HAfE e
7May 2010 13 January 2012 to HK$0.710 1,979,604 - - (813333 1166271 - - (885,406) 280,865 280,865
. 3 6 May 2020 EE0TI0T
AtA Z5-ZE-f1=HE
7 May 2010 7 May 201210 HK$0.710 2872412 = - (2046753 825,669 = = (825,659) = =
“3-%3% 6 May 2020 AEOTI0T
fAtA “Z-CFRAtAE
“R-RERASA
7May 2010 13 January 2013 to HK$0.710 1,979,611 - - (813,335 1,166,276 - - (885,409) 280,867 280,867
. 3 6May 2020 BE0TI0T
TAtH “E-=£-RtzRZ
S G
7 My 2010 7 May 201310 HKSO710 2872414 = - 0675 825659 = - 5659 = J
—E-%¢ 6 May 2020 EEOTI0T
fiAtH “E-—ERAtAR
“23ERA5A
14 September 2010~ 14 September 2010t HK$0.375 69,842,500 = (190,000  (6,100,000) 63,552,500 = - (62,362,500 11,200,000 11,200,000
3 27 Noverber 2019 %0375
hATEA “Z-ZENATRAZ
“E-hE1-R
Zt+tA
18 February 2011 30 June 2011 to HK$0.42 1,701,809 - - (1,701,809) - - - - - -
“§-F 17 February 2021 #8047
ZRtNA “F——%xA=tHZ
“E--£AttA
18 February 2011 31 duly 2011 to HK$0.42 213,529 - = (273,529) = = - = = =
3 17 February 2021 AR042T
ZAT/\A —E—%tA=t-RZ
“F--£AttA
18 February 2011 6 September 2011 to HK$0.42 - - - - - - - - - -
T 17 February 2021 04T
ZRtIA ZE——ENARBE
18 February 2011 5 December 2011 to HKS$0.42 266,666 - - 266,666) - - - - - -
2% 17 February 2021 BT
ZRtNR “3-—4£+-A1RZ
i S el
18 February 2011 16 December 2011 to HK$0.42 1,433,333 - - - 1,433,333 - - - 1,433,333 1,433,333
-2 £ 17 February 2021 B4
ZAtNB “F—F+-A1/AZ
Z2--%-At+A

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012/2013 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

39. BRETTE (e

(@ Movements in the number of share options outstanding and @ EARTTERBIESE R ERRINETF
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BT EEZEHET  (8)
(continued)

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding
at 31 March
2012 and
Outstanding 1 April 2012 Outstanding ~ Exercisable
at 1 April R-%--% at31 March  at 31 March
Exercise 2011 ZA=1-A 2013 2013
Date of Exercise price R=F--& R=%-ZF R-Z-ZF R-3-:=F
Grant period per share mA-A Granted  Exercised Llapsed BA-H Granted  Exercised lapsed =A=t-A =B=1-A
b=l (g2 ] SRITEE HATE E&E BT BN HAGE Bt BT BN HAGE A
18 February 2011 2 January 2012 to HK$0.42 333,333 = - (3333 - - - - - -
3 17 February 2021 EH0427
ZRtNR “E-“5-RZA%
£-R+tA
18 February 2011 9 January 2012 to HK$0.42 433,333 - - (433,333) - - - - - -
5-f 17 February 2021 BE0LT
ZA+AR “Z-ZE-AnRZE
ZR-FCAttA
18 February 2011 30 June 2012 to HK$0.42 1,701,809 - - (1,701,809 - - - - - -
=20 17 February 2021 BR04T
ZATNB Z2-ZFRA=THE
I S S el
18 February 2011 31 July 2012 to HK$0.42 273,509 - - (273,529) - - - - - -
3 17 February 2021 EB0427
ZAtNB i e =
ZB--%-RAt+H
18 February 2011 6 September 2012 to HK$0.42 - - - - - - - - - -
S 3 17 February 2021 EB0427T
ZATNA I S 1 P
ZR-F-AttA
18 February 2011 5 December 2012 fo HK$0.42 266,667 - - 266,667) - - - - - -
e 17 February 2021 AE042T
ZATIA ZF-—§1-ARRZ
i S el
18 February 2011 16 December 2012 to HK$0.42 1,433,333 - - - 1,433,333 - - - 1,433,333 1,433,333
5% 17 February 2021 EB04T
ZAtNB i ol =
Z2--%Zft+H
18 February 2011 2 January 2013 to HK$0.42 333,333 = - (333,333) - = = - - -
3 17 February 2021 B0
ATNR ZF-%-f-H%
“F--EAtth
18 February 2011 9 January 2013 to HK$0.42 433,333 = - (433,333) - - - - - -
3 17 February 2021 BR042T
ZAtNAR “E-=£-RANAE
Z2--F-Rt+A
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE

Y
39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 39. B RERE (1w
(@ Movements in the number of share options outstanding and @ HARTTEEARESE REEEMET
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: EITEBZEHWT  (B)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding
at 31 March
2012and
Outstanding 1 April 2012 Outstanding ~ Exercisable
at1 April R-%-2§ at31 March  at31 March
Exercise 2011 =R=t-R 2013 2013
Date of Exercise price W=E--F R-%--% RZF-=F R-%-=%
Grant period per share mA-A Granted  Exercised Lapsed mA-A Granted  Exercised lapsed =A=T-R =A=1-A
RiHAH &8 SROEE  HAGR B B BN HATE B B BN HAE A
18 February 2011 30 June 2013 to HK$0.42 1,701,810 - - (1,701,810 - - - - - -
i 17 February 2021 AR
ZAt/A “5-=5/ A=tHE
I S el
18 February 2011 31 July 2013to HK$0.42 213,530 - - (273,530) - - = = = =
3-f 17 February 2021 AR
ZAtNB E
18 February 2011 6 September 2013 to HK$0.42 = = = = = o = = = =
F-fF 17 February 2021 EB0427
ZATNAR =
18 February 2011 5 December 2013 to HK$0.42 266,667 - - 266,667) - - - - - =
3 17 February 2021 AE042T
ZATNA Z--F{-RaR%
i S Kl
18 February 2011 16 December 2013 to HK$0.42 1,433,334 - - - 1,433,334 - - - 1,433,334 -
3 17 February 2021 AB042T
ZAtNB ZF-SFT-ATARR
- S a1
18 February 2011 2 January 2014 to HK$0.42 333,334 - - (333,334) = = = = = =
o 17 Feboruary 2021 #8047
ZAtNR “3-mE-AZRZE
- St Sl
18 February 2011 9 January 2014 to HK$0.42 433,334 - - (433,334) - - - - - -
3 17 February 2021 AE042T
ZAtNE “T-mE-ANRE
“F--F-AttA
149,518,865 - (19000 (49349796 99979069 - - (61652165 38326904 36898570
Weighted average exercise price:  JTETI5/T4/E : HK$0.496 - HK$0375  HK$0.718  HK$0.521 - - HKS0441  HK$06517  HK$067T
BE04967T - BRI AEOTST BE051T X - BB EH06SITT BEOSTIT
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

146

The vesting period for the share options is as below.

39. BRETTE (e

b) BEREZERBHMT -

No. of share
Date of grant options granted Vesting conditions
B EREBREHR BEARY
No. of shares
options vested Vesting date
EEEERERR BEAH
13 January 2010 10,210,855 5,105,428 15 July 2010 ZE—TF A +HH
=Z-Z£—AT=H 5,105,427 15 July 2011 ZE——F+A+HH
45,040,069 18,398,633 13 January 2011 ZE——&—A+=H
13,320,716 13 January 2012 —E——F—A+=H
13,320,720 13 January 2013 —E—=F—A+=H
7 May 2010 10,210,855 5,105,427 15July 2010 =E—ZF+A+HA
—T-ZFRA+A 5,105,428 15 July 2011 ZE——4%+tA+HH
14,488,035 2,000,000 7 November 2010 ZE2—Z&+—F+H
4,162,677 7May 2011 —ZE——F R A+tH
4,162,678 7May2012 —E——FH A+H
4,162,680 7May2013 —E—=FRAtH
28,144,944 9,381,644 18 January 2011 =2 ——&—A+=H
9,381,646 13 January 2012 —E——&F—f+=H
9,381,654 13 January 2013 —E—=F— A +=H
14 September 2010 79,350,000 79,350,000 14 September 2010 —E—T4F H A +MAH
—E-ZFNATEA
18 February 2011 5,105,428 1,701,809 30June 2011 ZE——FXA=1H
—E—F&-A+N\H 1,701,809 30 June 2012 —E——FXA=+H
1,701,810 30 June 2013 =E—=FXA=+H
820,588 273,529 31 July 2011 = E——FtB=1+—H
273,529 31 July 2012 —E——F+A=+—H
273,530 31 Juy 2018 = E—=FtH=1+—H
1,000,000 333,333 6 September 2011 —Z——4Fh, A7NH
333,333 6 September 2012 —Z——FH, AN H
333,334 6 September 2013 —E—=%F A, A/<H
800,000 266,666 5 December 2011 —Z——%+_-HAAH
266,667 5 December 2012 —ZE——F+_-F A H
266,667 5 December 2018 —E—=%+_-AHH
4,300,000 1,433,333 16 December 2011 —F——&+=A+75H
1,433,333 16 December 2012 —E——F+ = B +XH
1,433,334 16 December 2013 —F—=&F+=A+75H
1,000,000 333,333 2 January 2012 —E——%#—F—H
333,333 2 January 2018 —E—=%—H—H
333,334 2 January 2014 —E—E—F = H
1,300,000 433,333 9 January 2012 —E——%— A AL.H
433,333 9 January 2013 —E—=5—Fh H
433,334 9 January 2014 —ZE—mMFE— AN H
Total share option granted 201,770,774
Rl g SRt
Less: Lapsed (154,346,370)
W BRM
Exercised (9,097,500)
BT
Outstanding at 38,326,904

31 March 2013
== ik = N
MARTTE

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B B R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The option outstanding as at 31 March 2013 have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 8.32 years (2012: 7.81
years).

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised for the year ended 31 March 2012 was
HK$0.375. There was no exercise for share options for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

No other share options granted under the New Scheme were
cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012. The
Group had no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or
settle the options in cash.

39. IBRESTE (2

(b)

(%)

== = i El oS e
BREZ METHHRTANESR B
83R2F(ZT——_F :781%F) o

BE—F-——F=-A=1t—HLEE
BATEBRERITEE B 2 ¥
BERBHOITETL - BEF—=
FEA=+T—HUEFEHERRER
e

BE-_ T =k _ZFT—_—F=H
=+ —BIEFE - BEEMRERN
BN 2 AR O o AEE IR
EESHETEEEAENR BRI
FERRHE o

The fair value of services received in return for share options () MIIRHEBIRERERZ RIEAFETIZ
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share EOREEREZ AFEFE - B
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share HEERCHE 2 (H5T A ER — T8 = B s
options granted is measured based on binomial option pricing FEERAGE - BIREZSLFHE
model. The contractual life of the share option is used as an input B AZER 2 EE - MIERRETT
into this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated FEtA—BEREEEBE 2F -
into the binomial option pricing model.
Date of grant
REBH
18/2/2011 14/9/2010 7/5/2010 13/1/2010
2 ZE-B§ C—E-EBF C—ZT-B%
—A+NH HhA+HEA A EHN M H e =1E
Fair value of share options and BREZATE
assumptions K AR
Share price R (& HK$0.415 HK$0.375 HK$0.65 HK$0.94
BE0.41570 B 03750 B 0.657c BEE0.947T
Exercise price 1T (B HK$0.42 HK$0.375 HK$0.71 HK$0.94
Br042 T BE0375C AE071t  BE0.947T
Expected volatility (expressed as ~ FEER I8 (1R 1%
weighted average volatility —IHHAREE (B
used in the modeling under TE B RS BT
binomial option pricing model) DOHE S 258 08 ) 55.67% 70.650% 70.53% 70.572%
Option life (expressed as FE R HE 4 A
weighted average life used (R =B Hae
in the modeling under TE BRI IR R
binomial option pricing model) Frrfse A Nt 35
FHY) 10years®  10years®® 10years®  10years®
Expected dividends TEEARR B HK$NIl HKSNil HK$Nil HKSNil
R IT ok BT IT BT
Risk-free interest rate (based on 4 &k FI| == (LA 4F
10-year Hong Kong Exchange HIEBINERE S
Fund Notes) ERAE) 2.868% 2.017% 2.670% 2.799%
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(¢)  (continued)

The expected volatility is based on annualized standard
deviations of the continuously compounded rates of return on the
share prices of five comparable companies in Hong Kong and
Brazil Exchange with similar business operations. No dividends
are expected as the Company had no history of payment of

dividends.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.

40. RESERVES

(@ The Group

39. BRETTE (e

©)]

(a)

(%)

BRREIARBERERZESR S
It ERBEEFEEEZARAIELR
REIZREERFEES LR FE
FREREE - ARARRAETE
IR BB REER - ERFEEAI N & K fHE ]
fme

A R TR RS e T S - U
Pt A FER RIS A S 1 B B
DT o $EEH PR 3 4 2555
i o

40. #E

AEH

Shares held
bythe
Company for
seftlement of Retained
acquisfion Distri- Capital Exchange Share profts/ Non-
consideration butable redemption fluctuation option  (Accumulated controling
Shae  ARARER Contributed resenve resene resene resene losses) interests
premium it e suplus B4R EiKE BRE  RBEH/ Subfotal  FHERBE Totd
& FirRi B4ER Gife ] B ] gt B 5t
Notes HK$000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
8T 8T 8T BRI BT R8T it Ao TR BT BT ST
At1 Apri 2011 2,310,765 = 10003 2216 8,000 86,674 29311 450,000 2,896,969 7 2,807,045
Change in equity for 2012
Loss for the year - - - - - - - 39 (2327909 [ -]
Disposal of subsidiaries 2 - - - - - 6,377) = - 8377 13 6,364)
Exchange differences on
translation of financial statements
of overseas subsidiaries - - - - - (68,659 - - (68,659 - (68,659
Total other comprehensive loss Eh2EFRLE - - - - = (75,036) = = 75,036) 13 (75,023)
Total comprehensive loss FER2ERRGE
forthe year - - - iy - (75.086) SR 402 10 (240095
Transactions with owners SRR ARTIRS
Consideraton shares issue for SRBHEAR
acquisttion of subsidiaries 38() 137,053 (115,920) - - - - - - 2138 - 21,133
Issuance of shares pursuant to the
equity line facilty 38) 10772 - - = = - - = 10,772 - 10772
Dividends eclared in respect of HBEEHERRE
previous period 16 - - - - - - - (31,996) (31,99) - (31,9%)
Fortefture of share options RRERiE - - - - - - (6,751) 6,751 - - -
Shares issue upon exercise of fritERERE TR
share options 38() 8 - - - - - (28 - 61 - 61
Equity-setfied share-based payment WEREEEZROMR - - - - - - (3013 - 3013 - (8013)
Total transactions with owners HEEAETIRGEE 147909 (115,920) - - - - (9,787) (25,245) (3043 - (3,043)
At 31 March 2012 R=F-=§=B=1-H 2458,674 (115,920) 10,003 2216 8,000 11,638 19,524 (1,903,154) 490,981 86 491,067
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40. RESERVES (continued)

@

The Group (continued)

e B B R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE

40. f#E @)
REE (%)

(GY)

Shares held
by the
Company for
settlement of
acquisition Distri- Capital Exchange Share Non-
consideration butable ~ redemption fluctuation option controlling
Share  ADFEHRRE  Contributed reserve reserve reserve reserve  Accumulated interests
premium KERE surplus MK RARE EfgE HERE losses Subtotl  FERER Total
k&8 vl b i L] i i ZitER it [ 3] &5t
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3 BT BT BT i avd BT T BT B8R BT BT BT
At1 April 2012 W-8--£mp-A 2,458,674 (115,920) 10,003 2,216 8,000 11,638 19,524 (1,903,154) 490,981 86 491,067
Change in equity for 2013 §-CERESD
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - (326,601) 326,601) (1) (326,676)
Exchange differences on BERANELE
translation of financial HhBEY
statements of overseas subsidiaries ~ E} £ - - - - - 49,530) - - (49,530) @ (49,534)
Total other comprehensive income ~ EH2HH A - - - - - 49,530) - - (49,530) 0] (49,5%4)
Total comprehensive loss for the year  AFE2EHRLE - - - - - 49,530) - (326,601) (376,131) (1E] (376,210
Transactions with owners EREARTIRR
Issuance of shares pursuant RERZHERTRR
to the equity line facility 3866) 11,667 - - - - - - - 11,667 - 11,667
Equity-settled share-based payment  LURBSE 2 RAKE = - o - - - (849) - (349) - (349)
Forfeiture of share options RUBRE - - - - - 9,321) 9321 - - -
Total transactions with owners REEAETZRREE 11,667 - - - - - (9670) 9321 11,318 - 11,318
At31 March 2013 R=%-=£=B=1-R 2470341 (115,920) 10,003 2216 8,000 (37,892) 9,654 (2,220434) 126,168 1 126,175
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40. RESERVES (continued) 40. RE®
(b) The Company (b) &2F
Shares held
by the
Company for
settlement of Capital Share
Share  acquisition Contributed Distributable redemption option  Accumulated
premium ~ consideration surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
KARREA
WERE
REEE ke BARS WHARRE RAERGRE BRERE ZithE &t
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
P A%Tn AETT  EETR  BETR  BETR BETR BETT  BETR
At1 April 2011 RZF-—FMmA-H 2310765 S 62047 2216 8,000 29311 [72616) 2,140,623
Loss for the year FERE 1 4 - 3 . - (1625455)  (1,625455)
Consideration share isse for acquistion of SINENBARRTRERY
Subsidiaries 38(d) 137,053 (115,920) - - - - - 21,133
Dividends declared in respect of AERERRS
the previous period 16 - - - - - - (31,99%) (31,99)
Equity-settled share-based payment WRELE 2R3 - - - - - (3019) - (3,013
Forfeiture of share options RkERE L ! n 3 . (6,751) 6,751 -
Issuance of shares pursuant o BERAREETRG
the equity line facility 38(e) 10,772 - - - - - - 10,772
Share issued upon exercise of R RRERE RN
share options 38(c) 84 - - - - (23) - 61
A1 Merch 2012 RF-—FZ4=1-8 248674 (115820 62947 2216 8000 19524 (1923316 512126
At1 April 2012 R-%--£NA-A 2458674 (115,920 62947 2216 8,000 1954 (1,923,316) 512,125
Loss for the year EERE 3 . e 3 = - (366,459) (366,459)
Issuance of shares pursuant to RERTRERTRA
the equity line facility 38(e) 11,667 - - - - - - 11,667
Equity-settled share-based payment NRBLE . RAGR - . 3 = = (349) - (349)
Forfeiture of share options R HE > = - - - (9,321) 9,321 -
At 31 March 2013 R=%-Z#=fA=1-A 247034 (115,920) 62,947 2,216 8,000 9,854 (2,280,454) 156,084

150 KEMEZERERAT —T—— —ZT—=FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature of purposes of the reserves

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The
share premium account of the Company is distributable to
the owners of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in
June 1991, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders in certain
circumstances.

Distributable reserve

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 15 July 2003,
the share premium account of the Company was reduced
by an amount of HK$103,948,000 to Nil and of which
HK$98,953,000 was applied towards the elimination of
the accumulated losses of the Company as at 31 March
2008, with the remaining balance of HK$4,995,000 being
credited to a distributable reserve of the Company. The
reduction of share premium account was effective on 6
October 20083.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the amount paid
by which the Company’s issued share capital has been
diminished on the cancellation of the shares repurchased.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the overseas subsidiaries. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 3(t).

Share option reserve

Share options reserve comprise the fair value of the
estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to directors and employees of the Group recognized in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 3(p)(iii).

e B B R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE

40. @

(c) REZMERBEHN

()

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

B3 =1E

B aBRsBAXARE
—NAN—FREDEF40EE
2o AR AIRM BRI
ARARDIRTARREEA o

RARZEBARBRAEE
R—NAN—FRALETEES
B P U BB P B8 X BRI AR 2 X F
ERAARRRXMZERND
MET2RNEEZZE - 1R
BRERE-NN\—FREEUE
AR BHBHARNE TER
TART IR -

77 R
BER-_ZEE=F+A+H
HRBZEIRBER  &A
Al Z B 17 4 (B BR B Bl Rk S
103,948,000 TEBEZTIT » &
F 75 # 08,953,000 7T 2 B 1k
WIS ARRAN—_EE=F=H
=+—BZR:EIE - mE
75 #4,995,0007¢ Bl 5t A R
Al Z A IR o BURAR G
BEER_EE=F1+H/H
R o

RA B Ol f#
BAEOFEEAAREET
P 7S 1) 22 P 10 R 1) 458 o 8
P& %8 ©

[ 5 5 B fif 1

[ X% B) 7 18 B IR R B8 SN
BRAMBHREEEZ —E
HERE o ikimEBTREMT S
T ST BURRE °

FBIRERE

R s M ok 8 B2 PR AR IR BT RS o) i)
BhABRED XA PR & ST BOR
BRZETAKREEERER
RITEBBREMG BB 2 AF
=0

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012/2013 151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R B R
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40. RESERVES (continued)

152

()

(d)

(e)

KRMEZERBRD A

Nature of purposes of the reserves (continued)

(vii)  Shares held by Company for settlement of acquisition
consideration
As set out in Notes 41 and 38(d), the Company issued
shares for acquisitions of Originate Tech during the year
ended 31 March 2012. At the end of the reporting period,
280,000,000 shares, valued at HK$0.414 (the issue price)
per share amounting to HK$115,920,000 were held by the
Company awaiting disposal. Proceeds from the disposal
of these shares shall be returned to the Company in
accordance with the terms of the acquisition agreement.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2013 and 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for the distribution to the owners of the Company
calculated in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 (as amended) was HK$147,130,000 and HK$492,601,000
respectively.

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher level of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines
net debt as total debt (which includes loan notes and other
financial liabilities) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less bank
deposits and cash. Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity less unaccrued proposed dividends plus net debt.

—EB- /CE-=5FHK

40. &)

()

(d)

(e)

REZEERBEWN (B

(i) AR ERE KB BT

B

BN M sE41 % 38(d)Fr &
AN FID D = 25— = E
A=+—BLFEE R KE
BB B TR D o R RS B
HER ARBEBESRE
BAEE0MAT(EITE) 2
280,000,000 f% f% 15 & #£ 74 #&
115,920,000 7C JA 3 H & o
EHBRG 2B HEBRE

W 13 2 IR B AR AT o
RERSTT IR

TR 25— ek ol eE = gE
=+—H BEERFE—NAN—F
ARVEKIERT) ST EA#HH IR T A
NEBEEAZRBBRED R A
147,130,000 T X /& ¥ 492,601,000
T

EXEmEE
AEEEREATESEREASE
MVRFBRERE ] - WMEESEE R
REREFRIY B < EMAMEEEER
B UARRBREEARBANE SR
B -

REEEE K E s REEREAR
B NERSEEKFARESRER
BICRERBERRRE AN
R RRE 2 MEG T4 - R
FERERITME R FREARRE -

AEBIZERFREERBEARL X
ZEREREBERERE - Bt - A
BAREBHFRREGRB(BRE
REBRREMPBEEE) MIERFH
IRECE - RIRTTER MRS - KHE
BB 2 TR AR DR EIE
ZEHHURAR B INERFEE o
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40. RESERVES (continued)

(e)

Capital risk management (continued)

e B B R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 52— —=4=A=+—RH L EE

40. @@

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group’s strategy,
which unchanged from 2012, was to maintain the net debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio as low as feasible. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to the owners, return capital to the owners, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio at 31 March 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

(e)

EXRERER (&)
==t S =F =Bl I 42
B AEERNE T -—FEFHRA
BIRES - RO RE i EF R LR
B RGEFERNKTE - BHERSHA
B E  REEAAEEOEESAX
NZBRES%E  MEEAREER
BITHROBILEEERE - R=F
— =K FT——&F=A=+—H"
ERHEHAEERLRAT

2013 2012

—B—=fF TS Tl

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Trade and other payables FEASH B 5 518 B E At FE - 508 79,401 212,310
Loans and borrowings ERREE 36,132 25,289
Finance leases payables FEfT R & T4 = 350
Amounts due to shareholders JE S AR B ZR IR 231,568 210,874
Amount due to a related company FE—=EE AT RIA 3,717 2,048
Promissory notes ZENES 6,648 6,517
Total debt (EvisGE 357,466 457,388
Add: proposed dividends hn s BRAR S = 3
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BERREFEY (216,540) (7,760)
Net debt (EGE e 140,926 449,628
Total equity RS Aa%E 517,007 875,395
Total capital BARyEEE 657,933 1,325,023
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B R REE AR & 21% 34%

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital

requirements.

ANER B 4 S ATAAT NG DY B AR SR
TEFTHRIR
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41.
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 2 August 2011, the Group obtained control of Originate Tech and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Zhongshan Operations”) by acquiring 100%
equity interest and voting rights in Originate Tech from Mr. Li Zhixiong
(“Mr. Li"). Zhongshan Operations are engaged in manufacturing and
sales of timber products including but not limited to wooden floor
panels, doors and furniture. Mr. Li was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 2 September 2011.

Net Profit Guarantee and Contingent Consideration

The total consideration for the acquisition of the Zhongshan Operations
was 769,230,769 shares of the Company and was divided into three
tranches. The first tranche of 100,000,000 shares was issued at
closing to Mr. Li. The second tranche of 280,000,000 shares (also
issued at closing but held by the Company) and the third tranche
(remaining balance) are contingent upon meeting net profit guarantee.
Mr. Li guaranteed that audited net profit after tax on IFRS basis will
not be less than HK$300,000,000 for the three years after completion,
and that Susfor-Oasis must not incur any net losses for each of three
financial years immediate after completion.

Rationale for the Acquisition

As a veteran in the PRC timber industry, Mr. Li had more than 20 years
of experiences in sales and manufacturing. He was the president of
Zhongshan New Oasis, a PRC company specializing in manufacturing
and selling of wooden flooring products to property developers in
the PRC prior to the acquisition of the Zhongshan Operations. He
is also the registered holder of a patent for “curve flooring”. Under
his management, New Oasis (a brand under which Zhongshan
New Oasis manufactured its flooring products) was ranked 3rd, in
flooring category, by “Top Ten Brands in China” in May 2011 and
was awarded “China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands” of the year 2010
by the World Brand Laboratory. Also, Zhongshan New Oasis had an
extensive network of distributors and an experienced team in sales,
manufacturing and quality control in the PRC.

The Board believed the acquisition was a perfect marriage where the
companies complemented each other well. The Group had its own
forest resources and specialized in sourcing logs and timber products
from different parts of the globe, but had no significant presence in
the PRC, the largest timber consumption market in the world. Mr. Li
had little overseas access or experience in direct sourcing of timber
raw materials. The acquisition allowed the Group to buy into a ready
platform of local expertise, distribution network and customer base in
the PRC, matching its own overseas sourcing expertise.

The Board was optimistic about the prospect of the timber and wood
processing and timber sales in the PRC having taking into account the
continuous growth of gross domestic product and sales of floor panels
(which is one of the major products of the Zhongshan New Oasis) in
the PRC in recent years.

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Rationale for the Acquisition (continued)

The following summarises the acquisition-date fair value of
consideration transferred and the acquisition-date fair value of each

major class of consideration:

e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 March 2013 B E —T—=F=A=+—H L FE
M. WIBKHE AR
Wig Z B ()

ATt SR ERKERER A FE
REIZHERIRERKERHZ ATE :

HK$’000
TSI
Fair value of first tranche ordinary BETFEF—HETBERKREROD 2 ATE
consideration shares issued 41,400
Fair value of second tranche ordinary DETE_HETRRRERND ZAFEE
consideration shares issued 30,898
Fair value of third tranche ordinary 1 TFETEHERRRERND ZATE
consideration shares to be issued 40,285
112,583
The fair value of ordinary consideration shares are based on the EBERREBROZAFEDIRERZ

published share price of HK$0.414 per share as at 2 August 2011.

The following summarized the recognised amounts of identifiable

assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at 2 August 2011.

—FN\AZHEAHMKRESREK0.414
JCRTE ©

FRBER RN EENAZAER_-Z
—FN\A-BZEERSHEHIINAT

Acquiree’s

carrying

amount

before

combination

=G| Fair value
WUWEES  adjustments Fair value
ZBRE{E AFEFE AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ok b ok
Property, plant and equipment Y BRE NEEE 165 ~ 165
Intangible assets EEE - 47,594 47,594
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEEY 897 - 897
Inventories FE 567 - 567
Other receivables H fth FEU R IR 179 = 179
Trade and other payables JENE SFUER

H fth FE S 5RIE (2,273) = (2,273)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIER E = (11,899) (11,899)
Total net identifiable assets AR FE EAAE (465) 35,695 35,230
Goodwill [EES B353
Total consideration HBIR(E 112,583
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

1. WEMB AR @

Goodwill arising on acquisition WEBEE2EBE
HK$’'000
BT T
Consideration transferred EEERE 112,583
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired B TR BRI EE 2 AT E (35,230)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEEZEE 77,353
Cash and bank balances acquired of kg2 IRE RIAECESEY 897

The goodwill of HK$77,353,000 arising from the acquisition of
Zhongshan Operations represented the future economic benefits from
the synergy effect of the business combination. The acquisition allowed
the Group to buy into a ready platform of local expertise, distribution
network and customer base in the PRC, matching its own overseas
sourcing expertise.

None of the goodwill recognised was expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The Group incurred acquisition related costs of HK$330,000 relating
to legal and professional fees and other charges which were excluded
from the cost of acquisition. The acquisition related costs were
recognised as expenses during the year ended 31 March 2012, within
the ‘administrative expenses’ line item in the consolidated income
statement.

Zhongshan Operations contributed revenue of HK$79,518,000 and
loss of HK$18,262,000 for the year ended 31 March 2012. Had the
acquisition occured on 1 April 2011, the revenue and loss of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2012 would have been HK$115,616,000
and HK$2,328,365,000 respectively. The directors considered these
pro-forma numbers to represent an approximate measure of the
performance of the combined group on an annualised basis and to
provide a reference results for comparison in future periods.

After the completion of the acquisition, the vendor has the responsibility
to report and pay the tax for the gain on disposal of shares in PRC and
the buyer has the responsibility to withhold the tax. If the tax authority
cannot recover the tax from the vendor, it may lodge an assessment
on the buyer to pay the tax. The estimated tax liability amounted to
approximately HK$9,900,000.

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH

WkE R L 5 E A BB 77,353,000 7T
KRR ETESE O IR 155 (R 388 2 oK 2Rk 48 7%
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41.
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Impairment of Zhongshan Operations and Acquisition
Goodwill

Subsequent to the acquisition, Zhongshan Operations carried out
the business, which was previously carried out by Zhongshan New
Qasis, of selling wooden flooring and products to property developers
in the PRC. In addition, according to the business plan, Zhongshan
Operations was to operate two new lines of business, namely timber
wholesale market; and franchise retail network selling its wooden
flooring and other products.

Unfortunately, the results of Zhongshan Operations was disappointing
and incurred a net loss of approximately HK$18 million during the year
ended 31 March 2012. The net loss was primarily attributable to the
rapid slow down of the property market and falling property prices in
the PRC. Home prices began declining in and around September 2011
and many developers in the PRC began offering significant discounts in
order to raise cash. The above created a difficult environment for all of
our three business lines.

Project Sales

Many of the contracts for sales of flooring products to the developers
were delayed or put on hold without definite time when they would
come on line again. In addition, as home prices declined, many
developers were demanding prices to be discounted from all of their
vendors. The profit margin for many potential projects became too thin
or simply vanished and therefore could not materialize.

Franchise Operations

The Company planned to turn approximately 70 of the traditional
distributors of flooring for Zhongshan New Oasis into franchisees with
standardized shop front, unified prices and selling only our products.
While preparing for such change, Zhongshan Operations opened 4
directly operated shops in Shenzhen and Zhongshan. Performances for
all of the 4 shops were poor and sales were dismal and all incurred net
losses. The shops were closed subsequently. The macro environment
of sluggish property market and general poor market sentiment
affected this “start up” business greatly.

1. REMEB AR @

Pz BERBEEE

RURETR AL R ATE f AP LT AR
MEE 2275 AT BEERREHEE
AUIRBARER © IP - RBEEHFE
PRSI R IR RS - BIAH 3
MIGHE RAMIREE M E m 2 FFFEE
TEME -

AERILEB 2 EESTAKRE  REE_
A=+ RHILFEHFFEE
A 75 18,000,0007T ° $kGFER 2 E 2
RRABTEZMET S RN ERYEE
BTk - EEEBRAR_ZE——FhAF
AT PR EEREFAREERF
EHER - LABERSKEET =A%
BRI ELE -

HEAHE
M EEHEEAMIRZEHNRKSTEEHNTT
SEREAEE o thHh  BEEEE TR &F
ZREMERABERRE - AYELIE
BoRREEANEEENEE &N B Mm
HREE o

BAELER
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Impairment of Zhongshan Operations and Acquisition
Goodwill (continued)

Timber Wholesale Market

Timber Wholesale Market aimed to take advantage of the Group’s
overseas sourcing ability and network and Zhongshan Operations’
geographical advantage. Zhongshan and its neighboring Shunde
formed one of the largest wooden furniture and flooring centers in
the PRC. As general economy and housing market was turning south
in 2011 and 2012, wholesale timber prices were also declining. The
shrinking margin could not bear the additional cost of transportation
of logs and timber to one central location at our facility in Zhongshan.
Zhongshan Operations had to store and sell the logs and timber at the
ports in the PRC. Also, Zhongshan Operations was facing resistance
from potential renters as the centralized inventory concept was not able
to materialize. Those distributors that had originally agreed to relocate
to our premises now reneged on their commitment and adopted a
wait-and-see attitude. As such, the timber wholesale market did not
commence operation.

As a result of the uncertainties in the PRC economy and continued
depressed timber demand and prices, the Group considered that
the value of the assets related to Zhongshan Operations suffered
impairment and recorded net loss of HK$42 million (comprising waiver
of contingent consideration payable of HK$71 million, reversal of
deferred tax liabilities of HK$12 million, recognition of impairment loss
on goodwill of HK$77 million, and recognition of impairment loss and
amortization on intangible assets totalling HK$48 million).

On 27 June 2012, Mr. Li entered into an agreement with the Group
confirming that the net profit guarantee under the acquisition was not
met. It was further confirmed that the Group does not owe any further
amounts to Mr. Li. 280,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued
under Tranche 2 are being held by the Company pending disposal in
the market at its discretion. The Company plans to sell these shares in
due course subject to the market conditions. All net proceeds from the
disposals of the above shares shall be retained by the Company.
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42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
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42. HEHMBE QT

The Group discontinued its Chita forest operations at the time of AREBNEETE -5 T= A= s B IE
disposal of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2012. The FEHEMRBATRIEERERMNETR -

net assets at the date of the disposals were as follows:

RHERMZEEFBRHIIMT

HK$’000
TS T T

Net assets disposed of FTEEEERE

Property, plant and equipment M -~ B K 71,597

Intangible assets B EAE 152,099

Trade and other receivables FEUWLE 5 3k T8 K B i W Sk IE 1,020

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder FEUT — & FEPE AR AR SRR IE 53,176

Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHE R 1

Trade and other payables FEASTE 5 5108 I E M FE A 500E (28,475)

Other loans, secured BEM 2 HMEK (3,989

Other loans, unsecured EIE 2 BB (2,431)

Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEE & (37,4583)

205,545

Non-controlling interests FEEAR AR BR A 2 13

205,558
Exchange reserve I 5 (1 (6,377)
199,181

Disposal costs B AR =

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 15) HEMB AR 2 (Mt 15) 8,819

Total consideration BRE 208,000

Satisfied by: YRAR

Cash payment (note i) We R HIEED) 208,000

Total consideration BRE 208,000

Cash and bank balances disposed of Frit &R & RIRTTEE R (1)

207,999

Cash consideration receivable FEUR &R (E (208,000

Net cash outflow arising on the disposal HEELAZIRE R FEE (1)

Note: HtaE -

[0) According to the announcement on 20 December 2012, the Company and 0] REBHA-_ZTE——-—F+-_A=-+HZA
the purchaser entered into a supplemental agreement. As set out in the & ARAIEE AR HRHE o HOAHT
supplemental agreement, the consideration shall be paid in one lump sum WA REARTKEZI2MEA AR
payment within 12 months upon completion in cash. The consideration has E—KBERMN - ARAER=FT—=F=A

been received by the Company on 27 March 2013.

Z T AKRERRE -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, finance
lease payables, trade and other payables, financial liabilities, promissory
notes, amounts due to shareholders and amount due to related
companies.

160

The Company’s major financial instruments include other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, other payables,
financial liabilities and promissory notes.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risk associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

@

KRMEZERBRD A

Credit risk

The Group
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank deposits
and trade and other receivables.

For trade and other receivables, management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-180
days from the date of billing.

Debtors with balances that are more than 6 months past due are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral or
other credit enhancements.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations was in Asia Pacific and South America. The Group had
concentration of credit risk by customers as for 100% (2012:
100%) and 72% (2012: 96%) of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s five largest customers and the largest
customer respectively as at 31 March 2013.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

@

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The crediit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in Note 26.

The Company

The crediit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
holding company’s board. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from an independent third party to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

43. BIEKRERE &)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REESEPERE)
The following tables details the remaining contractual maturities TRAVRER AR B IECTES
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the BENREEARAEE HHEIRE 4 E
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities which are based on B IR EASAARMIRBRERE(H
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments FEUAHFER (KBTS - BiRiE
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates NS HEAE R 2 BTHNR)#HE
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date ZRBESZH) A RAER KA T A]
the Group and the Company can be required to pay: WERKEHNRE RS
The Group AEE
2013
“E-=%
Total
Weighted contractual Within More than More than
average undiscounted 1 year 1yearbut 2years but
effective cash flow oron less than less than
interest rate Carrying &HRHER demand 2 years 5 years
MEEY amount ReRE —ERS —E# MER
BRF= HREE wE EEXR BRER BRER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade and other payables FERE SR
H i e 300E - 79,401 79,401 79,401 - -
Promissory notes EOESH 15.74% 6,648 6,693 6,693 - -
Loans and borrowings BERREE 18% 36,132 41,050 41,050 - -
Amounts due to shareholders BT RRRFE 5% 231,568 252,306 - 252,306 -
Amount due to related companies JEff B8 A &) FIA 5% 3,117 4,050 - 4,050 -
357,466 383,500 127,144 256,356 -
2012
C e
Total
Weighted contractual Within More than More than
average undiscounted 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
effective cash flow oron less than less than
interest rate Carying  AHRHER demand 2 years 5 years
I amount Reme —FRNK —F4 [kt
BHH % FEE k] JEZsk ERER BREA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade and other payables RERESTER
Hh T 50A - 212,310 212,310 212,310 - -
Finance leases payables [ RERLD 4.58% 350 394 113 113 168
Promissory notes EOES 15.74% 6,517 7,800 - 7,800 -
Loans and borrowings ERREE 0%-60% 25,289 25,865 25,865 = =
Amounts due to shareholders EMRERZIE 5% 210,874 239,906 - - 239,906
Amount due to a related company JEff —KEEA Al 5% 2,048 2,330 - - 2,330
457,388 488,605 238,288 7,913 242,404
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

43. B EMERE &)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REEESRES(E)
The Company AT
2013
—EB—=F
Weighted Total
average contractual Within More than
effective undiscounted 1 year 1 year but
interest cash flow or on less than
rate Carrying &#IKRBLE demand 2 years
IFEF 4 amount HERE —FERH® —F#%
BERR=E fREE i EBER ERER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT B¥Trx B¥Tx BE¥Tx
Other payables H fth fEf TIE - 3,303 3,303 3,303 -
Promissory notes A EE 15.74% 6,648 6,693 6,693 -
9,951 9,996 9,996 -
2012
g =t
Weighted Total
average contractual Within More than
effective undiscounted 1 year 1 year but
interest cash flow or on less than
rate Carying & #AIARELER demand 2 years
INHEF 15 amount IRERE —FAK — 1%
B AREE L] EEX  BEREA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HBETx BETT EBETx
Other payables H b fE SRR - 7,918 7,918 7,918 -
Loans and borrowings BEREEE 0%-60% 25,206 25,770 25,770 =
Promissory notes AT EE 15.74% 6,517 7,800 - 7,800
39,641 41,488 33,688 7,800
(c) Foreign currency risk () IMERPS

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk related primarily to
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables that are denominated in currencies other

than the functional currency of the relevant group entities.

ZRES [ 2 S R\ e = 22 B A AR B AR [
ERNGEEBUINERBEE RSN
Re%EEY BWEZTIAREMmE
WOsRR - AR S SRR B A
NFIRER -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

43. BIEKRERE &)

(c) Foreign currency risk (continued) () FMERBS (&)
() Exposure to currency risk () E¥mEpE

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s TRAVNAERE KRR TRER

exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk CHIEEERGRRE AETRE

arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of the entity within
the Group into the Group’s presentation currency are

Bz BB AINEREHE
ZEEREEXABAARE
KRR ERTEE{AEE
NEBMBHREBRE[/AE
B2y EEMELER -

164
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excluded.
The Group REE
2013 2012
—E—-= e il
United United
States States
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Euros
EY AR = Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BET T P IT P T IT
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 718 &
H b pE U k18 541 173 1,118 5
Cash and cash equivalents 4 RKIREZEY 7 115 2,239 4
Trade and other payables &2 5 FIE K&
H b fE I 5RIE (2,981) (1,205) (16,858) (113,743)
Overall exposure to AR EE KRR
currency risk (2,433) ©17) (13,501)  (113,734)
The Company XA T
2013 2012
Shil=8 swesl— s
United United
States States
Dollars Renminbi Dollars
Ep o AR¥ ESVTy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T P T TT
Other receivables H A pE Y 5RIE 110 = 139
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEFEY = 79 3
Other payables H b e I8 = = (616)
Overall exposure to P B E Rk
currency risk 110 79 477)

SRR CHER
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

For the year ended 31 March 2013 i & - &

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s and the Company’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses that would arise if foreign exchange
rates to which the Group and the Company has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States
Dollars would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States Dollars against

other currencies.

e B B R R B R

MEERER®
€ SERRE)

(i) BREDH
TRINBAERSHRAEE B H
AEBRARNRRBEATEZ
SNESTE & B IR B RS - BRRFA
BHMRAREBE R TE - K
LSRN TZISEJ*JEET%&%

HE RS
BT =
LA

—ZH=A=+—AILEE

GEL AR
' ERERS ﬁgéﬁi%m
PR E A& X BT

HEMEBBEED 2 (FME
FIERETE -

The Group REEF
2013 201 2
—E—=5F —EFE—F
Effect on Effect on
loss after loss after
Increase/ tax and Increase/ tax and
(decrease) accumulated (decrease) accumulated
in foreign losses in foreign losses
exchange HERBI% exchange HERF&
rates EiER rates EE &
ShEERE R =0 - SN 3R Z5TE51E
EFH(TRE) ZzeeE EA /(TR 7%
HK$°000 HK$’'000
BET T BT TT
Euro B - - 5% 4,748
- - (5)% (4,748)
Renminbi N 5% 38 - -
(5)% (38) - -
The Company ANT
2013 2012
== =S es

Effect on Effect on
loss after loss after
Increase/ tax and Increase/ tax and
(decrease) accumulated (decrease) accumulated
in foreign losses in foreign losses
exchange HERBE exchange HERTE
rates EBiEk rates E1E &
ShEERE =R ZiTEE SN e 5 2ErEE
EH(TRE) g8 A (TRE) 2B
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Renminbi yNESES 5% (3) 3 =
(5)% 3 - -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group’s entities’ loss and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements of
the entities within the Group into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for

the year ended 31 March 2012.

(d) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from financial
liabilities issued at a fixed rate that expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored
by management is set out below. The Group does not expect
any changes on interest rate which might materially affect the

Group’s result of operations.

During the year, the Group and the Company had not entered

into any interest rate swap contracts.

166 KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH

43. BIEKRERE &)

()

(d)

SMEE LB ()

(i) BEEDH(E)
ERAEFNN DM ERKRER
SEETEERRS B ZIHE
B EYRBEHMEER
ZEXBEREEAGZ] 2
R EE ks B 848
B

RS DT Th R RN [
KRB RAEH T2 RS HAHE
HEBASBEMFZENET
A i £ 7 & B B A O E R
% BESM T BIEBAEE
NERB W BRERE BARE
By EBHMELE=ZR - bt
AR E T ——F =
A=+—BHEFEHRRZEE
BT o

=@

ZRE 2 ) R [\ = 22K B 1R B E A
REITW G AEE AL R FER
Rz MBRE - EREMEEL
AEBMEFBEHEN T - NEETR
B e R TR S AR E LR
BBRERTZE 2 MXREH) -

FA - ANEERARBBER] LA
MEREEL -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (continued)

e B R R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B2 —ZF—=F=A=+—HIFE

MEERER®
d) FIREM ()

(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIZFF1E
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRFVIARE BN S AR
Group at the end of the reporting period: BHZFRGR
The Group AEHE
2013 2012
—E-=5F - g
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERRAE BERAI=
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
BT T BT TT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE
Finance lease payables R E LY - - 4.58% 350
Promissory notes AT EZE 15.74% 6,648 15.74% 6,517
Loans and borrowings BEREEE 18% 36,132 0% -60% 25,289
Amounts due to shareholders — E{T IR 5 I8 5% 231,568 5% 210,874
Amount due to related FEfTEAE N T
companies WIA 5% 3,717 5% 2,048
The Company b /N |
2013 2012
= SR = —E——fF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERRI= BB AI=
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
BETT ok
Fixed rate borrowings: EBEE:
Promissory notes AN EE 15.74% 6,648 15.74% 6,517
Loans and borrowings BERREE - - 0% — 60% 25,206
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BERESH

All of the borrowings of the Group which are fixed-rate
instruments are insensitive to any change in interest rates.
A change in interest rate at the end of the reporting period
would not affect profit or loss.

A B RITIERBRER
AETE  HEMAEEHY
TR NREENAYE
e TR 2
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

168

(e)

(f)

KRMEZERBRD A

Natural risk

The ability to harvest wood and the growth of the trees in the
forests may be affected by unfavourable local weather conditions
and natural disasters. Weather conditions such as floods,
droughts, cyclones and windstorms and natural disasters such
as earthquakes, fire, disease, insect infestation and pests are
examples of such events. The occurrence of severe weather
conditions or natural disasters may diminish the supply of trees
available for harvesting, or otherwise impede the Group’s logging
operations or the growth of the trees in the forests, which in turn
may have an adverse effect on the Group’s ability to produce the
products in a timely manner and maintain sufficient operations.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined on the
basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

—E /T ®-_—H£5H

43. BIEKRERE &)

(e)

(f)

B R E R
ERMAREAM BN RMARER
AR X BT RIERERLEZAD
MR o« RIRMTLAK - 525 - R
B BEMERLENME - AKX
R B RERMEXFEFM
¥ - HIRBERRMAKEEBRKL
=l AR G B A AR ORI AR © 3
DA K BIRAREHE ERMAM
AWER - @il e M A K BIRE £
EREERNER TR E -

RUBRREAER 2D FE
iTE
TREHENBEHEEEBRATE
ABZMBIAZAN - WIRERT
EZABRRERERE—ZE=EH
e

©  E-EATEHENRAEE
15 L AR AR S A 2 HE
CRYEERB%) B8 A FES

=
BT @

«  E-EATEHENRHE-
BRI 2 A B (D)
SR (B e B R S 1) BET
A EREEERZHABRE
FGATHEE -

«  BEEAVEMENEHOE
i 3E R T BRE IS B LA
Bk B E 2 AR B A B OF
TR ABE) 2 (A R
PSR TFEE -

ATEH BEATERED 2 BRS
M2 RERY AT EH BREN S
EAZ SEBRHABBER -
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For the year

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

e B B R R B R

ended 31 March 2013 B ZE =T —=6=A=+—RH L FE

£ —=

43. B EMERE &)

() Fair value measurements recognised in the H REBERRRAERZAFE
statement of financial position (continued) afE (%)
The Group and The Company AEERADT
2013 2012
“E-=F =t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-F gl -} F=E @t F B ol FoE it
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT B¥Tn AT A%Tn A%t BT BT BETx
Financial liabilties at fair RATE ABRE
value through profit or loss ZEKafE
Financial liabilties BaE - - - - - - 6,030 6,030

There were no significant transfers between instruments in Level
1 and Level 2 during the year 2012 and 2013.

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements of financial

RNZBE——FER_T—=F F—E
ME_E 2z TARRI#EE KNEE -

MBEEBzE= BN FESEBZHK

liabilities
HK$'000
BT T
Issuance of warrants BEITRIRMEE 8,730
Change in fair value NEZE) (2,700)
At 31 March 2012 Ny === H=yy e 6,030
Change in fair value N EEE) (6,030)
At 31 March 2013 RZEBE—=F=A=+—H -
(9) Fair value (9 2¥E
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts RARERRE NG BEmMER

of the current financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements are not
materially different from their fair values because of the immediate
or short-term maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying
amounts of the loans and borrowing, amounts due to the
shareholders, amount due to a related company, finance lease
payables and promissory notes approximate their fair values.
The fair values of the loans and borrowings, amounts due to the
shareholders, amount due to a related company and finance
lease payables are estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at the current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.
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BEZEAEEEATELESEAE
£ TIRRZEVETAKARX
REHRIS ERXREE - BAK
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DFERE - BERREER  BABRR
R - BN —REERRIAREN
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44. COMMITMENTS 44, EiE
(@ Commitments in respect of capital expenditure (@) BREARBEX ZEIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments AEBRRERFREEARELRHAX
in respect of capital expenditure outstanding but not provided for B Ry AREZRBIEN TGS B EHRE
in the consolidated financial statements as follows: B 7 R YE
2013 2012
-2 _= —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Contracted, but not provided for BERT4VBREE
— Purchase of property, plant and — BEYE  BENMEE
equipment - 692
- 692
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REBENFRE
The Group leases certain of its office premises under operating AEFERBKEHOBRE THAS
leases. Leases for these properties are negotiated for terms M - ZEME YK ER R ASE
ranging one to two years. —EMEF o
At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum lease R ERBAEH @ BT A AR
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as EHAENZz BB RER S LN
follows: 1N
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
=S T == TS5
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT
Within one year —F R 530 3,478 520 3,463
In the second to fifth years, o s e =
inclusive (BEEREMF) 500 5,873 500 5,873
1,030 9,351 1,020 9,336
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45.

46.

e B B R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Partnership harvesting agreement

On 18 July 2011, UTRB entered into an agreement (the “Partnership
Harvesting Agreement” or the “Agreement”) with R2R Industria e
Comércio de Produtos Florestais Ltda. (“R2R”). Under the Agreement,
UTRB will harvest logs on forest area supposedly owned by R2R under
a Sustainable Forest Management Plan and pay R2R Florestal a total
of R$9,602,000 (or approximately HK$41 million) by installments. R2R
was responsible to obtain the necessary harvesting permit (“AUTEF”)
within 30 days of the Agreement. R2R was late in presenting the
AUTEF to UTRB and failed to produce documentations that support
its ownership of the subject forest area. In addition, UTRB’s harvesting
team discovered various environmental crimes in the subject forest
area during its preparatory inspection. A total sum of R$840,000
(or approximately HK$3,869,000) was paid by UTRB under the
Agreement while the remaining balance was withheld due to the above
breach and irregularities. In the meantime, R2R sent various notices
demanding for performance under the Agreement. On 17 January
2012, UTRB served a termination notice to R2R and demanded for
the return of the deposits paid. On 23 February 2012, R2R sent UTRB
an amicable settlement offer where reducing the outstanding balance
to R$1,621,000 (or approximately HK$6,910,000) as final settlement
for the immediate termination of the Agreement. According to the
opinion of inhouse and external legal counsels, UTRB has adequate
legal ground to terminate the Agreement, demand for the return of the
deposit and ask for penalties.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(@  After the end of the reporting period, the Company completed
to issue 1,180,938,718 shares through the open offer at the
subscription price of HK$0.0534 per offer share on the basis of
one offer share for every six existing shares held with an issue
of one bonus share warrant for every offer share subscribed.
The Company also completed to issue 215,525,161 CPS share
through the open offer at the subscription price of HK$0.0100125
per offer CPS on the basis of one offer CPS for every six existing
CPS held with one bonus CPS warrant for every offer CPS
allotted and issued. The open offers were completed HK$65
million before expense were raised.

(o) After the end of the reporting period, the Group repaid
approximately HK$139 million and HK$83 million to settle the
amounts due to shareholders and amounts due to related
companies respectively.

45.

46.

HREE

BEKRKGE

RZZE——Ft A+ A\ B ' URBER2R
Industria e Comércio de Produtos Florestais
Ltda. ([R2RJ) 5T 3z 15 =& ([ %% £ £ /K 175 3%

[ e l) o BIEBZE - UTRBIE R &
HRORBEA FERMNE ETEHE 2
HFMEREKRERA - D ERR2RE A&
$£9,602,000 F 25 9 ( % #97%8 ¥ 41,000,000
JC) ° R2RB & M % B HEA#E 5180 A A EY
BRI BEEAGT AR (KARTAZE] - R2R
7R BE & B (1) UTRB 2 {5 £ /R 75 7 78 I 1S B
R BB H A ATl R i (& 2 SOUIR ©
AN - UTRB 2 (AR B IE 1T E B R E R
FRFT I AR AR b [ B 3R 2 THIR (R 3R 1T ° UTRB
BB & 1 3% X (& ££840,000 5 25 # (3%
#97% 5 3,869,000 7T ) - &R EE A L il iE 4
MERITHMINGE - RULHIR A - RoORE
HZEBMERBITHE R —=F
— A+t 8 UTRBRR2RZZE 4 L@ M
WERREENTE R-_T——F_H
~—+=H ' R2RMAUTRB 3 £ Mf#iEE @ 15
KRIEBHREBRE1,621,000F 32 /8 (R 475
6,910,000 7T ) LAYE & 37 B 42 1 10 i 2 &
IRFRIE - IRIBAE RINEERBER 2B R -

UTRBE B EBER I HE - ERERE
A& RiBEIEIE ©

HEBREE

@ HRIREHRE AR RITEKEBAR
BERTGRFE AR AE RO EE K
BERG 2 EAEF171,180,938,718
R - RIEEEREBE—REESRND
BER—GaFBRGORBEE  REE
BAT R ERM S K0.0584 T °
ARARME TR BRAREEIRR
8 (8 & i % & CPS# #0.0100125
JLE17215,525,161 B CPS A% 17 @ &
EEFRHENRIEECPSESRE — &
BECPS ROERBERET—R
T CPSHE K — 19 41 | CPS 3R B% 4
FHo PHBEELTENK  WESEK
65,000,000 7T (FIBRFSZ AY) °

b) RE|EHKRR  ARED RIS
# 139,000,000 7 K 7% ¥ 83,000,000
TLAEE RN RFAREMNEED
AR ©
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46. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

(c) At 31 March 2013, the Group had the interest-borrowing loan of
HK$33 million which was secured by a share charge in favour of
the lender over the entire issued share capital of a wholly owned
subsidiary, Acenergy Limited. The Group may borrow up to
HK$50 million within a 12-month period commencing the date of
the loan agreement. After the reporting period, the Group further
borrowed HK$17 million under this loan agreement. On 8 May

47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

172

2013, the Group fully repaid the loan of HK$50 million.

46. £FEHREHE »®)

The Group had the following transactions with related parties during the

)

A — _EE)EJE+*EI’ZK%
A5t B E 8 #33,000,000 7T ¢ KA
— X2 &M B 2 7 Acenergy Limited
2 EPEBEITRAERRMDIFLIEA
TERA - BERBZB LT +=
BAEA AEBRKRZAEAS
#50,000,0007C ° Rk & HI 1% - K
EERBELHEE Té%;%ﬂ& g NS

17,000,0007C - R—Z—=FFHAN
B RNEEEH a@,%%esooooooo
Z{&W\"

47. EXRBEALIRS

AREBERANFE D ERREATETATR

year. 5 °
(@) Key management personnel remuneration (@) ETEEEAEZHH
The key management personnel of the Group are the directors REBZFEEBABARNARIES
and employees of the Company. Details of their remuneration as kRS - S mEM T 127 & A &
set out in Note 12 to the financial statements are as follows: EXMZHEFBOT -
2013 2012
—E—= =g
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T BT TT
Salaries and other short-term employee e kHAKEEES B
benefits 7,248 7,312
Post-employment benefits B B A 23 29
Share-based payment DARS {7 2+ 113 (2,403
7,384 4,938
(b) Financing arrangement (b) WMEZH
The Group
rE
Amounts due Related
to related parties interest expenses
EEEALRIE HEEFEEX
2013 2012 2013 2012
=2 ne Tl =Tl =i —E—_fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
KiaE BT T BT T BT T BT TT
Amounts due to FEAS AR BR FIE @, (iv)
shareholders’ 231,568 210,874 10,640 8,463
Amounts due to FERTREE R B FE (i), (iv)
related companies 3,717 2,048 668 48
Loan from a related RE — K= (i)
company ZEX - - - 1,164
235,285 212,922 11,308 9,675
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47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 {2 —E—=F=A=+—H It FEE

47. ERBEEALIR S @)

(continued)
(b) Financing arrangement (continued) (b) BEZREE

Notes: K

(i) The interest expenses charged on amounts due to shareholders were U Fgﬁ%%ﬁﬁ pd %‘J,%faﬁiﬁi?zi Fll=
calculated at 5% per annum. The outstanding balances of the amounts ‘Z’igiﬁg FHE}E T)\IE\E/Q\*&f ]
due to shareholders at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in s B 2 e AR 1R R 48 4 7E [ 5 35 ¢
Note 35. N

(ii) The interest expenses charged on amounts due to related companies (i i3 gfﬁk % I 272 ﬁ;ﬁs&)‘b}gi
was calculated at 5% per annum. The outstanding balances of amount 7l 757%“* Rt —REER
due to a related company as at 31 March 2013 is disclosed in Note 36. IEE; : =S =h=u Zr‘ﬁk

BB AEAENT L6 BEE -

(iii) The interest expenses charged on loan from a related company was (i) S %:%Eﬁ% TZgﬁZT‘JE\ﬁE
calculated at 0.5% per month. Details of the loan are disclosed in 2 R AMEOSEHH \’ﬂzg
note 29(d). The ultimate beneficial owner of the related company is also EE fi ot 29(c) 5 gﬁk R ]2 ek
act as the senior management of the Group. BEafi B ATHEARESRERE -

(iv) After the end of reporting period, the Group repaid approximately (iv) n Eiﬁﬂikfé NEE D RIMEIE FER
HK$138,568,000 and HK$82,789,000 to settle the amounts due to A% B2 2 IE i’j 7 5 138,568,000 7T, & fE
shareholders and amounts due to related companies respectively. & FIBLB %82 789,0007T ©

(c) Other related party transactions (c) HtBEEALRS
2013 2012
—E—=£ —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt BT T BT

Interest on promissory notes ANERZF S (i 131 129

Rental expenses HEeM> (ii) - 13,745

Reduction of interest payable Rk FE A< ) S (i) - 2,932

Purchase of machinery and equipment g B Es MR (iv) - 1,364

Sales of a motor vehicle HE—HTE (v) 348 -

Sales to related companies % XEEBENRHE (vi) 60,569 14,385

Purchase from a related company A—XEEAREE (vi) 15,065 48,340

Notes: BfEE -

(0] This represents interest on promissory notes issued to Winner Global [0} I T5 2% 4T F Winner Global 2 ;g =
and was calculated at a coupon rate of 2% per annum (effective interest BREEmERGFE2E(ERFIX:
rate: 15.74%). The outstanding balance at the end of the reporting 15.74[2) B 2 F| B o E’\ﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ%
period is disclosed in Note 37. EHZ MR EB AN EI7TIRE -

(ii) This represents the difference arising from the net-off of write off of (i) W IRHsSEEYE  BERD
deposit for purchases of property, plant and equipment and waiver of B RREEN—REENTZ
loan and borrowing due to a related company. B REEmME =5 -

(i) This represents the reduction of interest rate from 2.7% to 0.5% per (ii) Ty ;H FRBEAIERAESR
month, retroactively from the date of commencement of loan from a B BeEkE— %F‘%E TZ
related company. B4 B ERFR AR K o

(iv) This represents the purchase of machinery and equipment from a (iv) WA —REEA R E SR R RE
related company. ZRIE °

(v) A director of the related company is the spouse of Ms. Loh, a former W) —ZBENT 2 EEANATRIIT

Executive Director of the Company.

(Vi) A director of the related companies is a director of the Group’s
subsidiary.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the above transactions
were conducted on terms mutually agreed by the Group and the
related parties.

(vi)

EELELTZIRE -

—HBMRERRZERT R —AANEEN
BrRlzEE-

ARBEERR » AR FZ AL
1% £ [ 5 $/\i$ﬁ§ﬁ%;{2ﬂ%$& #ET
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48. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRSs
Amendments to IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 27

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

IFRS 13

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
IAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
IAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 32
Amendments to IAS 36

IFRIC 20

IFRIC 21

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-
2011 Cycle!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities’

Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures®

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance'

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements’
Joint Arrangements’

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’
Fair Value Measurement’

Employee Benefits!

Separate Financial Statements'

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?*

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities?

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets?

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine'

Levies?

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
q Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
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48. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 amended in
2010 includes the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities” credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9 in the future will not
have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities.

48.
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48. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

176

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including IFRS
10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and IAS 28 (as
revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements.
SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of IFRS 10. Under IFRS 10, there is only one
basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition, IFRS 10 includes a
new definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee
to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has
been added in IFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. IFRS 11 deals with
how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control
should be classified. SIC 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-monetary
Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn upon the effective date
of IFRS 11. Under IFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint
operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations
of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under IAS 31, there
are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled assets and jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under IFRS 11 are required to be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled
entities under IAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting or proportionate consolidation.

KRMEZRBRAT —T—= /"2 -=FFH

T2 - o

&
%

N HE(]

1/
N

S
18
&

=300

-
=K

2% (L 4
R |
238+
TN |
WK

\

A
R
#

=—

(&
EHGERE BaRy BELQ
B DA R 0 B8 iz #7 5T B A4S RT 2 R
R-ZE——%1H FRSEKRE  BE
ZH - BEARNREENARENAS
B BREBBRPEREERFE 105
BRM B REENFE 115 - BEREMBRS
EHIZE 1257 - BER @ ERE27 5% (R =
T——FEFT) KRB &R £ RIFE 285k
(R=F——F&E5]) -

RIRERZ FRHERAMNT

REA TR S E R F A0SR BB & 5t
AF27SRAr A RIBUM BB EEBEE M
BREZHIRTE - Bt REZBEF 12
HRE — BRENERSNEREYBRS
ERIZEA10R AR BREE - RARH R
BREEE105 - 26 B E%E
BOFEHI4E  pboh - BIFR B S 2 RIS 10
FESENEIHER  ETREZRE
R @QAEZHREHR  OR2ERE
HRZERGA DR ABIMERN : R()
HREUSITERINZEREED RS
B2ee - BEMBERELENE10RER
ERIE AR IETAMAFAES| -

B % B 755 ¥ 5 2 RIS 11 SRR R R & 5t 2
AIFEREE LR ES - BRPBRESE
AIE 1M REEIEM A SIA EATHEA KR
wEZHE LD RIE - TR BERE
SF1IBRAFAAEFER — SETEAZ
FEE I BT IR B 7 3R 5 A RS 11 57
R E R EE o R IR B A RS E A
F115E - BT R TR ST
MEBESREEEBHALDLE MR
BEERSERES R Basn=
BEA : KAEGHIER  KAZHEER
HRIE TS o

AN - BIR BA 7 2RI 11 SRR E 2
BECEARBEASIDEARK - MEK
SETERIZE 31 AT E 2 KR HI BRI
RAEDSFDANKLL OIS FOEAR °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B B R R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 52— —=4=A=+—RH L EE

48. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 were
issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the application of these
five IFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 with earlier application permitted provided all of
these standards are applied at the same time.

The application of IFRS 10 is not expected to change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at 1 April 2013. However, it may in the future result in
investees being consolidated which would not have been consolidated
under the Group’s existing policies or vice versa.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investment
Entities

The amendments to IFRS 10 introduce an exception to consolidating
subsidiaries for an investment entity, except where the subsidiaries
provide services that relate to the investment entity’s investment
activities. Under the amendments to IFRS 10, an investment entity is
required to measure its interests in subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss.

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to be met.
Specifically, an entity is required to:

— obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with professional investment management
services;

— commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

— measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its
investments on a fair value basis.

48.
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48. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
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STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investment
Entities (continued)

Consequential amendments to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 have been made to
introduce new disclosure requirements for investment entities.

The amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with early
application permitted. The directors anticipate that the application of
the amendments will have no effect on the Group as the Company is
not an investment entity.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 13 are more extensive
than those in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by IFRS 13 to cover all
assets and liabilities within its scope.

IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the application of the new Standard may
affect certain amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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48. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 (continued)

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

The amendments to IAS 19 change the accounting for defined benefit
plans and termination benefits. The most significant change relates
to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations and plan
assets. The amendments require the recognition of changes in defined
benefit obligations and in fair value of plan assets when they occur, and
hence eliminate the “corridor approach” permitted under the previous
version of IAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past service costs.
The amendments require all actuarial gains and losses to be recognised
immediately through other comprehensive income in order for the net
pension asset or liability recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.
Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return on plan assets
used in the previous version of IAS 19 are replaced with a “net-interest”
amount, which is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset.

The amendments to IAS 19 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2013 and require retrospective application.

The Group has not completed its assessment of the full impact of
adopting revised IAS 19 and therefore the possible impact on the
Group’s results and financial position has not been quantified.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to IAS 1 introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement. Under
the amendments to IAS 1, a statement of comprehensive income is
renamed as a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and an income statement is renamed as a statement of profit
or loss.

The amendments to IAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments to
IAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into
two categories in the other comprehensive income section: (a) items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive
income is required to be allocated on the same basis. The amendments
do not change the option to present items of other comprehensive
income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of other comprehensive
income will be modified accordingly when the amendments are applied
in the future accounting periods.

48.
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Five Years Financial Summary

EFHBERE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 82— —=F=HA=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA # 271))

RESULTS RE

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1t—HLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
R =R E TN T SRIT Ry T e f& T T RS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T PEHETIT ST TT

Revenue WA 76,550 115,616 866,655 342,580 178,061

(Loss)/profit attributable to the 7N A T A AFE(E

owners of the Company (B18),mA (326,601)  (2,327,909) 341,486 273,303 (12,707)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at 31 March
=05 =ap—l2]
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—%—= — = £ T UOETI=ETN =B s

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BMTRE BT BT BMTR BT

Total assets BEE 1,068,024 1,727,833 4,186,991 3,338,236 237,960
Total liabilities Fy=Er 551,017 852,438 930,622 831,606 57,618
Net assets FEE 517,007 875,395 3,256,369 2,506,630 180,342
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to the ZN/NEIEZEDN

owners of the Company FE(E e 517,000 875,309 3,256,293 2,506,568 166,228
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR AR B R 2 7 86 76 62 14,114
Total equity R 517,007 875395 3,256,369 2,506,630 180,342
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